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CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC is
a market leading Real Estate Investment Trust
investing in social housing, with a particular focus
on specialist soctal housing in England and Wales.

The properties in the portfolio provide homes
and enable the provision of cate to vulnerabie

individuals with life-long care needs whose rent is

paid for from the Government Welfare Budget out
of Housing Benefits.

The demand for specialist social housing is
significant and growing, with substantial numbers of
peaple housed in properties that are inappropriate
to support their needs and enable them to best
interact with society. Civitas invests in specially
tailored properties that support the care needs of
the residents, whether that be existing, adapted

residential properties within the community, newly
built properties, or properties repurposed from
other uses.

The Civitas portfolio is very well diversified and at
the period end was in partnership with

= 15 Housing Associations,
» 115 care providers, and
» 137 Local Authorities.

The key aim of Civitas Social Housing PLC from a
social impact perspective is to improve the quality
of specialist social housing properties and increase
the gquantity of specialist social housing whilst
demonstrating value for money for the public purse.

Civitas is seeking to develop a high quality porifolio,
that offers exposure to stable, well-diversified returns
while delivering real social benefit and impact.
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How we Performed

Financial Highlights as at 31 March

2019

20187

£19.9
millian

Profit pefore
tax

EPRA EPS**

£826.9
million

IFRS property
valuation

Dividends declared
|IC shares)

2019 oo

IFRS NAY per share | 197.1p

o
o
-

2019

2018

£666.5

IFRS NAV million

E‘P;R:\ L;E’F’S*’* 3.63p Company fdjusted 3.63p

ilute HEE earnings™ 285
\_W,J Mo

TN
o 5.0p

Dividends declared per Annualised 545.-7

{Ordinary shares) share rent roll million

IFRS NAV increase 9.29% Total shareholder 17.45%

since IPQ EvisES return®** 070w

" Period from taunch on 18 November 2016 to 31 March 2018,
" See Appendix 1 to these financial statements for supporting workings.

" 0On an Ordinary share held since launch {percentage not annualised).

Investment property
independsntly valued
at £826.8m (IFRS)

(21

Total of Bp pe
Ordinary share of
dividends declared
over the yeaar

i

Civitas Social Housing PLC

9.3% ingrease in IFRS
NAY par Ordinary share
{"Share”} since {PO:

107 1p as at 31 March 2019

Annuslised Rent Rotl
£45.7m based upon
£826.9m of real estate at
the end of the year

4.7 per Share
Earnings: based on
comprehensive incorne
and property revaluations

Weighted Average
Unexpred Lease Term.
24.4 yeors




Strategic Report 3 -58

Key Achievements in the Period

Operational Highlights

591 pr -
acqu Authonties

based on long-term
leases signed with 15
Housirg Associations

S providing dependakle -
D .. Supported by T3 {'\/g\,}a& .. A&8. .. eccommadaton for @ Y T
care providers S0 4,072 tenants

The Good Econorny, the sccial impact advisory firm, in their secend anrual independent Social impact Report on Civitas, noted
encouraging evidence that Civitas can deliver on its social cbjective of increasing the provision of high-auality social komes to
imprave the quality of hte tor low income and vulnerable peaple in social need, while achieving financial returns for investars

Funding
£52.8 mullion Scotush Total bank borrowings of
[ Widows loan note I3 HSBC £100 mition [~ [208.5 miliion equating to
with an agreed term of three-year floating rate 22% of gross assets reflecting
N ten years with an all-in NN revolving credit facility L the Portfolio Valuation of

fixed rate of 2.99% investment properties

£250 million PO

~,  Lloyds £60 milien ~
three-year floating I with proceeds
_ i rate revolving credit ! fully invested by

facility December 2017

£307 mitiign of
capntal raised through
a C share issue in
Novernber 2017

Levered IRR” since [PQO (IFRS and Portfolio Basis)

130
125 @ —— -
120
115
110
L 10—
0o e

95

18 Nov 2016 30 Sep 2017 31 Mar 2018 30 Jun 2018 30 Sep 2018 31 Dec 2018 31 Mar 2018
iIFRS NAV 98.05 10474 4 B0 TIG.08 T11E0 114.36 115.10
+ curnulative
dividends pad
FIE RIS

H
N

Share price performance (pence)
120
115
110
105
1C0
o5
a0 - e . e e AR | S omees -1} 5 A ARE Rttt et £t et ot 2 5t e M =t L. L e et e e o
85

18 31
Nav Jan Mar May Jul Sep Nov Jan Mar May Jul Sep Nov Jan Mar
2016 2017 27 2017 2017 2037 2017 2018 2018 2018 218 28 2018 2019 2019

“Alternative performance measure. See Appendix 1 for the calculation.
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Chairman’s Statement

Michael Wrobel Chairman

1 am pleased to present the Company’s second
annual shareholder report, including the audired
consolidated financial statements for the vyear
ended 31 March 2019.

The Company has made considerable progress
through the year. We have deployed all the equity
proceeds and £208.4 million of borrowings, the latter
representing an LTV of 22% of gross assets. At the
end of the year, the Company’s property portfolio
was valued at £820.1 million, having increased from
£516.2 million and including a revaluation gain of
£3.7 million. The valuation represents a net initial
yield of 5.27% compared to an average net initial yield
on purchase of 5.67% (after initial purchase costs).

The Company’s IFRS NAV has increased by 1.5%
to 107.08p per share. The total return from IPO
to 31 March 2019 is 7.23% p.a. (on an IFRS basis)
and 11.93% p.a. (on a Portfolio Valuation basis),
incorporating profit for the period of £19.9 million.

During the period the annualised rent roll increased
by 61% to £45.7 million, resulting in EPRA earnings
of £22.6 million and EPRA diluted earnings per
share of 3,63p. For the financial year ended 31 March
2019, the Company’s ongoing charges were 1.36%.

The Company has declared total dividends of 5.075p
per Ordinary share for the year ended 31 March
2019, comprised of three quarterly dividends on the
Ordinary shares of 1.25p (in line with the target in
the launch IPO Prospectus) and a final dividend of
1.325p per Ordinary share, an increase of 6% over

Civitas Social Housing PLC

the equivalent quarter and ahead of the inflationary
increase originally envisaged. The Company intends
to target a dividend of 5.3p per Ordinary share for
the financial year ending 31 March 2020.

The Board is grateful for the support and
encouragement of the Company’s shareholders and
the hard work of our advisers and service providers.
The Company along with its Investment Adviser is
delivering positive financial and social outcomes
which are providing ditect savings to tax payers.

Portfolio

Duringtheyear,atotalof 177 propertieswereacquired,
having met the Company’s stringent due diligence
requirements. At the year end the overall portfolic
comprised 591 properties located across half the
Local Authorities in England and Wales and leased to
15 Housing Assaciations, with support provided by
113 care providers. As well as representing the largest
and most diversified portfolio of supported housing,
the Company’s reputation as a knowledgeable and
reliable counterparty has materially enhanced the
levels of incoming investment enquiry.

The Company now provides homes to over 4,000
tenants with learning disabilities, autism, mental
health disorders and also for women'’s refuge.

Following the events at First Priority Housing
Association, where in May 2018 we assigned all
our leases on the same terms to Falcon Housing
Association, we have increased the extent of our
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interaction with the care providers who provide
primary care services to the tenants in our
properties and who support payment against voids.
We have also used specialist consultants to speak
directly with all Local Authority commissioners on
an individual basis to confirm their full support for
each property acquired.

Civitas’s Social Tmpact and Continuing
Political Commitiment to the Sector

The Company’s provision of supperted housing
continues to make a significant positive social
impact. This is driven by the cost advantage
enjoyed by Local Authorities and the improved
well-being of tenants and their families, compared
to institutional care. This is based on independent
verification, using HM Treasury Green Book metrics
and reports from The Social Profit Calculator
and The Good Economy Partnership. Further
information is available on the Company’s website'.

These benefits are also contributing to increasing
long-term demand. It is most likely that this growth
will need to be financed hy the private sector. In
this regard Laing Buisson?® reports that none of the
political parties seeks to pose any ideological threat
to the independent social care sector and that, driven
by lower costs and better value for money, over 93%
of publicly paid adult specialist care services are now
outsourced to the independent sector.

Against this background, in 2018 the government
announced that it will continue to fund all supported
housing rents through the weifare system (Housing
Benefit) and will not subject rents to mainstream
Local Housing Allowance caps.

This confirmation of the government's long-
term commitment to supported housing has been
reflected by the Company’'s experience on the
ground, in direct interaction with Local Authorities,
namely that properly commissioned properties will
achieve long-term Local Authority commissioner
support for the appropriate rent levels required to
support the Company’s leases.

Regulation and Industry

Standards

Given the specialist sector’s growth, the Regulator of
Social Housing (“RSH”) has begun to review many of
the Housing Associations with whom we work, for the
first time. The RSH has also published a report on the
risks facing the industry and the consequent need for
risk mitigation plans. During a panel discussion at the
Social Housing Finance Conference in London, the
RSH referred to the industry’s “growing pains” and
areas that require improvement, whilst noting that
there were no inherent problems with the industry
model. We are aligned with this approach and our
Investment Adviser offers its team's considerable
social housing expertise (o assist our counterparties,
for example, on governance structures and adding
operational skills.

Improving

' http:/feivitassocialhousing.com/investor-relations/reports-ans-publications

?Laing Buisson Adult Specialist Care Third Edition 2019.

Civitas Social Housing PLC - -



Chairman’s Statement continucd

The structure of the industry and inherent risks
are accounted for by Jones Lang LaSalle, when
undertaking the independent valuation of our
properties. There have been no material impacts on
our ability to collect the rental income due from our
leases.

Share Price and Rating

The Board notes the recent share price performance
of the Company and its peer group and the resultant
move from a premium to a discount to the Net Asset
Value. The Board regularly monitors the share
rating and reviews options by which we can seek
to improve the position. All options considered
will take into account the interests of shareholders
as a whole and be balanced against protecting the
Company’s long-term standing in the sector and its
relationships with important counterparties with
whom the Company is negotiating asset purchases.

AGM and AGM Resohutions

The third Annual General Meeting ("AGM”) of the
Company will be held at 2,00 p.m. on Thursday,
5 September 2019 at 3 More London Riverside,
London, SE1 2AQ. There will be a presentation from
the Investment Adviser, Civitas lousing Advisors
Limited. The full AGM notice has been posted
to all shareholders and also can be found on the
Company’s website!,

Within the AGM notice, the Company has included
a shareholder resolution asking for approval to
amend the Company’s investment policy to allow
investments to be made Scotland and Wales, Both
these parts of the UK have a welfare benefit system
that is similar to that in England and Wales with
policies that are regarded as at least as suppaortive of
the provision of sociai housing as those in England
and Wales. The Company’s core focus will remain
Engiand and Wales.

Scotland and Northern Ireland have experienced
issues of shortage in respect of affordable housing
and the Company wishes to be in a position to
consider investments in these parts of the UK,
should any meet its criteria for investment.

In addition, the Company is also seeking shareholder
approval to increase the maximum aggregate
annual remuneration pavyable to Directors from
£200,000 to £250,000 as set out in the Company’s
Articles of Association. The Board is currently in the
process of seeking to appoint at least one additional
Director to broaden the skills and diversity of the
Board, and therefore this proposed change will
provide headroom for future appointments and
future increases in remuneration. As set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended
31 March 2019, no increase in the current level of
Directors’ fees is being proposed.

Cutlook

The UK has a chronic shortage of supported
housing, with demand expected to increase further
due to a range of factors including medical advances
at birth and a growing and ageing pepulation. The
Government sponsored Personal Social Services
Research Unit projects a 55% growth in supported
housing needs for working age adults with learning
disabilities between 2015 and 2030.

This demand-supply imbalance along with
continued government commitment te fund
supporte¢d  accommodation  provides  strong
fundamentals for continued investment into the
supported housing secter.

The Company will continue to build cn the
successful and disciplined deployment todate and to
seek opportunities to further enhance the portfolio
within our capital resources. The Investment Adviser
has a pipeline of properties under negotiation and
in various stages of due diligence. Our confidence
is reflected in our intention to target a dividend of
5.3p for the current financial year to 31 March 2020.

Michael Wrobel
Chairman
21 June 2019

' http:/civitassociathousing.com/investor-retations/reports-and-publications

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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Infographics

Social Housing - A Sector in High Demand

W
{\ b Over 4.0 million social
i ] homes (2.8 million 1in 5 homes
managed by Housing is a social home
Associations)

WELCURE

£20 biilion tumover!’

{Housing Associations 4.5 million waiting list?

{1 in 15 million families)

only}
Supply of affordable housing completions by tenure,
Affordgabie homes delivery since 1991-527 England, 199182 to 2017.18¢
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Dwetling stock rented from locat authorities and housing Dweliing stock rented from igeal authorities and housing
associations in England, annual igures 19712017 associations as a % of all s1ock, England, 19712017
B . | . 5 . .
1 | 1 N L 1 L
5n \ f b | 1 |
1 ] 250, 1 1 L
o i i '
b Housirg Assotianons an: |
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! 155 '
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- 1 | o ! ! v
L 1 1 1 T
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SOURCES:

' Sector Risk Profile - Regulator of Social Housing 2018,

?The Guardian — June 2018.

* Affordable Housing Supply 2018 - Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government.
“What's Happening to Rented Social Housing in England? Full Facts, December 2018,

Civitas Social Housing PLG
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Supported Housing: A Vital Role in Society

Over 0090,

4.8 million social
housing units in

Great Britain®
- All Supported Housing Units  ~ + .

+ 651,500 Units (with support needs) - [14% Lotal social housing units)
+ 716,000 People live (with appropriate support] in Supparted Housing:

Specialist Supported Housing (“SSH”)

171,840 People’ (with certain care needsi live in $SH - 24% of people
tiving in Supported Housing (data cacludes certain care conditions)

Includes people with these long-term care needs

= Learning Disabiliy - Autism
« Physical Disahility « Homelessness
« Mental Health + Domeslic Abuse

o + Multi-decade reguirement for stable housing
86 /6 + Average age 36 years in Civitas portfolio

Civitas Social Housing PLC - SSH Sector Share |

General Needs

2.4% of 55H

4,072 People in S5H (excluges vertain conditions;

! Department for Communities & Local Government - “Supported Accommodation Review”: November 2016

? House of Commons, First Joint Report of the Communities and Local Government and Work and Pensions Committees ~ “Future of
Supported Housing”: May 2017

Funding the Specialist Supported Housing Sector

2617 Total UK Government Significant Untapped
‘Welfare Spend £264bn? Market Opportunity
Pensions Unemployment - Civitas Share
benefits 3
£112bn £2bn
42% 1%
Incapacity, disability & Personal social
injury benefits sarvices & other
henefits
£44bn £35bn c.£1.4bn

16%

Family benefits, income
support & tax credits

c.£1.4bn
for SSH

accommodation
only*

~3% £45.Tm

Civitas Annualised Rent Roll as at
31 March 2019

* Office for Nationa! Statistics.
S H.M. Governiment " Supported Accommodation Revenue! November 2018,

Civitas Sotial Housing PLC



Infographics cadinaed

SSH - Costs of Housing Provision

' Government Analysis' L e “"Mencap Analysis? o
Working Age People with Care Needs Working Age People with Care Needs
Weekly Rent - Range Weekly Rent - Range

£133 £277 £183.60 £194.43
Physical Disability Women’s Refuge Shared SSH Seif-Catered SSH

Why does it cost more? Why does it cost more?

» 24 hour staffing = Mencap data is focused on broader

+ Installation and monitoring of CCTV mental health and excludes more

* Enhanced fire and monitoring safety expensive provision noted by the

equipment Government such as women'’s refuge
«  Bespoke adaptations and construction accommodation

s Long lead time to /place and se¢ure tenants

Average Weekly Rent

Standard SSH Very high acuity/niche S§H
£178 £211

Civitas provides standard (mainly Learning
Disability and Autism) SSH and very high acuity/
niche SSH (addiction, women’s refuge)

“In supported living, the whole focus is on the outcomes for the
person and the small achievements, which toyou orlare not huge
achievements. If someone makes a cup of tea for the first time,
someone who really has high support needs and is both deaf and
blind, we celebrate those things. That is the value for money.'”

Anne Lawn, Heat of Operations at Sense

"House of Commons Library “Future of Supperted Housing™: April 2017
*Mencap and Housing LIN “Funding Supported Housing for All”: April 2018.

Civitas Sacial Housing PLE -
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SSH - Offers Value for Money

cap

Average weekly cost of SSH

Housing cost per week

(including service charge} £232
Care package cost per week £1,337
Total £1,569

Average weekly cost of Registered Care

E

HOUSE OF COMMONS

“While supported housing is more
expensive than general needs
accommodation it generates
substantial cost savings for other
parts of the public sector.”

Source, House of Cammons Communities and Local Government and
Waork and Pensions Committees -~ April 2017

Placement cost per week! £1,760

Total £1,760

1 Care and accommgdation together

Average weekly cost of
In-patient Settings (Hospital)

“The net benefit of providing supported
housing to the wider public purse was
estimated to be £3.5 billion per year.”

Source. Marcus Janes MP Minister for Local Government - 2017

Placement cost per week! £3,500

Total £3,500

1 Care and accommodation together

NATIONAL

HOUSING
FEDERATION

Annual savings resulting from

Supported Housing
Older tenants £3,000 per person/year
Learning Disabilities and
Mental Health £15,500 per person/year

“Significant cost savings to the
social care budget arose from
Supported Housing.”

Source: Caroline Nokes MP, Parliarmaniary Under Secretary of State for
Weltare Payments - 2017

“A stay on an acute ward in
the NHS could amount to
many multiples of the cost of
the average daily rent for
working age people in
Supported Housing.”

Source: Gillian Connor, Haad of Palicy and Development

Civitas Social Housing PLC



Infographics continued

SSH - Demand Ouistrips Supply

What is driving increased demand for
Specialist Supported Housing (growing 5/6% a year)?

Medical o080 _
Longer life

advance expectancy

(survival rates at birth) p

Closure of o® .-t .t Government

1 * . policy to promote

ong-stay y
i w Care in the

hospitals !

Community
At the same time:
UK Social Housing Stock UK Population

70MM

4.5MM

1980 ~—————————» 2017 1980 ———————» 2017
National Housing Federation If the current trend continues:
125,196
lettings needed for
people gfworking 29’053

age during 2015/16
annual shortfall in i

supported housing

by 2019/20 : s )
109,556
places available for
people of working
age during 2015/16
46,771
annual shortfall in

supported housing 2 ®e

15,640 P f\ by 2024725 i” N

shortfall in supported

housing for people of &
working age during §
2015716 ST R S |

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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SSH - Local Authority Commissioning

Central Government (Housing Benefit) meets cost of Specialist Supported Housing via Local Authorities

Local Authorities
responsible for
commissioning

>

For specific

individuals with

Requires:

Adapted Property
Suitable Care

Rent levels
proposed to
Local Authority
Housing Benefit
Officers

Specialist long-term care Provider
Suppo.rted needs Specialist
Housing Housing

Assaciation
A S . "y A
.. ™y
: ] } 1 Needs of
. . Individual ’,
. . \ i
( 1o -
»e } 2 Level of Care .
Rent determined : | I
against 4 key rel .
- . s e Y »
cnitena: . Type and .
: } 3 Adaptationof }*:
. L Property Jo
N S .
: - "
: Exempt N
. ’ 4 Accommodation|®’
Status

'

Rent levels
confirmed and
paid to Housing
Association

Civitas Social Housing PLC




Infog‘raphics continued

SSH - Contractual Framework

Rent Payment

++ » Service Level agreement/Payment for Voids or broader obligations « »+ 4

Erhanced Tenancy
Oelvery of Care Agresment .
Housing
Care D
Proid Tonant ceveo e Associations
rovider (Registared
{Housing ;
', Management) QYU
Q ' > Y c
= 1)
6@ " .' fg‘ L 6\@0\
% .‘ .; Q‘b Q'él‘
% . s 2 e
‘%;' . c @ . &
‘. ~ SoeE
o
. . 2t g
.. . .‘.
Local Authority .’

. Funding under Local Government
m Finance Settiement tinciuding for
care and for housing support)

—

Department for
Communities and
Local Government

Civitas Social Housing PLC -
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Civitas is Enhancing Professionalism in the Sector
CHA/Civitas lead the sector by introducing innovations to protect lease counterparties and
future proof investments

KEY FACTS
ted by C .,
and promotea by HA/ Civigg to

Rens independently
-tested and set at
rnetian level

-Social tmpact
- reviews on gl

transactions fay vendor or new

preperties

Indexation set

" Onboarding fee

below recent - Housing Local aid 10 Bach feas
government - ASSOCIANONS Authority -fwm;e;; fc:rseﬁl
approval levels (CPI H ("HA") {"LA") ounterparly ]

vs, CPl+1) - p_:o;.:emm

- Risk sharing .. - :
" clauses within . “Void fund created
leases [chaf&ge 1o provide financial
. indawer formal | -  buffer :
government policyt KBJ B . B
B co '] Engagement with- B4
care operators and
LA COMMissioners
establishes long-term

demand and suiabiity
of properties

Civitas Social Housing PLC



Infog‘raphics contipued

Examples of existing care provider relationships, England and Wales

@& Exemplar
RIS EUE TS

PRIORY

ADULT CARE

g—— voyagecare™

Carelech

FosterCare

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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Civitas Housing Association Partners

CHRYSALIS 3UPPORIED

LEME YRR R ‘ ASSATIATON, LSA) LTD

A TRLE FET Lk # taete Favwa & Fomih Yapt

J B gy b by

Sg gt e wddope

*‘?’i?mg.fﬁ(
. 5 e N LNy
Oncircle FAI.CUN .- @ Hilldate
ey S HOUSING ASSOCIATION gf o

UPRORTED l I : INCLUSION HOUSING OMYSMCE
QUSING

B
H

P‘%gi
4

5
i

s

Pivotal @ TRINITY

Housing Associations’ comments

Mark Adams, Harbour Light

“Harbour Light Assisted Living has been working with Civitas Social Housing PLC for a couple of years now, we
have always found them to be a very robust partner in terms of their sector involvement and in seeking out
new approaches to better the provision of essential supported living services. Civitas brings the benefits of
a large corporate structure, in transparency, resource and expertise and is able to assist and support housing
provider partners effectively as a result. We look forward to working with and developing our own housing
provision for the many vulnerable adults we support for many years lo come.”

Colin Mackell, Chrysalis

“Working with Civitas ensures that Chrysalis are supported to develop services with key strategic partners
to deliver effective housing care and support solutions to some of the UK's most vulnerable clients. Civitas
have always supported our ambition, our development and have been a valued partner in the past and will
continue to be in the future. It is because of funds like Civitas that vital, lifesaving and life enhancing services
are able to be realised and we look forward to a very productive future working together.”

Neil Brown, Inclusion

“The benefit for us of working with Civitas is that we share a common purpose of delivering real social impact
through the provision of high-quality accommodation and services. Delivering real improvements in the
wellbeing of the people we house, who are among the most vulnerable people in society.”

Kevin Appleby, BeST

“Civitas have been great to work with and we have particularly valued their committed approach and the
diverse skills and professionalism of their team in supporting us. We look forward to working with them on
the future acquisitions of much needed community-based supported housing for vulnerable adults.”

Civitas Social Housing PLC



Infographics continued

Geographically Diversified

MNorih Vest

(231 Properties 95

%
| % of funds invested 10.17%
EE! % of rental income 15.1%

West Midiands

B

[

Properties 84

P
f§ % of funds invested 11.9%
J;.:L % of rental income 11.3%

Wales

Propertigs 15

wp)

% of funds invested 8.3%

% of remtai income 8.3%

=

South West

2l Properties 112

@ % of rental income 14.5%

Market Value by Region!

2.8%

South West
Landon

West Midlands
Yorkshire
South East
North West
East Midlands
Wales

North East

mE# - hZmENR

East of England

'As at 31 March 2019, including compieted properties only,

Civitas Social Housing PLC -

[y
E?ﬁ_j! % of funds mvested 14.7%
Y

Assets by Region!

[
i%aii Properties 43

MNorth Easgt

Properties 63

i % of funds invested 7.0%

% of rental income 7.0%

Yorkshire

i % of funds invested 10.8%

i1 % of rental income 10.74%

East Midlands

| Properties 58

| % of funds invested 9.6%

% of rental Income .5%

East of England

| Properties 18

% of funds invested 2.8%

% of rental income ?.7%

London

i rroperties 26

! % of funds invested 14.1%

% of rental Income 14.5%,

South East

Properties €1

I % of funds invested 10.6%

! % of rental income 10.8%

South West
North West
West Midlands
North East
South East
East Midlands
Yorkshire

EEEN

BEo.

London
East of England
Wales
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Diversified by Registered Provider

Rental Income by Registered Provider’
12%

1.2%

1.0%

2.4%
3.0% —
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Case Studies

Case Study: Comer Road

High quality supported living accommodation
comprising 20 state-of-the-art self-contained
apartments

Key Metrics

Total Investment® £4.2 million
Yield on Cost* 55%
IFRS Net Initial Yield 5.3%
Units 20
Purchase Date August 2018

High-Quality living accommodation:

20 state-of-the-art self-contained apartments
24-hour care and support for individuals
with learning disabilities

Purpose built to high specification:

*

.

-

-

En-suite wet rooms

Facilities with alarm technologies

Assistive technology enabled control panels
Concierge control

Wheelchair access

Living spaces tailored to needs

" excluding purchase costs.

Civitas Social Housing PLC - [
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Case Study: Beamish Court

High quality supported living accommodation
comprising 12 state-of-the-art self-contained
apartments

ey Wlatrics

Total Investment™ £4.2 milhen -
Yield on Cost* 55% gy s
IFRS Net Ipitial Yield 55%

Units 12

Purchase Date October 2017

High-Quality living accommodation:

« 12 state-of-the-art self-contained apartments

« 24-hour care and support for individuals with
learning disabilities

Purpose built to high specification:

+ En-suite wet rooms

« Facilities with alarm technologies

«  Assistive technology enabled control panels
« Concierge control

+  Wheelchair access

» Living spaces tailored to needs

*excluding purchase costs.

Civitas Social Housing PLC .-+ .
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Case Study: Prinstead House

Prior to its refurbishment in 2017, Prinsted in Surrey was
a private residence. The building had interesting features
and was a fantastic space, but due to a lack of investment
the property needed some vital improvements and was
not living up to its potential.

A refurbishment was needed to reconfigure the building,
creating new homes for multiple residents on a shared basis.

Key Financial Metres

Total investment™ £2.6 million
Yield on Cost* 6.0%
IFRES Net lnival Yield 53%
tnits 8
Purchase Date April 2037
Key Metrics % Vaiue
Time/Maiue/Scheme 72
Specification/Property 56.3
Scheme Adaptations 10.9
Cost Contributions 135

Developer’s Margin

100.0 (2,60

Transforming Prinsted

s Work began in May 2017

+  Worked closely with our partners to ensure a smooth
transition into supported living accommodation

= Required extensive refurbishment, stripping areas of
the property back to the structure and installing new
facilities

»  Decoration undertaken to ensure homely and inviting
for all who live there

Making a home at Prinsted

+ Transformed to provide a home for eight people on a
shared basis

« All Dbedrooms include en-suite facilities, with
kitchenettes, a shared open plan living area and a large
bathreom

+ A sensory room has been created, along with a large
utility room

« Externally, an outbuilding was given an upgrade,
transforming it into a day office

« Prinsted is situated near to shops and is close to Gatwick
Airport and links to M23 and M25

» The property is ideally placed for residents and provides
a comfortable home for aii

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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Case Study: Foresters

Built during the early 1900s, Foresters comprises two
Lirge semi-detached villas, tull of charactes and Lull
of potential. That’s exactly what we believed when we
became aware of this property in Dorset, which had the
makings of a fantastic scheme.

Not only were the properties situated close to the town
centre of Weymouth, making them highly accessible, they
also had the capabilities to provide space for multiple
residents. We were keen to bring this building up to date,
with new features in classic surroundings, and couldn’t
wait to get started.

rey Financial Metrics

Total Investment™ £2.5 rmullion
Yeld on Cost* 6.0%
IFRS Net Initial Yield 53%
Units 15
Purchase Date June 2017
Koy Metnes e Value
Time/Vvalue/Scheme 78
Specification/Property 49.5
Scheme Adaptations 18.4
Cost Contributions 133
Developer's Margin 11
W00.0 (2 .6m)

The conversion of Foresters

*  Work began in November 2017

+ Buildings converted into spaces for 15 people, living on
a shared basis

« Extensive renovation, stripped back the structure to the
bare walls, which then allowed the installation of new
equipment and facilities

+ Internal areas were redecorated, bathrooms and kitchens
were installed and where required, specialist equipment
was fitted, including hoists

+ Due to the history of the building, unique features were
retained

Making a home at Foresters

«  With work now complete on Foresters, the property
provides a home for 15 people

»  Mixture of bedroom types with en-suites, a shared
open plan communal kitchen and a living room

» Gardens renovated o provide external communal space

»  Property brought back into use for a local care provider,
who specialises in care for adults with learning difficulties,
including those with high dependence physical needs

» TForesters is situated close to local bus routes and
shops within a half-mile of Weymouth town centre

Civitas Social Housing PLE -



Portfolio Analysis

Capital Deployment as at 31 March 2019
Track record of capital deployment with attractive returns and further opportunities

P 100 invested — Debt
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Capital deployment (£ million}
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2017 2018 2019

Security of lncome by Lease Expiry as at 31 March 2019

100% fully repairing Long-terrn,
and insuring leases, inflation-linked,
no gross to net rent loss lease income
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Social Value
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Paul Bridge
Chief Executive Officer

Paul is a founder of CHA and has over 20 years’ experience working at a
senior fevel in the social housing sector. He is the non-executive chairman
of Thames Valiey Charitable Housing Association and was previously CEO
of Homes for Haringey, a Registered Provider where he was responsible for
800 staff and 21,000 homes.

Andrew Dawher
Director

Andrew is a founder of CHA and has been active in the social housing sector
since 2012. He was part of the teamn that founded the private investment
company, Funding Affordable Homes, and was the adviser and founder of PFI
Infrastructure PLC, the first publicly traded social infrastructure fund.

Tom Pridmore
Direclut

Specialist in real estate and residential development finance. Co-founder of
forward-finance based Funding Affordable Homes. Qualified lawyer with over
19 years’ experience in real estate investment and development. Responsible
for sanctioning all property investment advice and portfolio monitoring.

Graham Peck
Finance Director

Graham joined CHA in 2018 and has over 10 vears’ experience within real
estate finance with a focus on healthcare and alternative assets. He was
formerly the CFO for pan-European private equity real estate investor Palm
Capital. Prior to this Graham was at Octopus Healthcare where he headed up
the finance function for LSE listed MedicX Fund and the MedicX Health UK
Funds. Graham is a Chartered Accountant.

Eleanor Corey
Transaction Director

Previously from international law firm CMS Cameron McKenna Nabarro
Otswang where she has practised in their real estate team for over 12 years.
Eleanor has extensive experience in all aspects of real estate management,
investment, development and finance, having undertaken a secondment in
the in-house corporate real estate team at Lioyds Banking Group, and most
recently having been the lead associate on a large town centre regeneraticn
project for a national housebuilder.
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“Civitas .Housing Advisors Limited (“CHA”), the Investment Adviser to
the Company, is pleased to report on the second period of operation
for the Company for the period from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.”

Paul Bridge, Chief Executive Officer, Civitas Housing Advisors Limited

Introduction
Civitas is a leading supported living and social housing property investor which is pursuing a clear growth
strategy whilst spearheading the maturation and professionalisation of the sector in which it operates.

We made considerable progress through the year, firstly in implementing our strategy, and secondly in working
with all stakeholders to drive the development of supported living provision in England and Wales.

Rental Income
The Company’s rental income has grown substantially during the year as additional properties were acquired
and existing properties enjoyed annual indexation of rents.

As at 31 March 2019, the run rate leve) of rental income was £45.7 million (2018: £28.4 million) and this
is anticipated to grow further as additional bank finance is secured and invested into supported housing
properties to achieve the target average 35% leverage based on gross assets.

The run rate rental income is supported by a broadly-based portfolio and as at 31 March 2019 the key statistics
of the portfolio are set out below.

31 March 30 June 30 Septembor 31 December 31 March
Period 2018 2018 2018 2008 2018
investment {fmj) 472 508 619 674 785
Progerties 414 440 521 557 591
Tenancies 2,621 2,845 3.440 3,746 4,072
Locat Autheorities 109 123 140 144 157
Housing Associations n 12 15 15 15
Care Providers 64 71 93 98 13
WAILLT [years) 24.1 254 25.1 247 24.4

The portfolio has been structured to date with the

Investiment Strategy
intention of achieving the following objectives:

The Company has continued to pursue the strategy

to build a high-quality and diversified portfolio of . Steady income for shareholders and capital

social housing with a majority focus on housing for
individuals with long-term care needs.

As at 31 March 2019, the Company has built one
of the largest and most diversified such portfolios
in England and Wales providing long-term stable
accommodation for over 4,000 underlying tenants.

growth

« Properties to be within the social/
government/local authority sponsored
sectors in England and Wales where the
requirement to provide accommodation is
supported by government legislation

+ Achieve diversification from working with
a wide range of Local Authorities, Housing
Associations and care providers

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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+ Provide accommodation for individuals
with a range of long-term care-based
needs and support other local authority
accommodation requirements including
homelessness, addiction, domestic violence
and NHS step down in addition to general
needs social housing

» Rental income to be met wholly or
substantially from state funds. In the case
of care-based Speciaiist Supported Housing
(almost 100% of the portfolio today), this is
expected to be 100% state funded

+ Long-term leases signed with Registered
Providers (Heousing Associations and
Local Authorities) to enable them to offer
accommodation on a long-term basis to
individuals often with life-long care needs

» leases to benefit from indexation and
typically to be repairing and insuring

= Properties whose rental income, valuation
and demand profile has a low correlation
to the general economy, residential or
commercial property sectors

Civitas Social Housing PLC -

+  Measurable social impact that promotes the
well being of tenants and offers value for
money for the state.

Strengthening the Team

During the year we have continued to strengthen
the Investment Advisory team and to widen its
skills base with expertise in social housing and
social care.

Much has been written recently of the growing
importance of Local Authority and individual
preference for supported housing as a means of
delivering high-quality care in the community that
also offers value for money.

An understanding of both healthcare delivery and
social housing need is firmly built into our eight-
step due diligence process that governs how we
assess and due diligence potential acquisitions of
supported housing.

To complement our expertise in social housing we
have added senior resource from the care industry
both at a corporate and an operational levei,
inciuding the recruitment of two former specialist
care industry CEOs.
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Reflecting the growing scale of the portfolio,
we have also appeinted a new director of asset
management with 30 years’ experience gained from
working at a senior level in some of the largest
Housing Associations in the UK and managing large
portfolios of social homes and care homes.

Market Update

The supported housing sector continues to
experience strong growth, and this is predicted to
increase significantly into the future. The sector
has recently enjoyed the most significant growth
in investment (CAGR 7.8%) of all parts of adult
specialist care in the UK.

Investors of various types have responded to the
strong demand for the provision of long-term
supported housing and have been encouraged in
this by the clear statements of support made by
the Government. In August 2018, the Government
made the following announcement:

“Ministers recognise that supported housing
is a vital service for some of the most
vulnerable people in our communities, and
last year consulted on possible alternative
funding options. Having listened to views
from providers, stakeholders and councils,
the Government has decided housing
benefit will remain in place to fund this
accommodation”

Whilst there was no suggestion that state funding
would not be available to meet both care and
accommodation costs of vulnerable adults, the fact
that the current system of provision from central
Government, in the form of Housing Benefit, has
been reaffirmed, was taken very positively by the
sector. It is also worth noting that no political
party dissented from this view and there does not
appear to be any difference of opinion amongst the
mainstream political parties on the principle that
vulnerable people who cannot work should receive
full state support for their care and accommodation,

Against this positive macro background, smaller
specialist Housing Associations (“RPs”} are
becoming further engaged in the sector as
registered providers and lessees, with a number
passing the 1,000-unit milestone that brings about
increased scrutiny from the Regulator of Social
Housing ("RSH”).

'Laing Buisson Adult Specialist Care Third Edition 2019.

We welcome this scrutiny as evidence of the
increasingly important role our sector plays in
housing provision in England and Wales. We interact
very regularly with the RSH and are pleased to
report that we have a highly positive and productive
working relationship with them. We know the RSH
is actively working through the various issues that it
has raised, and we are contributing via our Housing
Association partners to that work where that is
appropriate. We believe that the RSH is supportive
of the initiatives we are undertaking to strengthen
and professionalise the sector in which we operate.

During a panel discussion at the Social Housing
Finance Conference in London, which Civitas co-
hosted, the RSH acknowledged the industry’s
“growing pains” and areas for improvement, whilst
noting that there was “nothing inherently wrong”
with the industry model. We are actively involved in
working with all our RP counterparties to help them
grow and improve, providing, for example, advice on
governance structures and adding operational skills.

The initiatives we are undertaking include a series
of unique private seminars for all our 15 Housing
Association partners (RPs).

During 2018/19, these on-going seminars
have focused on the following subjects with a
view to enhancing quality, best practice and
professionalism:

+  March 2018 — Governance and Regulatory
Health Checks

+ June 2018 - Manchester Chartered Institute
of Housing Conference/Dealing with Growth

+ {ctober 2018 - Understanding the Civitas
Eight-Step Due Diligence Protocol

«  April 2019 - The Civitas Social Value Project

+ BMay 2019 - Sector Perceptions and
Increasing Understanding of Value Add

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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In addition te this ongoing activity (which
complements and supports our more formal due
diligence and monitoring activities), at our recent
Capital Markets Day* we set out some of the other
practical ways in which we have lent our support to
our RP partners.

In summary the activities we have undertaken in
2018/19 include the following:

» Engagement with asset management reviews

» Recommendation of newindependent board
members with leading sector experience

»  Review of health and safety procedures and
audits

» Comment on the structure and delivery of
risk appraisals and business plans including
for presentation to the RSH

»  Supporting staff recruitment

« Assistance in the review of group and
operational structures

We would anticipate that as the RPs continue to
mature and improve, this will be acknowledged and
reflected in the RSH's commentary on the sector.

Leases

The Company has typically entered into long-
term inflation adjusted leases for petiods in
excess of 20 years with RPs, where management
and maintenance are pravided by the RPs. The
Company’s portfolio currently has a WAULT of 24.4
years.

In approximately a third of the Company’s
portfolio, the leases with the RPs are supported
by agreements of the same 20-vear-plus length
with the underlying care provider. Through these
agreements, the care provider is in effect taking
responsibility for broader lease obligations around
rent and occupancy. The remainder of the portfolio
benefits from more standard underlying service
level agreements with the care provider which
would be expected to be rolied into a new service
level agreement at the end of the initial period.

¢ hitpi/feivitassociathousing.comicapital-markets-day-presentation

Civitas Sorial Housing PLC -

Where the counterparty is a Local Authority, or
where we believe it is in the Company’s interest,
the Company may (as noted at the time of 1PQ)
consider unexpired leases of not less than 10
years. This would reflect common constraints on
Local Authorities from entering into longer-term
arrangements.

As part of aur assessment of the supported housing
sector we have also given active consideration to
the structure of leases that are entered into with
RPs by the Company and other landlords. We have
used our long-standing experience of different
mainstream and “alternative” real estate sectors
and economic and social infrastructure investment
markets to provide a form of benchmarking.

This has led to discussions with a number of our
larger housing association partners, with JLL, with
our lenders and also directly with the RSH who are
seeking to promote better contingency planning as
opposed to commenting formally on lease-length
or constitution.

The principal objectives of this review have been
two-fold. Firstly, to set out more formally the steps
we would take in the very unlikely event that the
formal action of government or local authorities
reduces directly the ability of the RPs to meet their
obligations under the leases with the Company even
when all forms of mitigation are taken into account,
This has commonly been referred to as a “Force
Majeure Clause”. Secondly, to ensure that where
it is deemed appropriate, there should be a form
of “collar” and “cap” on the growth of indexation
under the leases,

Both of these are common features that are seen
regularly in other real estate sectors, do not affect
valuations and are acceptable to stakehalders.

From our discussions we expect that changes such
as these will be appreciated both by the RPs and by
the RSH.



Working with Care Providers

The provision of care within the properties owned
by the Company is a fundamental driver of both
the demand for supported housing and the ability
of properties to be defined as exempt Specialist
Supported Housing. This in turn affects the rent
and service charge levels that can be achieved and
sustained.

Understanding the extent and nature of the care
delivery is therefore an essential part of the overall
due diligence process. We have placed considerable
focus during the year on our relationships with care
providers, as they are a key driver of the success of
our strategy.

During the vyear, where we have been offered
properties in which the extent of the care provision
(typically measured by care hours per person per
week) is in our view limited or marginal, we have
declined those properties on the basis that their
status as exempt Specialist Supported Housing
could be open to chailenge in the future.

The provision of specialist care is a fragmented
sector with many small, local providers and a
limited number of larger nationai providers. The

Company has sought to focus as far as possible on
the larger providers which have depth of experience
and a wide network.

The Company does not enter into any agreements
directly with care providers (these are between the
care provider and the Local Authority, Housing
Association and the tenant) and has no legal or
other responsibility for the delivery or quality of
care. That said, we take an active interest in the
quality and amount of care that is being provided
as part of our asset selection, due diligence and
monitoring activities.

For-profit care providers within the top 251
(measured by number of beds) in the UK (as at
December 2018) out of approximately 20,000 care
providers are responsible for the delivery of care
into 34% of the Company’s portfolio. By comparison,
those same care providers are responsible (as at
December 2018) for 11% of the beds within the
overall adult specialist healthcare sector in the UK.

This is a result of our strategy of seeking to work
with these larger, more mature care providers
whilst not ignoring the merits of the best of breed
local organisations.

In addition, the Company also works with five out of the top 10 care providers who represent 20% of the

Company’s portfolio.

20% of Civitas Portfolio*

" This does not include Nationai Care Group who provide care services to
approximately 12% of the Civitas properties, but who operate via a number
of individual care providers that are separately represented in league tables,

but if taken together would maost probably be in the top 10,

PRIORY

ADULT CARE

voyagecar@‘f

Carch

FosterCare

& Exemplar

Faeahe o

Civitas Social Housing PI.C
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The benefits of building long-term strategic
relationships with care providers are clear:

iy They assist with the eight-step due
diligence programme and with our ongoing
monitoring

it They have also become a catalyst for the
arigination of high-quality properties both
built and to be acquired on completion

itiy Most importantly, they provide a high
standard of care for our tenants.

Social Impact [nvesting

The Investment Adviser with its Head of Impact
Investment has, since PO, established embedded
processes that evaluate the social impact that
is delivered from its investment activities and
portfolio, with a particular focus on helping tenants
achieve improved outcomes in their lives, providing
vaiue for money, cost saving for the public purse
and increasing the quality and availabiiity of sociai
housing.

Specialist social impact consultants, The Good
Economy, have recently published an independent
Annual Impact report which confirms that Civitas
is “an authentic impact investor according to the
IFC Principles for Impact Management”,

This report has been based on extensive research
undertaken by The Good Economy incorporating
site visits, meetings with tenants and their families
and discussions with local authority commissioners,
RPs, care providers and the RSH.

This report formed the backbone for a further
independent study by the Manchester-based
consultants, the Social Profit Calculator, with the
aim of attaching a monetary value to the social
impact and value for money that are driven from
the Company’s portfolio. The study is based upon
government metrics utilising HM Treasury’s Green
Book data.

The study considered a wide range of tenants
in detail and measured the monetary value
from improved health and wellbeing, reduced
isolation and improved relationships, the benefits
of independent living and in certain instances
the enhanced opportunity for employment and
atraining qualifications.

They reported that Civitas’ portfolic has produced
£114 million of social value - including £59 million
each vear of direct savings to the taxpaver, and
when projected over the course of our leases
it equates to more than £1 billion in potential
savings to the taxpayer. This reflects the fact that
enabtling disabled people to live in the community
is not anly much better for their wellbeing, but also
significantly cheaper for the taxpayer than other
forms of accommodation such as institutions.

The Social Profit Calculator and The Good Economy
Partnership calculated that £3.50 is created in
social value for every £1 which Civitas has invested.

Further information on the social value created
by the Civitas portfolio can be found in the Good
Economy’s latest Impact Report, available on the
Company’s Website®.

Looking Ahead: The Investinent Pipeline
The Investment Adviser has been successful in
estabiishing strategic relationships with a wide
range of property vendors including national care
providers, regional and local developers, RPs and
Local Authorities.

Having led the completion of aver 100 transactions,
the Company enjoys a leading reputation in the
markets in which it operates and has demonstrated
a proven ability to design and structure transactions
that have led to successful acquisitions for the
Company.

*hittpfcivitassociathousing. comifinvestorrelations/reports-and-publications

Civitas Sgcial Housing PLC
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As we mention at the start of the report, the
Investment Adviser’s team has been expanded so
that it now includes senior professionals with both
operational care and social housing experience in
addition to skills in real estate, investment funds
and corporate finance,

This combination has been noted by asset owners,
sector professionals and advisers and has resulted
in an increase in the range and depth of projects
to which we are introduced, often being the first
or onlv party to be approached. The sources of
potential property purchases, both built and in
construction to be acquired on completion, is today
being obtained from four main sources:

+ National and Regional Care Providers

+ Housing Associations and Local Authorities
» Regional and Local Specialist Developers

+ National and Regional Charities

» Other Private Sector owners of Assets

As a result of the Company’s strategic relationships
in the sector, the investment pipeline continues
to build and today stands at ¢.£210 million of
potential transactions in various stages of due
diligence. These transactions, which are subject
to the successful completion of the Company’'s
due diligence process, reflect non-legally hinding
commitments and are representative of the
Company’s reputation in the sector. The first of
these transactions are likely to be able to complete
in the next couple of months.

As part of the Company’s plans to seek further
diversification within the specialist areas of the
regulated social housing sector, we anticipate that,
in due course, pipeline transactions will include not
just homes for tenants with care needs based around
learning disability and autism, but also dependency,
homelessness, key worker and the desire to release
hospital beds through the use of “step down”
accommodation associated with the NHS. In each
case, the Company intends to operate the same or
similar model with a Housing Association entering
into a long-term arrangement with the Company
and providing on the ground property services.

We are also exploring opportunities in both
Scotland and Northern Ireland.

We look forward to continued progress over the
forthcoming months as we continue to implement
our strategy and grow and diversify our portfolio.

Civitas Housing Advisors Limited
Investment Adviser
21 June 2019

Civitas Social Housing PLC -



Extract from The Good Economy Impact Report, 2019

The full Impact Report can be found at www.oivitassocialhousing.com

THE
GOCGD
ECONOMY

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Good Economy's second annual impact review shows that Civitas has
established itself as a leading investor in Specialist Supported Housing [SSHI.
We consider Civitas to be an authentic “impact investor” according ta the
International Finance Corporation [JFC) Principles for impact Management.

The Good Economy [TGE) finds that Civitas has:

£ Aclearintent to deliver a sociat goal,

€} Apimpact thesis based on which we can assess 1ts Contribution ta impact.

Q An impact measurement and management systemn linked to improvement in social outcomes.

Civitas’ social objective is to help tack!e the chronic shortage of social housing in the UK, with a current focus on specialist
supported housing for vuineranle adults.

Cvitas uses the capital raised from investors to buy properties ant leases therm to registerad housing prawviders to manage, with
rental Income used to fund investor returns. Lease-based models are associated with impact nisks as described by the Regulator
for Social Housing {RSHI in their sector risk prafile addendum report, published in April 2019, We believe Civitas recognises these
risks and challenges. We positively view the oroactive steps that Civitas is taking to work with its Registered Providers (RPs] and
the RSH to mitigate risks and build RP capacity.

Dverall, Civias is growing at what we considar io be a steady rate Wilh o Lutal of 501 propsrties, supporiing 4072 vuinerable
adults as of 31 Marcr 2018, a 18% growth in tenancies since September 2018, Also, for the first time, the social velue of Civitas™
portfolio has been reviewed in monetary terms and besn independently calculatad to have produced E114 million of sociat value.
In our view, they are also making a positive contribution to \mproving the supply and quality of social housing that in turn has the
potential to make an important difference to the lives of vulnerabie people.

Impact Assessment Methodology

TGE assesses the social mpact of Civitas against its impacst thes:s. Civitas’ social abjective 1s to increase the availability and
quality of social housing, particularly for vulnerable people. By doing this they aim to improve the health and well-being of their
tenants while proviging good value for money for the public purse. Civitas also has a responsibility 10 manage theirimpact nsk
i.e. the ngk of negative effects.

This report relies on the fallowing:

© An analysis of the standardised cutput data related to the key social perfarmance indicators for the Civitas
portfolio collected by Civitas Housing Advisors, the investment manager.

@ Interviews with key stakeholders including representatives of the RSH, partner RPs and Care Providers [CPs).

€& The results of an outcornes survey for Civitas tenants developed in partnership with Social Profit Cafculator (SPCI.

@ SPC's calcuiations of the social value created by the Civitas portfalio.

In thrs year's Impact Repart TGE has despened its assessment of three areas: the outcomes for individuals, managing impact nsk

and the additionality prowded by Civitas. We have alse considered the fund's contribution to the UN Sustainable Development
Gpoals - See Appendix L

Civitas Sotial Housing PLC - s
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Social Impact Analysis and Results

increase the sunply of speoialist housing
Over the last B months Civitas has added 89 homaes to ther portfobio. Of these homes 529 have been brought into SSH faf the first
time. In our opimon ths provides high additionality for the Fund.

tmprove the quality of speciaiist housing

Civitas take proactive efforts to monitor and improve the guality of their housing. As welt as identifying a scheme of work 1o
upgrade their properties at the point of purchase, they have recruited a Director of Asset Management to oversee portfolio
management,

Inzrease Tenant Weli-being

From the tenant outcomes survey, our main findings wera;

© Support workers reparted that over half [53%) of their resident’s mental health has got better since moving
into their accammodation.

& U6% of residents coming fram hospitats into a Civitas property have seen an imirovement in their mentai heaith.

© 63% of residents were “mostly” or "completely” satisfied with their physical healtr, and 47% have said that this
is &n iImprovement s:nce Moving inte their accommodation.

& 90% of family members stated that the resident’s motivation and aspirations have increased since moving into
speciabst accommaodation.

Vaiue for money

Dur work with SPC alsc enabled us to calculate the mongtary va:.ue of the Social Ympact, Economic Benefits and Fiscal Savings
gsnerated by the Civitas portfolio. The findings show that slongside the £45.7 mitlion annual rent that the Fund currently
generates, It also produces a total social value of £114 m:ll-on per year, including £69 rnillion of direct savings to the taxpayer,

Mitigating Impact Risks

We have found that Civitas are actively engaging with the RSH and are taking steps to better support their RPs and the wider
sector. $pecifically, they are working to-

& Update their leases - aiming to give RPs more financial security

& Capacity buila within RPs - including helping RPs recruit new board members

© Creating a Community Interest Company [CIC) to act as a $SH support body.

Social Partners

Alongside its core business, Civitas is continuing ta grow its social partnerships. As well as furthering their relatienships with Crisis
and The Choir with No Name, Civitas now also supports The House of St Barnabas and Wemen in Social Housing (WISH].

Wider Impact Investment Role

Cnitas are also using their position as leaders in the market to promote impact investing more widely. They have recently
become a founding member of The Big Exchange [TBE]. TBE is an online platfcrm that enables impact investors 1o easily find
regulated retail funds that aim to deliver a financial return alongside dasitive social of enviranmental Impacts,

Civitas Spcial Housing PLC -
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Conclusions

In cur conclusions we have chcsen to high'ight three areas which TGE regards as strergths of Civitas and three aress where
there is raom for iImprovement aiong with associated mitigants.

Strengths

o A stated commitment te transparency ard public accountability,

0 Demorstrated improvements in botr the supply and guality of Specialist Supparted Housing.

9 The positive support of the well-being of vulnerable adults. with particularly positive outcomes
far those who were previously in lang-term hospital care.

Potential Weaknesses and Mingaung Actions

o The spemialist RPs in the SSH sector can have inited mstitutional capacity ang financial strengtin.
A critical success facter for Civitas is partnenng with high quality, fit for purpose RPs and Care Prowiders. The risks arising from
the potential failure of an RP are partially mit.gated by Civitas’ capacity-buitding work with existing RPs, careful due giligence
ana selection of new partner RPs. Civitas have regular monitaning visits with all RPs and have the abiuty to re-assign leases to
areplacement RP in the case of non-performance.

o Civitas 15 working within the newly developing SSH secior where in some localities there s lack of effective
communications and policy aligrment between local authonties, RPs and care providers e.g. on rent setting.
TGE considers Civitas to have a leadership and staff team with the appropriate skills and knowledge required te build trusted
relations and views positively the recent additions to the team, including individuals with a background in sociat housing and
cate, |t has the potential to use its snvestor role to support improved communications and efficacy within the SSH market.

€ Civitas has no contyactual Teistianship with s ultimate beneficiznas - the often vulnerable adults that live
in Svitas-owned properties,
We weicome Civitas' openness to carrying aut a tenant survey this year, This provides Civitas with direct information from
tenants, care workers and their families. )t is important that Civitas also moniicrs the quality of RPs tenant engagement and
communications and their complance with the Tenant lnvalvement and Empowerment Standard.

TGE believes that private investrent can piay an impartant role in supporting the needed growth and development o social

housng, Including specialist supported housing. There have been some concerns rajsed by market comimentatars as to the

efficacy of models such as this one. It 1s our view that Civitas is committed to continu:ng to develop -ts approach and tackle

emergent challenges as they arise. We believe it 1s making a positive contribution To the development of & sustainable social
housing sector that benefits those mos! in need.

Civitas Social Housing PLC - v
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4 / CASE STUDIES

REGISTERED PROVIDER ~ NEW WALK CIC, STOCKTON

Investment date
July 2077

Totai potentiat number of residents
184

About New Walk

New Waik CIC was established to pravide supported accommodation to people at risk af homelessness in Stcokton and
surrounding areas in the North East. They take on all their tenants from Local Autherity referrais. When 2 resident joins New
Walk they typically start'n a supported housing scheme with shared facilities, before moving into a shared flat, and then
finally transitioning inta an independent home. Throughout their stay at New Walk, tenants have access 10 8 mentar (o provide
whatever support is needed to become mare Independent and be able to sustain their tenancies. Initially this may involve
helping with practical tasks e.g. cleaming, and applying for housing benefits - but over time it will transition into encouraging
residants to take the next step towards independence, including tinding stable wiployment.

Civitas and New Walk

Befaore Civitas purchased the 41 properties In July 2017, these homes were owned by various landlords. By buying the property and
leasing it back to New walk, Civitas is able to ensure the property remains in the social sector for the lang term. it also frees up
capital for New Walk so they have the potential to huy mare properties and scaie up their impact.

RESIDENT STORY — TERRY" _

Civitas $ocial Housing PLC "
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NEW SPECIALIST HOUSING - BEAMISH COURT, OLLERTON

investment date

@ TRJ Niw Ontober 2017

Total potential number of residents
12

ttinghamshlre

Ahout Beamish Court

Beamush Court is a set of 12, newly built, specialist supported flats in Nottinghamsnire. Comgpleted in May 2018, these homes
were purpose tuilt as SEH, Trinity Housing Association are the RP and responsible for carrying out repawrs ang |ooking after the
building. Eden Futures are the Care Provider, they work closely with the local authonty to ensure resident’s move 1n comfortably
and have appropriate care and support.

Ayear on from when the development was completed, the property currently houses 10 residents who have come from a mixture
aof specialist facilities, a local brain injury hospital, residential care homes and a low secure mental health hospital. One of these
residents, Adie, maved ta Beamish Court 1n May 2018, This scheme has delivered much needed housing for vulnerable people
and has enabled people to move along the care pathway and gain greater independence.

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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CARE PROVIDER - AUTISM PLUS, THORNE

tnvestment date
Juno 2018

k‘%fouﬁsm plus

Total potential number of residents
a4z

About Autism Plus

Autism Plus was founded over 30 years ago by a number of parents who bought a large property and convertez it Into a
residential Care home far their chldren with autism. Since then it has evslved into a CQC regulated Care Provider, supporting
adults and young people with autism, learning disabibties and mental health conditians,

The arnigsnal house - Thorne House - and six other Autism Plus properties wefe sold to Ciwitas in June 2018, At this point most
of those houses were converted from residential Care homes to Specialist Supported Housing :SSHI with Fzlcon Housing
Assocralion caming in as the RR. Throughout this process Autism Plus ensured that the same suppaort waorkers were allocated
to tenants to minimise change and uncertainty.

Autism Plus have seen distinct advantages to the homes changing fram residential care to 88H: They don't need fo worry
about the hassle and administration of maintaining the property and therr tenants now have secured long-term tenure intherr
accorrmodation,

HESIDENT STI}RY BACHEL

mmx ﬁas i‘Jesef! ba&eﬁwmmziam Pm fnr ouar 20 ysars,
and has lived in several different hol Qveriimé Rachel

- hasbetome’ whod fdep dent. Her hitiatty fiving in’ he -

* Residential Accammiripdation she has ammmﬂytmmcmd o
E ans r:fme nwitamned suppmea hguses. .

‘Aspsst x;fmm mﬁre md&qsendenr Eacmi it Wamem ;
4p mekiy st;appmg 1rips by | hems{f she vuiumem atal Nurmng
Hum ol aiunldmpnin c:en:ar, ahd she also has & paid job
wastsmg upata mmmumzy caté. She réaily vilugs the staff .
'memimrs same ccfw!wm have WMWM her iamvsr 11‘1 yea:s. R

,-"%iagké[lgéal<n§{ﬂﬁz :
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| has become more independent. After initiatly
{ Accommodation she has gradually
one of the Civitas-owned supported houses.

(@ Over time Rache
living in the Residentia
transitioned to

Aubiem Ples
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

Sustainability

The business model of the Company is to provide
long-term suitable homes for individuals with care
needs; acting in a sustainable manner is key to
achieving this aim. The property of the Company
is tailored to meet the future needs of the tenants
and where required is actively asset managed to
provide long-term functionality and value to the
wider community.,

Environment

During the investment due diligence phase the
Company looks closely at the environmental impact
of each potential acquisition, and encourages
a sustainable approach for maintenance and
upgrading properties. Through partnering with
specialist developers and vendors, the high
standards the Company expects from each
investment in the supported housing sector is
adopted by other companies in the sector.

Once within the portfolio, the properties of
the Company are actively asset managed,
with opportunities to improve environmental
efficiencies factoring heavily in addition to other
asset management initiatives.

The Board has considered the requirements to
disclose the annual quantity of emissjons; further
detail on this is included in the Report of the
Directors.

Diversity

The Company does not have any employees or office
space, as such the Company does not operate a
diversity policy with regards to any administrative,
management and supervisory functions.

Whilst recognising the importance of diversity in
the boardroom, the Company does not consider it to
be in the interest of the Group and its shareholders
to set prescriptive diversity criteria or targets. The
Board will continue to monitor diversity, taking
such steps as it considers appropriate to maintain
its position as a meritocratic and diverse business.

The Board’s objective is to maintain effective
decision-making, including the impact of
succession planning. All Board appointments wiil
be made on merit and have regard to diversity
regarding factors such as gender, ethnicity,
skills, background and experience. See Corporate
Governance Statement on page 73.

The Board comprises three male and one female
non-executive Directors.

The boards of directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries each comprise up to four male and no
female directors.

Human Rights

The Company is not within the scope of the Modern
Slavery Act 2015 because it has not exceeded the
turnover threshold and is therefore not obliged to
make a slavery and human trafficking statement.

The Board is satisfied that, to the best of its
knowledge, the Company’s principal advisers,
which are listed in the Company Information
section, comply with the provisions of the UK
Modern Slavery Act 2015.

The Company’s business is solely in the UK and
therefore is considered to be low risk with regards
to human rights abuses.

Community and Employees

The Company’s properties enable the provision
of care to some of the most vulnerable people
in the community, ensuring safe and secure
accommodation, tailored to meet individual care
needs. The Company has increased the provision of
Specialist Supported Housing, bringing new supply
to the sector and providing homes to over 4,000
peopie. All of the Company’s properties enable the
provision of high levels of care, generating local
jobs and helping to support local economies.

The Company has no emplovees and accordingly no
requirement to separately report on this area.

The Investment Adviser is an equal oppoertunities
employer who respects and seeks to empower each
individual and the diverse cultures, perspectives,
skills and experiences within its workforce.

Civitas Social Housing PLC



Investment Objective and Policy

Market drivers

Business Model

1 Z
An individual with The Local Authority
care requirements designs a care package,
requires a home, identifying a care
provider and property
for the individual,

Investment Objective

The Company’s investment objective {s to provide
shareholders with an attractive level of income,
together with the potential for capital growth from
investing in a portfolio of social homes, which
benefits from infiation adjusted iong-term leases
or occupancy agreements with Registered Providers
and to deliver, on a fully invested and geared basis,
a targeted dividend yield of 5% per annum, which
the Caompany expects to increase broadly in line
with inflation,

Investment Policy

The Company’s investment policy is to invest in
a diversified portfolio of social homes throughout
England and Wales. The Company intends to
meet the Company’s investment objective by
acquiring, typicaily indirectly via Special Purpose
Vehicles {"SPVs”), portfolios of social homes and
entering into long-term inflation adjusted leases
or occupancy agreements for terms primarily
ranging from 10 years to 40 years with Registered
Providers, where all management and maintenance
obligations will be serviced by the Registered
Providers. The Company will not undertake any
development activity or assume any development
or construction risk. However, the Company may
engage in renovating or customising existing
homes, as necessary,

The Company may make prudent use of leverage
to finance the acquisition of social homes and to
preserve capital on a real basis.

Civitas Sotist Housing PLC -

The care provider
is paid full amount
for the care package
and pays rent 1o the
Housing Association.

3b. 4.
The Housing The Housing
Association s paid Association pays
the rent directly Civitas the rent.

The Company is focused on delivering capital growth
and expects to hold its Portfolio over the long term
and therefore it is unlikely that the Company will
dispose of any part of the Portfolio. In the unlikely
event that a part of the Portfolio is disposed of,
the Directors intend to reinvest proceeds from
such disposals in assets in accordance with the
Company’s investment policy.

Investment restrictions
The Company invests and manages the Portfolio
with the objective of delivering a high quality,
diversified Portfolio through the following
investment restrictions:

+ the Company only invests in social homes
located in England and Wales;

» the Company only invests in social homes
where the counterparty to the lease
or occupancy agreement is a Housing
Association or Local Authority;

+ no lease ar occupancy agreement shall be
for an unexpired period of less than 10 years,
unless the shorter leases or occupancy
agreements represent part of an acquisition
of a portfolio which the Investment Adviser
intends to reorganise such that the average
term of lease or occupancy agreement is
increased to 15 years or above;
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the aggregate maximum exposure to any
single Local Authority or single Housing
Association is 25% of the Gross Asset Value,
once the capital of the Company is fully
invested;

no investment by the Company in any single
geographical area, in relation to which the
houses and/or apartment blocks owned by
the Company are located on a contiguous
or largely contiguous basis, exceeds 20% of
the Gross Asset Value of the Company on a
Portfolio NAV basis;

the Company only acquires completed
social homes and will not forward finance
any development of new social homes;

the Company does not invest in other
alternative investment funds or closed-end
investment companies; and

the Company is not engaged in short selling.

The investment limits detailed above apply at the
time of the acquisition of the relevant investment
in the Portfolio once fully invested. The Company
would not be required to dispose of any investment
or to rebalance the Portfolio as a result of a change
in the respective valuations of its assets.

Gearing limit

The Directors seek to use gearing to enhance equity
returns. The level of borrowing is set on a prudent
basis for the asset class and seeks to achieve a low
cost of funds, whilst maintaining the flexibility
in the underlying security requirements and the
structure of both the Portfolio and the Company.

The Company may, following a decision of the Board,
raise debt from banks and/or the capital markets
and the aggregate borrowings of the Company is
always subject to an absolute maximum, calculated
at the time of drawdown, of 40% of the Gross Asset
Value,

Civitas Social Housing PLC --
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Deht is secured at asset level, whether over a
particular property or a holding entity for a
particular series of properties, without recourse
to the Company and also potentially at Company
level with or without a charge over the Portfolio
(hut not against particular assets), depending on
the optimal structure for the Company and having
consideration to key metrics including lender
diversity, cost of debt, debt type and maturity
profiles. Otherwise there will be no cross-financing
between investments in the Portfolio and the
Company will not operate as a common treasury
function between the Company and its investments.

Use of derivatives
The Company may choose to utilise derivatives for
efficient portfolio management. In particular, the

Key Performance Indicators ("KPis”)

fMeasure Fxptanaton

Directors may engage in full or partial interest rate
hedging or otherwise seek to mitigate the risk of
interest rate increases on borrowings incurred in
accordance with the gearing limits as part of the
management of the Portfolio.

Cash management

Until the Company is fully invested, and pending
re-investment or distribution of cash receipts, the
Caompany invests in cash, cash equivatents, near
cash instruments and money market instruments.

REIT status

The Directors conduct the affairs of the Company
50 as to enable it to remain qualified as a REIT for
the purposes of Part 12 of the CTA 2010 (and the
regulations made thereunder).

Result

Capital deployed Target of deploying the C share proceeds by

31 Decarmber 2018 or earhar.

increase in [FRS and
Portfolio NAV per
share

Targot to achieve capital appreciation whilst
mamntaining a fow risk strategy from enhancing
the quality of cash flows from investments, by

The C share proceeds were matenally deployed by
31 December 2018. Total of £754.8 million invested
10 31 March 2019, rapresenting Ordinary and C share
equity and debt

IFRS NAV increase of 9.1p per share or 9.3% from PO,
Portfoiio MAY increase of 21.1p per share or 21.5% from
IPO.

physical improvement of properties and by creating a

significantly diversified, high-quality sortfoha.

Dividend per share

year growing broadly in line with irfiaton.
Number of Local
Authorities, Housing
Associations and care
providers

lonce tully nvested) with no more than 25%
exposure to any one Local Authority or single
Housing Association and no more than 20%
exposure to any single geographical area, once
capital of the Company is tully invested.

Loan to Gross Asssts

Targeting 5p per share per annum for the second

Target risk mitigation through a diversified portfolio

Target debt drawn of 35% of gross assels.

Dividends of b per share declared for the calendar year
31D ber 2018

As at 31 March 2018,

. 157 Lacal Authorities

15 Housing Associations

113 care providers
The Company’s largest single exposure is to Falcon
Housing Association and currently stands at 21%. The
largest geographical concentration is in the South West,
heing 14.7%.

the

Leverage as at 31 March 2019 of 22% of gross assets
with facilites in pegotation to achieve the target in due
Course.

Civitas Social Housing PLC - .



._SWcaepon 2-58 - . o et

Alternative Performance Measures
EPRA

The Company is a member of the European Public Real Estate Association (“EPRA”). EPRA has developed and
defined the following performance measures to give transparency, comparability and relevant of financial
reporting across entities which may use different accounting standards. The Company is pleased to disclose the
following measures which are calculated in accordance with EPRA guidance:

EPRA

Parformance 31 March 31 March

Measure Definition EPRA Porformance Meussure 2018 2018

Earmings Earnirgs from operatonal activites. EPRA Earmings £16,212,0600 £6,293,000

EPRA Earnings per share thasic} 3.81p 1.80p
EPRA Earr‘mgs per share (d\!uted) 3.63p 144p

EFRA NAV Net Asset Vaiue adjusted to mclude propert\es EPRA Net Asset Value ESS'B 508 000 E668 147000
and other investment interest at fair value EPRA NAV per share {diluted) 107.08p 105.54p
and to exclude cartain items not expected to
crystalise ir a lorg-term investment property
busmess mode!

EPRA NNNA\/ EPRA NAV ad]usted 10 mclude the fa r values EPRA NNNAY £665 858 000 £667435 OOO
of iy financial mstruments, (i) debt and (i) EPRA NNNAY per share (diluted) 106.97p 105.43p
deferred taxes

EPRA Net mmal Anrualised remal income based on the r.asl“ EPRA Net Imtial Yield 5.27% 527%

Yield rents passing at the balance sheet date, less
nor-recoverablie property operating expenses,
diwvided by the market value ©f the property
wnh (es‘umaled} puchasers COSIS

EPRA Topped Thls measure Incorporates an ad|ustmem to EPRA ‘Topped-up” Net Initial Yield 5.27% 5.27%

up’ NIY the EPRA NIY In respect of the expiration of
rent-free-periods (or other unexpired lease
incertives such as discounted rent penods and
stepped rems)

EPF.’A Vacancy Estimated Market Re ﬂa! VaJue ERV”) of EPRA Vacarcy Rate O% 0%

Rate vacancy space divided by ERV of the whole
portfoho

EPRA Costs Admlmstrdtwe & Dpera‘urg cosls (|nciudmg & EPRA Costs Hatlo 26.95% 47B0%

Ratio excluding costs of direct vacarcy! divided by EPRA Costs Ratio texcluding direct 26.98% 4780%

gross rental Income.

vacancy costs)

For detailed workings reconciling the above measures to the IFRS results please see Appendix 1 to these

financial statements on pages 147 and 148.

Adiusted

Purformance 31 March 31 March

Moasure Defimitio: Performance Maasure 2619 2018

Porttolio NAY  IFRS NAV adjuzted to reflect investment Portfolioc NAV £741,170,000 £398,505,000
property valued on a portfolio basis rather Portfolio NAV per share 119.07p 113.86p
than onan \r‘di\ndual asset bams

Company Company Spemﬂc Earmngs Meas.;re whlch Adjusted Earnings £22,612,000 £9 085 DOU

Adiusted adds back the finance costs assoc ated with Adjusted Earnings per share 3.63p 2.60p

Earnings the € share financial habity

For detailed workings reconciling the Portfolio NAV to the IFRS results please see note 16 to these financial
statements. For detailed workings reconciling the Company Adjusted Earnings to the IFRS results please see
Appendix 1 to these financial statements on pages 147 and 148.
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Principal Risks and Risk Management

The Board considers that the risks detailed below are the principal risks facing the Group currently, along with
the risks detailed in note 33 to the financial statements. These are the risks that could affect the ability of the
Company to deliver its strategy. The Board confirms that the principal risks of the Company, including those
which would threaten its future performance, selvency or liguidity, have been robustly assessed throughout
the year ended 31 March 2019, and that processes are in place to continue this assessment. Further detail of
risk management processes that are in place can be found in the Corporate Governance Statement on pages
74 and 75. The principal risks and uncertainties relating to the Group are regularly reviewed by the Board
along with the internal controls and risk management processes that are used to mitigate these risks. The

principal risks and management of those risks are described below:

VERY HIGH
HIGH
x
MEDIUM
A
=
= Low

VERY

UNLIKELY

UNLIKELY

POSSIBLE

VERY
LIKELY

LIKELY

PROBABILITY

Principal risks and uncertainties

1. Strategy and
compelitivenoss risks

impact

How managedrmitigated

The Company and its operations
are subject 1o laws and reguiations
enacted by nationai and local
governments and government
policy.

Any charge in the laws, regulations
and/or government policy affecting
the Company and 1ts operations
may have a material adverse effect
on the abiity of the Company to
successiully pursue its investrent
policy and meet its nvestment
objective and on the vakie of the
Company and the sharas.

Jmpast:
‘Very high -

The Company focuses on niche real
astate sectors whare it helieves the
regulatory framework to be robust,

The Board obtains regular updates
from professional advisers to
manitar developments in ragulatfon
and legisiatior,

2. Srrategy and
competitivenass risks

Impact

How managed mitigated

As a result of competition from
other purchasers of social housing
properties the Company's ability
1o deploy capital effectively within
& reasonabile timelrame may be
restricted or the ret inttial yields
at which the Company can acguire
properties may decline such that
target returns cannot be met.

The rate of caputal deploymert
would drop, decreasirg returns 1o
shareholders,

The Company has strong links with
vendors and a robust pipeline of future
acquisitions.

The Board regularly reviews the
pipeline of potential acquistions.

Civitas Socisl Housing PLC -
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3 mwvestment
management risk

tpact

How managedmitigated
a 2]

Terant defaultirg under the terms
of a lease.

Loss of remtal income i the short
term

The portfoho is diversified to reduce
the impact of default. Extensive
dilgerce 1s undertaken or all
assets, which is reviewed and
crallenged by the Board

The Board 1s provided with regular
updates on the tenants waith any
concerns raised for discussion.

4. investmant
management risk

impact

How managsdmitigated

The value of the investments made
by the Company may change from
time to fime according to a variety
of factors, including movemaents in
interest rates and in inflation and
general market pricing of similar
investments

The valuation of the Company's
assets would fali decreasing the Net
Asset Value of the Compary.

The Company invests in proects
with stable predetermined,
long-term leases n place with CPI
or CP1 pius 1% indexation and 1ts
strateqgy is rot focused on sale of
properties.

The Board receves regular updates
on factors that mightimpact
investment valuations.

5 Investment
management risk

Inpact

How managedimitigated

Due diligence may not reveal all
facts and circumstances that may
be relevant in connection with an
nvestment and may not prevent
an acquisition being matenally
overvalued or rental streams being
at nisk

The Company would over pay

for assets imparing shareholder
value, reducing rental income and
therefore returns.

The Company undertakes detaled
due diligence on the properties,
their conditior, the proposed rental
levels — benchmarking agairst
comparable schemes using both
external consultants where required
and its own proprietary database

- and on the Registered Providers
ard care prowiders mvolved in

gach property to ensure that the
purchase price 1S robust.

The Board considers the due
diligence undertaken when
approving acquisitions.

6. Investment
management risk

impact

How managed/mitigaled

Loss of key staff at the Investment
Adviser.

Megative Investor sentument leading
toy a reduction in share price.
Reduction in ability to source off
market and favourable deals.

The Board considers the risk of
the Irvestment Adviser losing key
staff and the succession plans the
Investment Adviser has in place.
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T oinvestmant
management risks

impact

How managed, mitigated

Failure to monitor that contingent
aclivities are compleied by the BPs
or other parties.

Daterioration in the underlying
quakty, and therefore vajue of the
Company's property.

Contingent actions are regularly
monritored and followed up.

The Board s kept appraised of any
breach of lease obligations.

8. investment
managemant risks

impact

How managed/mitigated

Lack of availsbility for debt fmancing
or other capital.

The rate of capital deployment
would drop decreasing returms to
shareholders.

The Company has strong links with
a number of banks and other capital i
S50Urces.

The Board closely considers
any new ioan facility proposed
and receves regular updates
on debt and capital markets for
consideration.

9. Accounting, Tegal
and reguiatory risks

impact

How managed mitigaled

if the Company fails to remain
nualified as a BEIT, it rental income
and gains will be subject 1o UK
corporation tax.

Any charge 1 the tax status of the
Cornpany of any of its underlying
invesunents or In tax legistation

or practice {including in relation

10 taxation rates and allowances)
or in accounting standards could
adversefy affect the wnvestment
return of the Compary.

The Company has been struciured
1o be BET compliant and
contfinuolsiy monitors the tax status
using professional taxation advisers.

The Board has ultimate responsibiiity
for ensuring adherence to the UK
REIT regime and monitors the
compliance reports provided fy the
Investment Adviser and other third
party providers.

10, Ooerational risks,
inciuding cyber crime

fmpact

How managed/mitigated

Disruption to, or failure of the
systems or gengral operations of
third party providers couid prevent
accurate reporting and monitoring
of the Company's financial position,
This Includes the risk of cyber crime
and potential threat 1o security.
business continuity and reputation,

Loss of aperational capabilities,
ootental regulator actions.

Alternative service providers would
need to be identfied and actvities
transferred.

The Board monitors the services
provided by the 'nvestment Agviser
and other service providers and the
key elements which are designed
to provide effective internal cortrol.
All service providers are required 10 :
have robust IT security and disaster
recovery contingency plans in
place,
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Going Concern and Viability Statement

Going Concern

The Board regularly reviews the position of
the Company and its ability to continue as a
going concern in Board meetings. The financial
statements set out the current financial position of
the Company.

The Company acquires high-quality property
with a particular focus on property providing care
for the long term. The properties acquired are on
long-term full repairing and insuring leases in a
sector of the market with very high levels of need.
The cost base of the Company is proportionately
low compared to revenue and there is a high level
of certainty over cost to be incurred. On this basis
the Company is expected to be viable well beyond
the five year terms considered in the Company’s
testing below.

The cash balance of the Company at the period end
was £47 million that was readily available for use. As
stated in the Strategic Report, the Investment Adviser
has identified a pipeline of £210 million of attractive
investment opportunities for acquisition cver the
next twelve months. The Board has evaluated the
financial position of the Company and is confident in
the ability to raise debt and/or equity capital in order
to fund the Company’s investments for the next 12
months and to facilitate the payment of dividends to
shareholders at the targeted rate. Based on this, the
Board believes that the Company is in a position to
manage its financial risks.

The Directors believe that there are currently no
material uncertainties in relation to the Company’s
ability to continue in operation for a period of at
least 12 months from the date of approval of the
Company’s financial statements and therefore have
adopted the going concern basis in the preparation
of the financial statements.

Viability Statement

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance
Code (2016) (“Code™), the Directors present the
Company’s viability statement which summarises
the results of their assessment of the Company’s
current position, its principal risks and prospects
over a period to 31 March 2024, The prospects were
assessed over a five vear period, acknowledging that
the Company will have its first continuation vote in
2022, for the following reasons:

Civitas Social Housing PLL

iy the Company's long-term forecast
covers a five year period;

ity the length of service level agreements
between Housing Associations and care
providers is typically five years; and

ifi1 the Company’s leases are typically 25
years on fully repairing and insuring
leases enabling reasonable certainty of
income over the next five years.

The Company’s five year forecast incorporates
assumptions related to the Company's investment
strategy and principal risks from which performance
results, cash flows and key performance indicators
are forecast. The principal risks are set out on pages
52 ta 54. Of these risks, those which are expected to
have a higher impact on the Company’s longer-term
prospects are those related to future government
housing policies. The Company has considered
its strategy over a longer term and, in light of the
inherent demand for the Company's properties and
the vulnerable nature of the ultimate tenant, the
risk of change in future housing policy is considered
to be limited. The principal risks are mitigated
by the Company’s risk management and internal
contro) processes which function on an ongoing
basis. The Board, via delegativn tu the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee, monitors the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control processes on an ongoing basis.
The monitoring activities are described in the
Report of the Audit and Management Engagement
Committee on page 68 and include direct review
and challenge of the Company’s documented risks,
risk ratings and controls and review of performance
and compliance reports prepared by the Company's
advisers and the independent external auditors.

In accordance with the Code, the Board of Directors
has carried out a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Company, inciuding those
that would threaten its business model, future
performance, solvency and liquidity.

Where appropriate, the Company’s forecasts are
subject to sensitivity analysis which involves
applying severe conditions and flexing a number
of assumptions simultaneously. The sensitivities
performed were designed to provide the Directors
with an understanding of the Company’s
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performance in the event of severe but plausibie
scenarios, taking full account of mitigating actions
that could be taken to avoid or reduce the impact or
occurrence of the underlying risks outlined below:

« Reduction in availability of suitable assets
for acquisition

» Tenant defaulting under a lease

« Lack of availability for debt financing or
other capital

= Deterioration in economic outlook, such
as any negative impact due to Brexit, ar
change in government housing policy which
could impact the fundamentals of the social
housing sector, including a negative impact
on valuations and rental uplifts.

The remaining principal risks and uncertainties,
whilst having an impact on the Company’s business,
are not considered by the Directors to have a

reasonable likelihood of impacting the Company’s
viability over the five year period, therefore the
scenarios outlined above are the only ones that
have been specifically tested.

Based on the results of their assessment, the
Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company will be able to continue in operation and
meet its liabilities as they fall due ogver the five year
period of their assessment.

Approval of Strategic Report
The Group Strategic Report was approved by the
Board and signed on its behalf by:

Michae! Wrobel
Chairman
21 june 2019

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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Board of Directors

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the period and up to the date of signing the financial

statements were:

Michael Wrobel
(Chairman)

Michaet has over 40 years’ experience in the
investment industry. He is the non-executive
Chairman of The Diverse Income Trust plc. He
serves as a trustee director of the BAT UK Pension
Fund and Chair of the Deutsche Bank UK Pensicn
Schemes, a trustee of the Cooper Gay (Holdings)
Ltd Retirement Benelits Scheme and aclys as an
investment adviser to a number of Rio Tinto pension
schemes. Formerly, Michae) was a portfolio manager
at Morgan Grenfell and Fidelity International.
He was then responsible for Fidelity’s European
Instituticnal business and later, Gartmore’s retail
business. He also worked at F&C Management. He
was a non-executive director of JPMorgan European
Smaller Companies Trust plc and NatWest Smaller
Companies plc. He has served as a director of
the Association of Investment Companies, the
[nvestment Management Association and CoFunds.
Michael has an MA in Economics from Cambridge
University.

Michael was appointed to the Board on 24 October
2016 and has served as Chairman since his
appointment.
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Caroline Gulliver
(Director)

Caraline is a chartered accountant with over
25 vyears’ experience at Ernst & Young LLP,
latterly as an executive director. During that
time before leaving in 2012, she specialised in
the asset management sector and developed
extensive experience of investment trusts. She was
a member of various technical committees of the
Association of Investment Companies. She is alsoa
non-executive director and audit committee chair
for JP Morgan Global Emerging Markets Income
Trust plc, International Biotechnology Trust
plec and Aberdeen Standard European Logistics
Income PLC.

Caroline was appointed to the Board on 24 October
2016 and has served as Audit and Management
Engagement Committee Chairman since her
appeintment.
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Peter Baxter
(Director)

Peter has 30 years’ of experience in the investment
management industry. He is a managing
director of Praject Snowball LLP, a social impact
investment organisation, and a trustee of Trust
for London, a charitable foundation. He is also a
non-executive director of BlackRock Greater
European Investment Trust plc. Previously he
served as Chief Executive of Old Mutual Asset
Managers (UK) Ltd, and has worked for Schroders
and Hill Samuel in a variety of investment roles.
He holds an MBA from London Business School
and is an associate of the Society of Investment
Professionals.

Peter was appointed to the Board on
24 October 2016 and is the Senior Independent
Director.

Alastair Moss
(Director)

Alastair is a property development lawyer with over
20 years’ experience and is Co-Head of Real Estate
at Memery Crystal LLP. He has been a non-executive
director of Notting Hill Genesis Trust and formerly a
member of the Audit and Treasury Committees. He
is a former Chairman of the Investment Committee
of the City of London Corporation and chaired
its Property Investment Board. He is currently
Chair of the City’s Planning and Transportation
Committee and, as such, is the political lead for
all built environment and transport matters in
the Square Mile. He is a Trustee of Marshall’s
Charity. He has also been a board member of Scho
Housing Association and was a member of the Area
Board of CityWest Homes. He was a Councillor at
Westminster City Council for 12 years, including
his tenure as Chairman of the Planning & City
Development Committee.

Alastair was appointed to the Board on
24 October 2016.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their Report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Principal Activities

The Company is a closed-ended investment
company and is a REIT which was incorporated
in England and Wales on 29 September 2016. The
Company is the holding company of a number of
subsidiaries and its Ordinary shares were admitted
to trading on the Main Market of the London Stock
Exchange on 18 November 2016. The Company
invests in properties or property holding SPVs,
either directly or via a wholly-owned subsidiary,
in accordance with the Company’s investment
abjective and policy.

Business Review

A review of the business and future developments
is contained in the Chairman’s Statement and
Investment Adviser's Report. The principal risks
and uncertainties are detailed on pages 52 to 54.
See note 35 for a summary of the post balance sheet
events.

Results and Dividends
The results for the year are shown on page 98.

The following dividends were paid on the Ordinary
shares during the year:

First dividend on 1.25p paid on

the Ordinary shares 8 Jure 2018
Sacand dividend on 1.25p paid on

the Ordinary shares 7 September 2018
Third dividend on 1.25p paid on

the Ordinary shares 30 November 2018
Fourth dividend on 1.1p paid on

<he Ordinary sharas 11 January 2019
Fifih dividend on 0.34p pad on

whe Ordinary sharss

28 February 2019

The following dividends were paid on the C shares
during the year:

First dividend on 1.13p paid on
shares 8 June 2018

Second dividend on 0.75p paid on

the C shares 7 Septernber 2018

Third dividend on 0.75p paid on

the C shares 30 Novemnber 2018

Fourth dividend on 0.67p pard on

the C shares 1 January 2019
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Since the year end, the Company has declared the
following dividend:

Quarnerly dividend on
the Crdinary shaies

1.325p paid on
7 June 2019

No final dividend is being recommended on the
Ordinary shares.

Directors

The members of the Board are listed on pages
60 and 61. They all served throughout the period
under review.

The Board consists solely of non-executive
Directors, each of whom is independent of the
Investment Adviser and the Company itself. The
Company has no executive directors or employees,

In accordance with Board policy, all Directors will
retire and, being eligible, will stand for re-election
at the AGM.

Performance evaluationofthe Board, its Committees
and individual Directors is carried out in accordance
with the procedure set cut on page 73,

No Director is under a contract of service with
the Company and no Director or any persons
connected with them had a material interest in the
transactions and arrangements of the Company.
Details of Directors’ remuneration are described
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages
78 to 82.

The beneficial interests of the Directors in the
securities of the Company are set out in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Through their Letters of Appointment, the
Company has provided indemnities to the
Directors, to the extent permitted by law and the
Company’s Articles, in respect of liabilities which
may arise in connection with claims relating
to their performance or the performance of the
Company whilst they are Directors. There are no
other qualifying third party indemnities in force.

The general powers of the Directors are contained
within the relevant UK legislation and the
Company’s Articles of Association. The Directors
are entitled to exercise all powers of the Company,
subject to any limitations imposed by the Articles



Cotporite GManu 59-98

of Association or applicable legislation. As set
out on page 84, the Articles of Association may
only be amended by way of a special reselution of
shareholders.

Capital Structure

Changes to share capital

On 21 December 2018, the 302,000,000 C shares in
issue were converted into Ordinary shares at the
ratio of 0.902190 new Ordinary shares for every C
share. As aresult, 272,461,380 new Ordinary shares
were issued.

Following the conversion, and as at 31 March 2019,
the Company had 622,461,380 Ordinary shares in
issue, none of which were held in treasury.

Shareholder authorities to issue or buy back
shares

At the AGM held on 2 August 2018, the Directors
were authorised to issue equity securities up to an
aggregate nominal amount of a) £350,000 (being
approximately 10% of the issued Ordinary share
capital) and b) on and from the C Share Conversion
Date, £652,000 (or such lesser amount that would
be equal to 10% of the then nominal capital of
the aggregate Ordinary shares in issue following
conversion of the C shares into Ordinary shares.

The Company was also authorised to disapply
pre-emption rights in respect of equity securities
and to issue equity securities for cash up to an
aggregate nominal amount equal to:

iy until the C share conversion date), £350,000
(heing approximately 10% of the issued
ordinary share capital of the Company at
the date of this Notice); and

ii} on and from the C share conversion date,
£652,000 {or such lesser amount that would
be equal to 10% of the then nominal capital
of the aggregate Ordinary shares in issue
following the conversion of C shares into
Ordinary shares).

No Ordinary shares have been issued under these
authorities. Ordinary shares would be issued at
a price of not less than the Net Asset Value per
existing Ordinary share at the time of issue.

At the AGM held on 2 August 2018, the Company
was authorised to buy back shares as follows:

iy up until the C Share Conversion Date,
52,465,000 Ordinary Shares (approximately
14.99% of the Company’s issued Ordinary
Share capital as at 29 June 2018);

iiy on and from the C Share Conversion
Date, 97,734,800 Ordinary (approximately
14,99% of the anticipated Company’s
issued Ordinary Share capital immediately
following the conversion of C Shares
into Ordinary Shares as at the C Share
Conversion Date); and

i1} 45,269,800 C Shares (approximately 14.99%
of the Company’s C Shares as at 29 June
2018).

No shares have been bought back under these
authorities.

The Directors will consider repurchasing Ordinary
shares and/or C shares (when in issue) in the market
if they believe it to be in shareholders’ interests as
a whole and as a means of correcting any imbalance
between supply of and demand for the Company’s
shares.

The authorities to issue and buyback shares will all
expire at the 2019 AGM, at which renewal will be
sought.

Shareholder Rights

Ordinary shares

Each Ordinary shareholder is entitled to one vote on
a show of hands and, on a poll, to one vote for every
Ordinary share held. The right to attend and vote at
general meetings of the Company may be restricted
where a shareholder has failed to provide information
pursuant to a notice served under section 793 of the
Companies Act 2006. The Ordinary shares carry the
right to receive dividends declared by the Company
from the Ordinary share pool.

Provided the Company has satisfied all of its
liabilities and subject to the rights conferred by
any C shares in issue at that time to participate in
the winding-up, the holders of Ordinary shares are
entitled to all of the surplus assets of the Company.

C shares (when in issue)

The C shares are a class of convertible, non-voting
preference share listed from time to time on the
standard segment of the Official List and admitted
to trading on the London Stock Exchange’s Main
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Report Of the Dil‘ectors continued

Market. The restriction on voting is required in
order to protect the Company’s status as a REIT,
but, when in issue, C shareholders will be able to
vote in relation to matters that affect the rights of
C shares.

The C shares have the right to participate in a
fixed, cumulative preferential dividend payable
out of the C share Pool of 3% per annum (hased on
a C share price of 100 pence), pro-rated up to the
Calculation Date for the Conversion of the C shares
into Ordinary shares. The Company is not entitled
to reduce or forgo or waive the payment of these
fixed rate dividends, The C shares will convert into
Ordinary shares following the earlier of (i) 90%
of the net issue proceeds have been invested or
committed and (ii) 14 November 2018. The Ordinary
shares arising on conversion of the C shares will
rank pari passu with the Ordinary shares then in
issue for any dividends or distributions declared,
made or paid on the Ordinary shares by reference
to a record date falling after the Conversion Date.

The C shares do not carry a right to participate
in dividends declared by the Company out of the
Ordinary share Pool or income in excess of the fixed
dividend out of the C share pool.

On a winding-up of the Company, whilst there are
C shares remaining in issue, the net assets and
liabilities of the Company attributable to the C
shares shall be divided amongst the holders of the
C shares pro rata to their respective holdings of C
shares (up to a maximum of the amount subscribed
for the C shares).

Transfers of shares

There is no restriction on the transfer of the
Company’s shares other than transfers to more
than four joint transferees and transfers of shares
which are not fully paid up or where the transferor
or any other person whom the Company reasonably
believes to be interested in the transferor’s shares
has been duly served with a notice pursuant to
section 793 of the Companies Act 2006.

There are ne special rights with regard to control
attached to securities; and no agreements between
holders of securities regarding their transfer known
to the Company.
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Management Arrangements

Investment Adviser

The Board has appointed the Investment Adviser,
Civitas Housing Advisors Limited {“CHA"), to provide
investment advice and to manage the property
portfolio and the associated day to day activities,
including management of tenanted properties and
marketing activities. CHA is a specialist investor in
social housing property, with a focus on specialist
social housing and has extensive experience in social
housing and real estate investment.

The duties of CHA include the sourcing of investment
opportunities that meet the investment criteria of
the Company, controlling the acquisition of approved
properties, management of all properties within the
portfolio, ongoing monitoring of the properties and
tenants, maintaining compliance with all relevant
rules and regulations, and providing marketing and
investor relations services to the Company.

Details ofthe fees payable to the Investment Adviser
are described in note 8 of the financial statements.
With effect from 26 April 2019, the basis for the
calculation of the Investment Adviser’s fees was
changed from Portfolio NAV to IFRS NAV.

The agreement with CHA is terminable on not fess
than 12 months’ notice by either party, such notice
not to expire earlier than 30 November 2021. On
26 April 2019, the earliest expiry date was extended
to 30 May 2024,

The performance of the Investment Adviser has
been reviewed on an ongoing basis throughout the
period by the Board at its gquarterly meetings. A
formal annual evaluation is also carried out by the
Audit and Management Engagement Committee.
The Board considers a number of factors including
investment performance, the gquality and quantity
of investment opportunities presented, the skills
and experience of key staff and the capability and
resources of the Investment Adviser to deliver
satisfactory performance for the Company. The
Board is satisfled with the performance of the
Investment Adviser and considers its continued
appointment to be in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders.
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AIFM

G10 Capital Limited ("G10” or the “Investment
Manager”) has been appointed as the Company’s
AIFM. The AIFM performs certain risk management
functions for the Company and oversees the
portfolio management functions exercised by
CHA. G10 is part of the Luxembourg-based IQEQ
Group, which provides professional services to
the finance industry. The AIFM receives an annual
management fee of 0.03% of the total Company NAV
for its services, subject to a minimum of £96,000 per
annum and the agreement is terminable on three
months’ notice by either party.

Depositary

Indos Financial Limited were appointed as the
Company’s Depositary with effect from 1 June
2018. The Depositary provides cash monitoring,
safekeeping and asset verification and oversight
functions as prescribed by the AIFMD. The
Depositary receives an annual fee of £59,000,
plus 0.006% of the first £350 million of any new

equity capital raised and 0.003% of further equity
thereafter, subject to a maximum of £150,000 and
the agreement is terminable on six months’ notice
by either party.

Administrator

The Company has appointed Link Alternative
Fund Administration Limited (“Link”) as the
Administrator of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to undertake the accountancy and other
administrative duties of the Company. Link is a
specialist administrator for investment funds,
providing support functions and expertise tailored
for this industry.

The Administrator receives a fixed base fee for the
provision of its services to the Company as well as
an entitlernent to additional variable fees for duties
relaling to corporate activities. This agreement
was put in place effective from 1 March 2018. The
agreement is terminable on 90 days’ notice by either

party.
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The duties of the Administrator include the
maintenance of all Company and subsidiary books
and records, excluding those maintained by the
Investment Adviser, monitoring compliance with
applicabie relevant rules and regulations and other
administrative duties as required.

Secretary

Link Company Matters Limited were appointed
as Secretary to the Company with effect from
28 March 2018. The Secretary receives a fixed fee
for the provision of its services to the Company. The
agreement is for an initial period of one year and
thereafter will automatically renew for successive
periods of 12 months, unless terminated by either
party on at least six months’ notice.

Review of service providers

The performance aof the service providers is
reviewed on an ongoing basis throughout the
period by the Audit and Management Engagement
Committee. The Committee considers a number of
factors including performance of duties, the skills
and experience of key staff, and the capability
and resources of the service provider to deliver
satisfactory performance for the Company. The
Board is satisfied with the performance of the
service providers appointed by the Company and
considers their continued appointment to be in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Substantial Shareholdings

At 31 March 2019 the Company had been informed
of the following disclosable interests in the share
capital of the Cempany:

Number of  Percentage of

Ordinary Total Voting
shares Rights
Investec Wealth
& Irvestment 62,203,795 9.99
East Ruding of Yorkshire
Council 38,043,800 6.1

On 9 May 2019, investec Wealth & Investment
advised that their holding had increased to
62,252,177 shares, 10.00% of total voting rights.

On 16 May 2019, Investec Wealth & Investment
advised that their holding had decreased to
62,205,728 shares, 9.99% of total voting rights.

No other changes have been notified between
31 March 2019 and the date of this report.
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On 28 May 2019, Investec Wealth & Investment
advised that their holding had increased to
62,393,335 shares, 10.02% of total voting rights.

Continuation Vote

The Company has an unlimited life. However,
in accordance with its Articles, the Board will
propose an ordinary resolution for the Company
to continue in its current form to shareholders at
the annual general meeting to be held in 2022,
and at the annual general meeting held every five
years thereafter. If the resclution is not passed,
the Directors intend to formulate proposals to
be put to shareholders within six months of such
resolution being defeated for the reorganisation or
reconstruction of the Company.

Listing Rule 9.8.4

The listing rule 9.8.4 outlines a series of
requirements for listed companies to disclose
certain items. The Directors confirm that there are
no disclosures required in reiation to Listing Rule
9.8.4,

Financial Instruments

The Company utilises financial instruments in
its operations. The financial instruments of the
Company at 31 March 2019 comprised trade
receivables and pavables, other debtors, cash and
cash equivalents, non-current borrowings and
current borrowings.

Other than its fixed interest rate debt facilities, it is
the Directors’ opinion that the carrying value of all
financial instruments on the statement of financial
position is equal to their fair value.

No financial instruments of the Company were
hedged during the period ended 31 March 2019, For
a more detaiied analysis of the Company’s financial
risk management please refer to note 33 of the
financial statements.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The Board has considered the requirements to
disclose the annual quantity of emissions in
tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent for activities
for which the Company is responsible. The Board
has considered the requirement and believes that
the Company has no reportable emissions far the
period ended 31 March 2019, and therefore has
not included the information or methodologies for
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the calculation of emissions. The Company has no
reportable emissions as the Company’s properties
were the lessees’ responsihility under the terms of
their fully repairing and insuring leases, rather than
that of the Company; emissions produced from
either the registered office of the Company or from
the offices of other service providers are deemed to
fall under the responsihility of other parties; and
the Company has not leased or owned any vehicles
which fall inside the scope of the GHG Protocol
Corporate Standard.

Charitable Donations

In addition to its direct investments, the Company
plays a broader part within the communities in
which it works. Whilst recognising the practical
limitations that all financial investors face, Civitas
supports voluntary organisations that are active
within the broader housing and homelessness
environment. Civitas also intends, as part of its
broader financial and operational reporting, to
provide a commentary on the positive social change
and impact that results from the investments that
have been made.

The following charitable donations were made
during the vear.

» The Company is continuing its partnership
with the national homelessness charity,
Crisis, for a third year, and has committed
to a contribution of £40,000 to support its
“Renting Ready” programme across the UK
in 2019,

+ A donation of £15,000 was made to the
Choir with No Name to support the Choir
with No Name across various locations. The
Choir with No Name works with homeless
and disadvantaged people and was founded
on the premise that singing and taking part
in group activities helps to build skills and
confidence for the future. From an initial
choir in North London in 2008, the Choir
with No Name has expanded to Birmingham,
South London and Liverpool.

+  £5,000 was donated to OPOKA, a charity
aimed at helping woman that have been the
victims of domestic abuse.

+ As part of the continuing efforts to
build and contribute to partnerships
with organisations that share Civitas’s

objectives, a donation of £5,000 was made
to the House of St Barnabas, the first not-
for-profit members’ club run to support
people affected by homelessness,

» A donation of £3,000 was made to sponsor
Women in Social Housing, a membership-
based network for women who worked
across the UK social housing market.

Auditor
So far as each of the Directors is aware at the time
this report is approved:

« there is no relevant audit information of
which the Company’s auditor is not aware;
and

« the Directors have taken all steps they
ought to have taken to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and
to establish that the auditor is aware of that
information.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has expressed its
willingness to continue to act as auditor of the
Company and a resolution for their re-appointment
will be proposed at the 2019 Annual General
Meeting.

Approval
The Report of the Directors has been approved by
the Board.

By order of the Board

Link Company Malters Limited
Secretary
21 June 2019
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Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

Introduction

The Audit and Management Engagement
Committee (the “Audit Committee”) oversees the
financial reporting process for the Company, with
consideration of the internal contrals and risk
management of the Company, and oversight of the
Company’s compliance with accounting standards
and regulatory requirements.

Composition

The Audit Committee is chaired by Caroline Gulliver.
The other members of the Audit Committee are
Michael Wrobel, Alastair Moss and Peter Baxter.
The Audit Committee operates within written
terms of reference as determined by the Board.
The Board considers that at least one member has
recent and relevant financial experience and that
the Committee as a whole has competence relevant
to the sector in which the Company operates.

Meetings

The Audit Committee meets twice a year; on both
occasions part of the meeting will be held with the
external auditor without the Investment Adviser
present.

Responsibilities of the Audit Committee:
The principal functions of the Audit Committee are
to:

+ oversee the financial reporting process for
the Company and monitor the integrity of
the financial statements of the Company,
including the Company’s compliance
with accounting standards and regulatory
requirements;
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= review and monitor the internal financial
control and risk management systems of the
Company;

=  monitor and review annually whether an
internal audit function is required,;

+ review the Investment Adviser’s

whistleblowing arrangements;

= approve the appointment, re-appointment
or removal of the external auditor and
approve their remuneration;

+ manage the relationship between the
Company and the external auditor, including
reviewing their independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process;

« develop and implement a policy on the
engagement of the external auditor to supply
non audit services; and

« review and monitor the performance of,
and contractual arrangements with, the
Investment Adviser, the AIFM and other
service providers,

It is within the Audit Committee’s terms of reference
for its members to seek independent professional
advice, at the Company’s expense, as required in
the furtherance of its duties.

During the period, the Audit Committee carried out
its duties as specified in the terms of reference, as
follows:

= discussed and agreed the scope of the audit
and the audit plan with the external auditor;

» agreed the remuneration of the external
auditor;

» reviewed the half year and annual financial
statements and discussed the results of the
audit with the external auditor;

« reviewed the internal controls of the
Company and the Risk Matrix, which
is reviewed by the Committee on a six-
monthly basis and carried out an assessment
of the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems;
the Committee has not identified nor been
advised of any failings or weaknesses which
it has determined to be significant.
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+ reviewed the performance of the [nvestment
Adviser, the AIFM and other key service
providers and made a recommendation
to the Board about their continuing
engagement; and

+ during the period the Directors
monitored the Company’s whistleblowing
arrangements. No incidents were raised
during the period.

Performance Evaluation
The process for the evaluation of the performance of
the Committee is disclosed on page 73.

Significant Financial Reporting Isspe -
Valuation of Investment Property

After discussion with the Investment Adviser, the
Audit Committee has determined that the keyrisks of
misstatement of the Company financial statements
retate to the valuation of investment property.

This issue was discussed with the Investment
Adviser during the period. It was also discussed with
the external auditor at the time the Audit Committee
reviewed and agreed the external auditor’s company
audit plan, when the external auditor reviewed the
half vyear interim financial statements and also at
both the planning stage and conclusion of the annual
audit of the financial statements.

As further explained in note 15 to the financial
statements, the approach adopted by the Company
is to recognise investment property at fair value,
with the fair value of the property being based on
valuations performed by independent valuers, Jones
Lang LaSatle Limited. The revaluation of investment
property gave rise to net revaluation gains of
£3.7 million in the period.

The Investment Adviser confirmed to the Audit
Committee that the method of valuation has been
applied consistently throughout the year and none
of the Audit Committee’s enquiries, nor the auditor’s
work, identified any errors or inconsistencies
that were material in the context of the financial
statements as a whaole,

The Investment Adviser also informed the Audit
Committee that during the course of the period
the external valuer was regularly challenged by

the Investment Adviser on the assumptions used
in the valuation of the Company's portfolio, to
ensure robust and appropriate methods were being
applied. The Audit Committee discussed the areas of
challenge with the Investment Adviser to determine
that sufficient challenge had been made,

Misstatements

The Investment Adviser confirmed to the Audit
Committee that they were not aware of any material
or immaterial misstatements made intentionally
to achieve a particular presentation. The external
auditor reported to the Audit Committee that they
had found no material misstatements in the course
of their work. The Audit Committee confirms
that it is satisfied that the auditor has fulfilled its
responsibilities with diligence and professional
scepticism.

Conclusion in respect of the Annual Report

and Financial Statements

Having reviewed the presentations and reports
from the Investment Adviser and having consulted
where necessary with the external auditor, the Audit
Committee is satisfied that the financial statements
appropriately address the critical judgements and
key estimates, both in respect of the amounts
reported and the disclosures. The Audit Committee
is also satisfied that the significant assumptions used
for determining the value of assets and liabilities
have been appropriately scrutinised and challenged
and are sufficiently robust. Accordingly, the Audit
Committee has concluded that the financial
statements, taken as a whole, are fair, balanced
and understandable, and has recommended their
approval to the Board on that basis.

Auditor Appointment and Tenure
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was appointed as
auditor of the Company at the Annual General
Meeting held on 17 May 2017, and their audit of
these financial statements is the third audit they
have carried out since appointment. Sandra Dowling
is the senior statutory auditor. In accordance with
the CMA Order, a competitive tender must be
carried out at least every ten years. The Company
is therefore required to carry out a tender no
later than in respect of the financial year ending
31 March 2027.

Civitas Sosial Housing PLC -
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Assessment of the Effectiveness of the
External Audit Process

As part of its annual review of the effectiveness of
the external audit process, the Audit Committee
obtained assurance on the quality of the external
audit from its own evaluation, the audit feedback
documentation and from correspondence and
discussions with the audit partner and the
Investment Adviser and the Administrator. The
Audit Committee con¢luded that this was sufficient
information on which to conclude that the external
audit process is effective.

The Audit Committee assessed the external
auditor’s independence, qualifications, relevant
experience, and effectiveness of audit procedures.
In advance of each audit, the Audit Committee
obtains confirmation from the external auditor
that they remain independent and that the level of
non-audit fees are not an independence threat.

Non-audit Services

The Audit Committee has put into place a policy for
the provision of non-audit services to the Company
by the auditor. The general intention of the Audit
Committee is to avoid the provision of non-audit
services by the auditor, other than the review of
the half vearly report, as these have the potential
to compromise the independence of the auditor.
The Audit Committee acknowledges that in certain
situations it may be appropriate for the external
auditor to provide such services to the Company
for a variety of reasons including cost effectiveness,
depth of knowledge and the on-going relationship
between the Board and the external auditor. All
non-audit fees are approved by the Audit
Committee in advance. Where non-audit fee levels
are considered significant, the Audit Committee
considers the appropriateness of the independence
safeguards put in place by the auditor.

The total fees pald to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
during the period, net of VAT, totalled £221,000
(2018: £563,000, of which £41,000 (2018: £290,000)
was received for non-audit services. The non-audit
service fees related to the review of the half yearly
report and the review of the C share conversion
calculation.
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Note 9 to the financial statements details
all services provided and total fees paid to
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for the financial
year ended 31 March 2019. The Audit Committee
considers PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP to be
independent of the Company.

Re-appointment of the Auditor

Taking into account the performance and
effectiveness of the Auditor and the confirmation
of their independence, the Audit Committee has
recommended to the Board that a resolution to
reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as the
Company’s auditor be put to the shareholders at
the next AGM.

CMA Order

Civitas Social Housing PLC has complied throughout
the year ended 31 March 2019 with the provisions
of the CMA Order.

Caroline Gulliver

Chairman, Audit and Management
Engagement Committee

21 June 2019
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Corporate Governance Statement

Background

The FCA Listing Rules and Disclosure Guidance
and Transparency Rules require listed companies
to disclose how they have applied the principles
and complied with the provisions of the corporate
governance code to which the issuer is subject. The
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
("UK Code™), as issued by the Financial Reporting
Council (FRC™ in April 2016, are applicable
to the year under review and can be viewed at
www. frc.org.uk.

The Board has considered the principles and
recommendations of the AIC Code of Corporate
Governance (“AIC Code”) by reference to the
AlC Corporate Governance Guide for Investment
Companies ("AIC Guide”). The AIC Code, as
explained by the AIC Guide, addresses all the
principles set out in the UK Corporate Governance
Code, as well as setting out additional principles
and recommendations on issues that are of specific
relevance to the Company as an investment
company. The FRC has confirmed that AIC member
companies who report against the AIC Code and
who follow the AIC Guide will be meeting their
obligations in relation to the UK Code and the
associated disclosure requirements of the FCA, The
AlC Code can be viewed at www.theaic.co.uk.

The Board considers that reporting against the
principles and recommendations of the AIC
Code, and by reference to the AIC Guide (which
incorporates the UK Code), provides shareholders
with full details about the Company’s corporate
governance compliance,

During February 2019, the AIC issued a revised Code
of Corporate Governance (“Revised AIC Code”). The
Company will be required to report against the
Revised AIC Code in next year's Annual Report and
Accounts.

Statement of Compliance

Except as set out below and on the following pages,
the Company has compiied with the provisions of
the AIC Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2019.

The UK Code includes provisions relating to:
+ the role of the chief executive; and

« executive directors’ remuneration.

The Board considers these provisions are not
relevant to the position of the Company, being
an externally managed investment company.
In particular, all of the Company’s day-to-day
management and administrative functions are
cutsourced to third parties. As a result, the
Company has no executive Directors, employees
or internal operations. The Company has therefore
not reported further in respect of these provisions.

The Board

The Board is comprised of four non-executive
Directors. All the Directors are independent of
the Investment Adviser and the AIFM. They are
responsible for the strategy and oversight of the
Company. The Board has adopted a schedule
of matters reserved for decision by the Board,
including inter alia, determining the Company’s
Investment Objective and Policy and gearing and
dividend policies.

They ensure that risks are effectively managed
through robust policies and procedures, supported
by the right values and culture. The Board's primary
focus is the sustainable long-term success of the
Group to deliver value for shareholders, taking into
account other stakeholders.

The Board is responsible for investment decisions,
other than to the extent delegated to the AIFM and/
or the Investment Adviser, and the appocintment,
supervision and monitoring of the Company’s
service providers, including amongst others the
AIFM and the Investment Adviser. The Board is
responsible for the interim and annual financial
statements of the Company and, in ¢onjunction
with the AIFM will also approve the periodic
calculation of the Net Asset Value.

The Chairman was independent of the Investment
Adviser at the time of his appointment and is
deemed by the remaining Directors to continue
to be independent and to have no conflicting
relationships. Mr Wrobel is an Independent
Investment Adviser to Rio Tinto plc. He considers
himself to have sufficient time to commit to the
Company’s affairs.

Peter Baxter has been appointed as the Senior
Independent Director. He provides a channel for
any shareholder concerns regarding the Chairman
and takes the lead in the annual evaluation of the
Chairman.

Civitas Social Housing PLC -
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The Board has no set policy for the length of tenure
of Directors and it is Board policy for all Directors
to stand for re-election annually. Recommendation
for re-election will be on an individual basis
following rigorous review. Directors are appointed
under letters of appointment, copies of which are
available for inspection at the registered office of
the Company and at the AGM.

How the Board Operates

The Board meets formally at least quarteriy, but also
meets on an ad hoc basis, typically every month, for
the purpose of considering potential transactions
and associated due diligence. The Board will meet to
consider and if appropriate approve the acquisition
of properties recommended by the I[nvestment
Adviser. The Board of Directors has final approval
for all acquisitions.

For the purpose of monitoring the portfolio, the
Board receives periadic reports from the AIFM and
the Investment Adviser, detailing the performance
of the Company. The Board delegates certain
responsibilities and functions to the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee, which has
written terms of reference.

To assist the Board in the day-to-day operations
of the Company, arrangements have been put in
place to delegate authority for performing certain
of the day-to-day operations of the Company to the
AIFM, the Investment Adviser and other third-party
service providers, such as the Administrator and the
Company Secretary. The Board and the Investment
Adviser operate in a supportive, co-operative and
apen environmernt.

The Company maintains Directors’ and Officers’
liability insurance on behalf of the Directors at the
expense of the Company. The Company has also
indemnified the Directors in accordance with the
provisions of the Articles of Association.

Independence of Directors
The independence of all Directors is reviewed as
part of the annual assessment of the Board.

The Board has determined that each Director
remains independent of character and judgement
and is free of any relationships or circumstances
that threaten their independence of the Company
or its Investment Adviser. In particular, none of the
Directors have ever been executives of the Company
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or the investment Adviser, have had a material direct
or indirect relationship with the Company or its
stakeholders, have received disproportionate fees,
have close family relationships with stakeholders
or represent significant sharehoiders.

Board Meetings

A formal agenda is approved by the Chairman and
circulated by the Company Secretary in advance
of each meeting to the non-executive Directors
and other attendees. A typical agenda includes: an
analysis of portfolio performance and exposure; an
update on the investiment pipeline; the Company’s
financial performance; updates on investor
relations; statutory and regulatory compliance; and
any corporate governance matters. Relevant papers
on the items included con the agenda are circulated
in good time to the members of the Board, in
advance of the meeting.

The investment Adviser attends the Board meetings
together with representatives from the AIFM
and Company Secretary. Representatives of the
Company’s other advisers are alsc invited to attend
Board meetings from time to time.

The numbers of Board and Audit and Managemeint
Engagement Committee meetings held during
the year ended 31 March 2019 along with the
attendance of the Directors were:

Board of Directors Audit Committes

Entitied Entitted

1o Attend Alended (o Atdend Anendeg
Michael Wrobel 13 13 2 2
Peter Baxter i3 i3 2 2
Carolire Gulliver 13 13 2 2
Alastair Moss 13 12 2 2

Mr Moss was unable to attend one meeting that had
been called on less than 24 hours’ notice due to a
prior engagement,

Audit Committee

The Company operates through the Board and
its main Board committee, namely the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee (“Audit
Committee”). The Board evaluates the membership
of its Board committees on an annual basis. All
Directors are a member of the Audit Committee.
Caroline Gulliver, the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, is a Chartered Accountant and is
considered to have recent and relevant financial
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experience. The Audit Committee as a whole has
competence relevant to the real estate jinvestment
company sector. The Chairman is a member of
the Audit Committee, but does not chair it. His
membership of the Audit Committee is considered
appropriate given the small size of the Board and
the Chairman’s knowledge of the financial services
industry. A copy of the terms of reference of the
Audit Committee is available from the Secretary.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a vear
and reviews the scope and results of the external
audit, its cost etfectiveness and the independence
and objectivity of the external auditors, including
the provision of non-audit services.

The Audit Committee also reviews the terms of
the AIFM agreement and the Investment Adviser
Agreement, and examines the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control systems and the
performance of the AIFM, Investment Adviser,
Administrator, Depositary, Company Secretary and
Registrar, and other service providers.

The Report of the Audit Committee is set out on
pages 68 to 70.

Remwuneration and Nomination Commitiee
Given the size of the Board and the nature of the
Company, it is not deemed necessary to form a
separate remuneration or nomination committee.
The Board as a whole will assess the remuneration
and composition of the Board and whether it has
the correct balance of skills, experience, knowledge
and independence to operate effectively.

The Boardrecognisesthebenefitsof diversityandhas
adopted a diversity policy. All Board appointments
will be made on merit and have regard to diversity in
relation to factors such as gender, ethnicity, skills,
background and experience. The Board does not
consider it be in the interests of the Company and
its shareholders to set prescriptive diversity criteria
or targets, but will continue to monitor diversity
and take such steps as it considers appropriate to
maintain its position as a meritocratic and diverse
business. See also the Strategic Report on page 47.

A procedure for the induction of new Directors has
been established, including the provision of an
induction pack containing relevant information
about the Company, its processes and procedures
and meetings with the Chairman and relevant
persons at the Investment Adviser.

The Board undertakes an annual internal performance
evaluation by way of questionnaires designed to assess
the strengths and independence of the Board and the
Chairman, individual Directors and the performance
of the Board’s Committee. The areas considered are:

« The frequency and effectiveness of Board
and committee meetings;

+ The size, composition and relevant
experience of the Board;

= The independence and performance of the
Directors and the Board; and

« The training requirements of each Director,

The evaluation process is conducted by the
Chairman. Peter Baxter, as the Senior Independent
Director, leads the appraisal of the Chairman.

The Company seeks to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills and experience that are
complementary and enable the Board to operate
efficiently.

All of the Directors have assessed their other
ongoing commitments and are satisfied that they
can commit the time necessary to execute their
duties to the Company.

No significant issues were identified during the
evaluation process and it was agreed that all
Directors should be recommended for re-election
at the AGM.

The Company has begun a search to identify a fifth
Director, to add further depth to the Board and to
help with succession planning.

Conflicts of Interest

All Directors have a statutory responsibility to
avoid situations where a conflict of interest exists,
or may exist, between the Company and an entity
that the director is either directly or indirectly
involved with. The Board has procedures in place
to identify potential conflicts and resolve any that
should arise. In the case of a conflict of interest,
the nature and extent of the conflict are assessed
against the existing internal control structure, and
the results of this assessment and actions taken to
resolve the conflict are documented in the minutes
of the relevant Board meeting. No conflicts of
interest arose during the period.

Civitas Sacial Housing PLC
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Health and Safery

Health and safety is of prime importance to
the Company and is considered equally with all
other business management activities to ensure
protection of stakeholders, be they tenants,
advisers, suppliers, visitors or others. The Board
regularly discusses health and safety issues with
the [nvestment Adviser.

The Company is committed to fostering the highest
standards in health and safety as it believes that all
unsafe acts and unsafe conditions are preverntable.
All our stakeholders have a responsibility to
support the aim of ensuring a secure and safe
environment, and all ocur stakeholders are tasked
with responsibility for achieving this commitment.

Risk Management and Internal Control
The Directors are responsible for the systems
of internal control relating to the Company
and its subsidiaries, and the reliability of the
financial reporting process and for reviewing their
effectiveness, ensuring that the risk management
and control processes are embedded in day-to-day
operations.

The Audit Committee hasinplace atormal provedus e
for performing an ongoing robust assessment of
the Group’s risk management and internal contro!
systems. The procedures are designed to identify,
evaluate and monitor the principal and other risks
most likely to impact the Group. A Risk Matrix has
been established against which the risks identified
and the controls in place to mitigate those risks can
be monitored. The risks are assessed on the basis of
the likelihood of them happening, the impact on the
business if they were to occur and the effectiveness
of the controls in place to mitigate them.

In arriving at its judgement of what risks the
Company faces, the Board has considered the
Company’s operations in the light of the following
factors:

« the nature and extent of risks which it
regards as acceptable for the Company to
bear within its overall business objective;

- the threat of such risks becoming reality;

« the Company’s ability to reduce the
incidence and impact of risk on its
performance; and
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» the cost to the Company and benefits
related to the Company and third parties
operating the relevant controls.

The risk matrix is reviewed twice a year by the Audit
Committee and at other times as necessary. The
principal risks facing the Company are set out on
pages 52 to 54 of this Annual Report, together with
the processes applied to mitigate those risks,

The Audit Committee is mindful of these key risks
as well as considering evolving risks such as cyber
security and political risk which have the potential
to affect the Group. The Audit Committee ensures
that the Board takes appropriate advice and debates
the issues facing the Group.

At each Board meeting, the Board receives reports
from the Investment Adviser, the Administrator,
the Compliance Officer and the Broker in respect
of compliance activities, Company financial
performanice and financial position.

The Directors have reviewed and considered
the guidance supplied by the FRC on Risk
Management, Internal Control and Related
Financial and Business Reporting. The controls,
which are regularly reviewed, aim to ensure
that the assets of the Company are safeguarded,
proper accounting recards are maintained, and the
financial information used within the business and
for publication is reliable. The risk management
process and Company systems of internal controls
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve the Company’s objectives
and can only provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Directors have carried out a review of the
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems as they have operated
over the period and up to the date of approval of
the Annual Report. During the course of the review,
the Board has not identified nor been advised of any
failings or weaknesses which it has determined to
be significant.

The Directors have considered the appropriateness
of establishing an internal audit function and,
having regard to the structure and nature of the
Company’s activities, has concluded that the
function is unnecessary. The Audit Committee will
review on an annual basis the need for this function
and make appropriate recommendations to the
Board.
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Financial Reporting
The Board operates the following key controls in
relation to financial reporting:

» The Board and Audit Committee members
review quarterly management reports and
supporting documents that are provided by
the Investment Adviser;

» The Board has procedures in place for the
approval of expenses and payments to third
parties; and

» The Audit Committee members and Board
review all financial information and
announcements prior to publication.

Corporate Responsibility

The Company regards corporate responsibility
as integral to how it conducts its business. It
is committed to being a good corporate citizen
and behaving responsibly with a demonstrated
transparency of approach.

To achieve this goal, the Company applies the
following principles to its operations:

Business conduct

The Company’s investment decisions are made
on the basis of generating shareholder value and
ensuring the long-term success of the business. The
selection of suppliers will be made independently
by the Company’s Directors upon advice from the
Investment Adviser and in the best interests of the
Company. The Board will ensure that appropriate
controls are in place to guarantee independence
from the supply chain.

All customers and suppliers will be treated fairly
and responsibly.

The Company will not provide financial support to
political parties or politicians.

The Company is resolutely opposed to bribery and
corruption. The Company will not use any illegal or
improper means to further its business interests, nor
will it accept any forms of inducements intended to
influence its investment decisions.

Governance

The Company will protect the interests of its
shareholders and other stakeholders through
compliance with relevant legal and regulatory
environments, and through effective management
of business risk and opportunity.

The Board will ensure that its members are truly
independent, are competent and have the resources
and support required to perform their duties
optimally, and that the Board’s decisions are made in
the best interests of the Company. The performance
of the Board will be regularly reviewed, and Directors
will retire as and when deemed appropriate by the
Beoard in accordance with best practice,

Socially responsible investment

The Board aims to be a socially responsible investor
and believes that it is important to invest in
specialist social housing properties in a responsible
manner in respect of environmental, ethical and
social issues. The Investment Adviser's evaluation
procedure and analysis of the properties within the
portfolio includes research and appraisal of such
matters, and takes into account environmental and
social policies and other business issues.

Further details on the social impact of the
Company’s investments are included in the extract
from the Good Economy Impact Report in the
Strategic Report.

The Company recognises that environmental
protection, resource efficiency and sustainable
development are necessarytoensure environmentai
damage is limited and furthermore that where
relevant, positive actions should be taken to improve
the existing environment for future generations.

Transparency

The Company aims to be transparent, and to ensure
that it communicates with its shareholders and
other stakeholders in a manner that enhances their
understanding of its business.

The Company maintains accounting documentation
that clearly identifies the true nature of all business
transactions, assets and liabilities, in line with
the relevant regulatory, accounting, and legal
requirements. No record or entry is knowingly false,
distorted, incomplete, or suppressed.

All reporting is materially accurate and complete and
in compliance in all material respects with stated
accounting policies and procedures. The Company
does not knowingly misstate or misrepresent
management information for any reason, and the
Company expects the same to apply to its suppliers.

The Company may be required to make statements
or provide reports to regulatory bodies, government
agencies or other government departments, as well

Civitas Social Mousing PLC . + -
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as to the media. The Company ensures that such
statements or reports are correct, timely, and not
misleading, and that they are delivered through the
appropriate channels.

The Company provides through its website,
its Annual Report, other statements and any
appropriate information to enable shareholders
and stakeholders to assess the petformance of
its business. The Company complies with the
applicable laws and regulations concerning the
disclosure of information relating to the Company.

Communities

The Company aims to ensure that its properties
which are associated with the provision of health
services provide significant value-adding facilities
in the communities where it invests. The Company
aims to ensure that its properties are appled
optimally far the use and benefit of communities,

Relations with Shareholders

The Board welcomes shareholders’ views and
places great importance on communication with
the shareholders of the Company. The Board is
responsible for the content of communication
regarding corporate issues and for communicating its
views to shareholders. The Board aims to ensure that
shareholders are provided with sufficient information
to understand the risk/reward balance to which they
are exposed by the holding of shares in the Company.
In addition to the Annual and Half Year reports that
are available to shareholders, regularly updated
information is available on the Company website,
including key policies, the investor relations policy
and details of the investment property portfolio.

The Board regularly monitors the shareholder profile
of the Company. With the majority of shareholders
being a combination of institutional investors and
private client brokers, the Board receives regular
updates on investors’ views and attitudes from the
Company's broker and the Investment Adviser. During
the vear, several investor update meetings were held
between the shareholders and one or more of the
Chairman, the Investment Adviser and the Broker.
The results of these meetings were reported to the
Board as part of the formal reporting undertaken by
both the Broker and Investment Adviser. Included in
the Report of the Directors on page 66 are details of
substantial shareholdings in the Company.

The Board gives due consideration to any corporate
governance matters raised by shareholders.
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Should any shareholders wish to raise any matter
with the Board or Investment Adviser, they can
write to the Company at its registered address as
disclosed on page 146, or alternatively use one of
the contact links on the Company’s website. The
Annual General Meeting of the Company also
provides a forum where shareholders may discuss
issues with the Board and Investment Adviser.

Statement of Voting at General Meetings
The Company is committed to ongoing shareholder
dialogue and takes an active interest in voting
outcomes. Where there are substantial votes against
resolutions, the Company will seek the reasons for
any such vote and will detail any resuiting actions
in an announcement.

At the AGM held on 2 August 2018, 24.44% of votes
were cast against the approval of the Directors’
Remuneration Report. As announced with the AGM
results, the Board is aware that the recommendation
to vote against this specific resolution came from
PIRC and was due to the increase in the Chairman’s
fee. The Board also noted that IS8 recommended to
vote in favour of this resolution.

During the period ended 31 March 2018, the
non-executive Directors’ fees were increased
from £30,000 to £32,000 per annum and the
non-executive Chairman’s fee was increased from
€35,000 to £50,000 per annum. As part of the
discussion to increase the fees, the Board carried out
abenchmarking exercise looking at comparative fees
of other REIT’s and noted that the previous levels of
fees were below the market average. The Board also
noted the market capitalisation of the Company,
the number of transactions being undertaken and
the number of additional Board meetings that were
being held as a result. There were 19 meetings held
during the peried to 31 March 2018. No changes to
Directors’ remuneration were made during the year
ended 31 March 2019 and no changes are currently
proposed for the vear to 31 March 2020.

Approval
The Corporate Governance Statement has been
approved by the Board.

On behalf of the Board

Michael Wrobel
Chairman
21 June 2019
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Company is
set by the Board. A resclution to approve the
Remuneration Policy was passed at the AGM of
the Company held on 2 August 2018. The policy
provisions set out below will apply until they
are next put to shareholders for renewal of that
approval, which must be at intervals of not more
than three years, or if proposals are made to vary
the policy. The Remuneration Policy is binding
and sets the parameters within which Directors’
remuneration may be set,

The remuneration policy of the Company is to
pay its non-executive Directors fees that are
appropriate for the role and the amount of time
spent in discharging their duties, that are broadly
in line with those of comparable real estate
investment companies and that are sufficient to
attract and retain suitably qualified and experienced
individuals.

The fees paid will be reviewed on an annual basis
and may also he reviewed when new non-executive
Directors are recruited to the Board. The Directors
of the Company are entitled to such rates of annual
fees as the Board at its discretion shall from time to
time determine. The Chairman of the Board and the
Audit and Management Engagement Committee
Chairman are entitled to receive fees at a higher
level than those of the other Directors, reflecting
their additional duties and responsibilities. Annual
fees are pro-rated where a change takes place
during the financial year.

In addition to the annual fee, under the Company's
Articles of Association, if any Director is requested
to perform any special duties or services outside his
ordinary duties as a Director, he may be paid such
reasonable additional remuneration as the Board
may from time to time determine.

Directors’ Remuneration Components

Purpose of Remunsralion

Component Birector Rate at 1 Aprit 2003
Annual fee Chairman £50,000
Annuai fee Non-execuiive Directors £32,000

Chairman of the Audit  £4,000
and Management
Engagernent Commuittas

Additional fee

Additional fee

Comrmitment as Chawrman of & public company’

Commitment as non-executive Directors of a public company®

For additional responsibilittes and time commitrment?®

All Directors Discretionary For extra or special services performed in their role
as a Director?
Expenses All Directors n/a Reimbursement of expenses incurred in the
performance of duties as a Director®
Notes

! The Company's policy is for the Chairman of the Board 1o be paid a higher fee than the other Directors to reflect the more onerous role.
? The Company’s Articles of Association limit the aggregate fees payable to the Board of Directors to £200,000% per annum.
¥ The Company's policy is for the Chairman of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee to be paid a higher fee than the other

Directors to reflect the more onerous role,

* This is a provision of the Company’s Anticles. Additionat fees would only be paid in excepticnal circumstances in relation to the

performance of extra or special services.

¢ Directors are entitled to ¢laim expenses in respect of duties undertaken in connection with their role as a Director.

The Company has no employees other than the Directors. Accordingly, there are no differences in policy on the remuneration of

Directors and the remuneration of employees.

No Director is entitled to receive any remuneration which is performance-related. As a result, there are no perfermance conditions in
refation to any elements of the Directors’ remuneration in existence to set out in this Rernuneration Policy.

* Subject to shareholder approval at the AGM on 5 September 2019, the maximum aggregate fees payable to the Board of Directors wilt

increase to £250,000 per annum.

Civitas Secial Housing PLC
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Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance cover
is maintained by the Company on behalf of the
Directors.

Directors are entitled to be paid all expenses
properly incurred in attending Board or shareholder
meetings or otherwise in or with a view to the
performance of their duties.

As all Directors are non-executive and there are
no employees, the Company does not operate
any share option or other long-term incentive
schemes and the Directors’ fees are not subject
to any performance criteria. No pension or other
retirement benefits schemes are operated by the
Company for any of its directors.

Service Contracts

No Director has a service contract with the
Company. The Directors are appointed under
letters of appointment. Their appointment and any
subsequent termination or retirement is subject to
the Articles of Association. The Directors’ letters
of appointment provide that, upon the termination
of a Director’s appointment, that Director must

resign in writing and all records remain the property
of the Company. The Director’s appointment can
be terminated in accordance with the Articles of
Association and without compensation. There is no
notice period specified in the Articles of Association
for the removal of Directors and all Directors are
subject to annual re-election by shareholders.

Approach to Recruitment Remuneration
The remuneration package for any new Chairman
or nen-executive Director will be the same as the
prevailing rates determined on the bases set out
above. The Board will not pay any introductory fee
or incentive to any person to encourage them to
become a Director, but may pay the fees of search
and recruitment specialists in connection with the
appointment of any new non-executive Director.

Views of Shareholders

Any views expressed by sharcholders on the
fees being paid to Directors would be taken into
consideration by the Board when reviewing levels
of remuneration.

Civitas Social Housing PLC .
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Remuneration Report

The Board presentsits Directors’ Remuneration Report
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019. The Board
has prepared this report in accordance with the Large
and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013, An
ordinary resolution for the approval of the Directors’
Remuneration Report will be put to shareholders at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

The law requires the Company’s auditor to
audit certain of the disclosures required. Where
disclosures have been audited, they are indicated
as such. The auditor’s opinion is included in the
auditor’s report on pages 87 to 94.

Annual Statement from the Chairman
[ am pleased to present the Directors’ Remuneration
Report far the vear ended 31 March 2019.

As the Board has no executive Directors, it does
not consider it necessary to establish a separate
Remuneration Committee. The Board as a whole
is therefore responsible for decisions regarding
remuneration. The Board consists entirely of
non-executive Directors and the Company has no
employees.

The Directors are remunerated for their services at
such rate as the Directors shall from time to time
determine, The Board has set three levels of fees:
one for the Chairman, one for other Directors, and an
additional fee that is paid to the Director who chairs
the Audit and Management Engagement Committee.

Fees are reviewed annually in accordance with the
Remuneraticn Policy. The fee for any new Director
appointed will be determined on the same basis.

Directors’ fees for the year ended 31 March 2019 were
at a level of £50,000 per annum for the Chairman and
£32,000 per annum for other non-executive Directors.
The Chairman of the Audit and WManagement
Engagement Committee received an additional fee of
£4,000 per annum. No changes relating to Directors’
remuneration were made during the year and no
changes are currently being proposed.

There were no other payments for extra or special
services in the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Directors’ Remuneration Policy was approved
at the AGM held on 2 August 2018. There will be no
significant change in the way the Remuneration
Policy will be implemented in the course of the next
financial year.

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, the
maximum aggregate annual remuneration payable
to Directors is £200,000, and total remuneration
paid in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019 was
£150,000. The Board is in the process of seeking to
appoint at teast one additional Director. It is therefore
proposed that the Articles be amended to increase
the aggregate annual remuneration to £250,000. This
would provide some headroom for the appoiniment
of a new Director and include some flexibility for
future increases in remuneration. Resolutions to
amend the Remuneration Policy and the Company’s
Articles will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

Directors’ Fees for the Period (audited)

The Directors who served during the period received the following emoluments in the form of fees:

Fees paid Total

Fees paid Totat Period Perod

Year ended Year anded 18 November 2016 18 Novermnber 2016

31 Margh 2018 31 March 2019 to 31 March 2018’ to 31 March 2018

£'000 £7000 £000 £000

Whchae! Wrobel (Chairman) 50 50 58 58

Petar Baxter 32 32 42 42
Caralineg Guiliver (Audit and
Mianagement Engagement

Committes Charrmani 36 36 48 48

Alastair Moss 32 32 42 42

Total 150 150 190 190

"The period was greater than 12 months.

During the vear no taxable benefits were received by any of the Directors.

The amounts paid to the Directors were for services as non-executive Directors.

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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Under the Company’s Articles of Association, the total aggregate remuneration and benefits in kind of the
Directors of the Company is subject to a maximum of in any financial year. Any change to this would require
shareholder approval.

The Company maintains Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance cover, at its expense, on the Directors’
behalf.

Loss of Office (audited)
The Directors do not have service contracts with the Company but are engaged under letters of appointment
under which there is no entitlement to compensation for loss of office. Directors are subject to annual
re-election by shareholders.

Directors’ Interests (audited):
There is no requirement under the Company’s Articles of Association or the terms of their appointment for
Directors to hold shares in the Company.

Company Performance

The following graph compares the performance for the period from IPO on 18 November 2016 to 31 March
2019, the total shareholder return of the Company’s Ordinary shares relative to the FTSE All share Index and
FTSE 350 REIT Index. Although the Company has no formal benchmark, these indices has been selected as the
FTSE All share represents all companies of a similar capital size, and the constituents of the FTSE 350 REIT
Index are UK based real estate companies and are therefore considered to represent the most appropriate
comparative.

Total Shareholder Return (rebased)

140 — Civilas Social

Housing PLC

120 - = FTSE All-Share
M Total Retum
100 g~ — FTSE 350/Real
v Estate Investrmert
Trusts Total Returr

80

18 31
Nov Jan  Mar May Jul  Sep Nov Jan Mar May Ju Sep Nov Jan  Mar
2016 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2019 20189

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The table below sets out, in respect of the vear ended 31 March 2019:

a} the remuneration paid to the Directors; and

B} the distributions made to shareholders by way of dividend.

Pericd

Yaar endad 18 November 2016

3% March 2018 to 31 March 2018

050 £'000

Directors’ remuneration 150 190
Dividerds paid to Ordinary shareholders 17,881 10,500

Dividends pad te C shareholders 9,966 -

Civiras Social Housing PLC
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Asat 31 March 2019, the Directors (including their connected persons) had beneficial interests in the following
number of shares in the Company:

37 March 2018 31 March 2018
Ordinary Ordinary C
shares shares shares
Michae! Wrobel 100,598 30,000 45,000
Peter Baxter 47085 20,000 30,000
Caroline Gulliver 58,382 25,000 37500
Alastair Moss 11.766 5,000 75600

There have been no changes to Directors’ share interests between 31 March 2019 and the date of this Report.

Neone of the Directors or any persons connected with them had a material interest in the Company’s
transactions, arrangements or agreements during the year.

Voting at AGM
The Directors’ Remuneration Policy and Directors’ Remuneration Report for the period ended 31 March 2018
were approved at the AGM held on 2 August 2018, The votes cast by proxy on these resolutions were:

Voles for’ Voles against
Rasalution % af votes cast 3¢ of vates cast Vates withheld Total voles cast
To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report 75.56 24.44 - 122,564,536
To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Policy 100.00 0.00 - 122,664,537

"Wotes “for’ inciude discretionary proxy votes granted to the Chairman by shareholders.

Further information about the votes against the Directors’ Remuneration Repur at last year’s AGM is set out
in the Corporate Governance Statement on page 76.

Approval
The Directors’ Remuneration Report was approved by the Board on 21 June 2019.

On behalf of the Board

Michael Wrobel
Chairman
21 June 2019

Civitas Social Housing PLC ~ -
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the
Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare
financial statements for each financial period. Under
that law, the Directors have prepared the Group
financial statements inaccordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs™) as adopted
by the European Union and the Company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable
law). Under company law, the Directors must not
approve the financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and Company and of
the profit or loss of the Group and Company for that
period. In preparing the financial statements, the
Directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently;

» state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by
the European Union have been followed for
the Group financial statements and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising
FRS 101, have been followed for the Company
financial statements, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements;

= make judgements and accounting estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and

« prepare the financial statements on the
going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Group and Company will
continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the Group and Company's transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Group and Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements
and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with
the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group
financial statements, Article 4 of the [AS Regulation.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Group and Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance
and integrity of the Company’s website. Legislation
in the United Kingdom governing the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ
from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors consider that the Annual Report
and financial statements, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Group and Company’s position and performance,
business model and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and functions
are listed in the Corporate Governance section of
the Annual Report, confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge:

- the Company financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, comprising FRS
101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and
applicable law}, give a true and fair view of
the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit of the Company;

« the Group financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with 1FRSs
as adopted by the European Union, give a
true and fair view of the assets, liabilities,
financial position and profit of the Group;
and

« the Strategic Report includes a fair review
of the development and performance of
the business and the position of the Group,
together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that it faces.

Approval
This Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities was
approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Michae! Wrobel
Chairman
21 June 2019

Civitas Social Housing PLC . -



Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

As the Company and the Alternative Investment
Fund Manager (“Investment Manager”) are
each domiciled in the United Kingdom, the FCA
Handbook rules require that, among other things,
the AIFM makes available the following information
to shareholders of the Company under the AIFM
Directive (as implemented in the UK} and to
notify them of any material change to information
previously provided.

Investment Policy, Leverage and Liquidity
AJFMD 23¢{1}a)bh)(h))

The investment strategy and objectives of the
Company, the types of assets it may invest in and the
investment techniques it may employ, associated
risks and any investment restrictions are laid out
in the investment objectives and policy and other
sections of the Annual Report.

For information about the circumstances in which
the Company may use leverage, the types of
sources permitted and the associated risks and any
restrictions on the use of leverage and any collateral
and asset re-use arrangements, shareholders
are directed to the disclosures contained in the
investment objectives and policy section of these
financial statements as well as specific AIFMD
related disclosures further below.

Under the UK Listing Authority listing rules to
which the Company is subject it needs the prior
approval of its shareholders to make a material
change to its investment policy.

Since the Company is closed-ended without
redemption rights, liquidity risk management
is limited to the liquidity required to meet the
Company’s obligations in relation to its financing
arrangements, The [nvestment Manager utilises
varjous risk assessment methods to measure the
risk of portfoiio illiquidity to meet the Company’s
obiigations. This measurement enables the
provision of management information to the
Investment Manager and the Board of the Company
to enable these risks to be monitored and managed.

Civitas Social Housing PLC - - .. -

Legal Relationship with Investors (AIFMD
23(1)(e))

The Company is a public limited company listed
on the London Stock Exchange. The Company is
incorporated under the laws of England and Wales.
The constitutional document of the Company is its
articles of association which may only be amended
by way of a special resoiution of its shareholders.
Upon the purchase of shares, an investor becomes
a shareholder of the Company. A sharehoclder’s
liability to the Company will be limited to the
amount uncalled on their shares.

As the Company is incorporated under the laws
af England and Wales, it may not be possible for
a shareholder located outside that jurisdiction
to effect service of process within the local
jurisdiction in which that shareholder resides
upon the Company. All or a substantial portion of
the assets of the Company may be located outside
a Jocal jurisdiction in which a shareholder resides
and as a result, it may not he possible to satisfy
a judgement against the Company in such local
jurisdiction or to enforce a judgement obtained in
the local jurisdiction’s courts against the Company.

AlFM and its Delegales (AIFMD 23(1)d), (»)
and (f))

The Investment Manager is a limited company with
its registered office at 136 Buckingham Palace Road,
London SW1W 95A and is authorised and regulated
by the Financial Conduct Authority (FRN 648953).
It has been appointed by the Company to manage
the Company under an Investment Management
Agreement with effect from 24 August 2017.

The Investment Manager is responsible for
portfolic management and risk management and
monitoring of the assets of the Company and has
discretionary authority over the acquisition and
disposition of the Company’s assets, with power to
give guarantees and undertake other transactions
on behalf of the Company subject to the provisions
of the investment management agreement. The
Investment Manager is also responsible for ensuring
compliance with the AIFMD,
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The Investment Manager's duties under the
investment management agreement are owed
to the Company as a whole rather than directly
to the shareholders, whether individually or in
groups. The Board of the Company is responsible
under the Investment Management Agreement for
representing the Company in its dealings with the
Investment Manager.

In order to comply with its regulatory obligations,
the Investment Manager holds professional
indemnity insurance.

Depositary and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)
(d) and (f))

Indos Financial Limited (the “Depositary”) has
been appointed as the Depositary of the Company
under a Depositary Agreement agreed in accordance
with AIFMD requirements. The Depositary is a
company incorporated in England (registered
number 08255973) whose registered office is at 54
Fenchurch Street, London, EC3M 31Y. It is authorised
to act as a Depositary by the FCA (FRN 602528),
The Depositary is responsible for safekeeping of
the Company’s investments, including holding in
custody those investments which are required to be
held in custody and verifying ownershipand keeping
records of the Company’s other investments, and
for cash monitoring.

The Depositary’s duties under the Depositary
Agreement are owed to the Company as a whole and
not directly to shareholders, whether individually
or in groups.

The investments of the Company are not of a kind
required to be held in custody by the Depositary.

Independent Auditors (AIFMD 23(1){d))
The independent auditors of the Company
for the vyear ended 31 March 2019 were
PricewaterhouseCoaopers LLP. The auditors’ duties
are owed to the Company as a whole. They have a
statutory responsibility to report to the members of
the Company as a whole in relation to the truth and
fairness of the Company's state of affairs and profit
or loss.

Valuation (AIFMD 23(1)(gh

The assets of the Company are valued in accordance
with the provisions set out in the Valuation Policy.
The Investment Committee which has heen set
up by the Investment Manager in respect of the
Company and it’s assets adds a further level of
oversight to the valuation process as set out on in
the Corporate Governance section of the Annual
Report.

Fees and Expenses (AIFMD 23(1)(i))

The Company incurs costs in the form of depositary
fees, custodian fees, bank fees and charges,
marketing fees, auditors’ fees, lawvers’ fees and
other fees.

Fair Treatment of Investors and Preferential

Treatment (AIFMD 23(1)())
No preferential rights have been granted to any
existing shareholder.

The Company and the Investment Manager are
committed to ensuring that all shareholders are
treated fairly and in accordance with UK company
law. They have not and will not enter into any
arrangement with one shareholder which could
result in any overall material disadvantage to the
other shareholders.

Issue and Redemption of Shareholder
Interests in the Company ((AIFMD 23(1{i)
The Company is closed-ended and does not provide
for redemption or repurchase of the interests of
ordinary shareholders at their request.

Reporting and Performance (AIFMD 23(1)
k), 23(1){(m) and 23(1)(n}))

The historic performance of the Company, to the
extent available, has been disclosed to shareholders
in the Company’s Annual and Half Yearly Reports,
which will be sent to shareholders and are available
from http://civitassociathousing.com/.

The latest NAV of the Company is published in the
latest Annual or Half Yearly Report or guarterly
NAV announcement.

Civitas Sociat Mousing PLC .
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Prime Broker (AIFMD 23(1)(0))
The Company does not have a prime broker.

Method of Making Ongoing/Periodic
Disclosures (AIFMD 23(13(p),23(4).23(5))
Infermation about the Company’s risk profile and
risk management, total leverage and any material
change to the arrangements for managing the
Company’s liquidity, the proportion of assets (if
any) subject to special arrangements arising from
liguidity, the maximum permitted leverage or the
grant of rights of re-use of colateral or guarantees
in relation to leverage will be provided in the
Company’s Annual Reports or on the Company's
website http://civitassocialhousing.com/.

Risk Profile and Risk Management (AIFMD
23(4)(c))

The appointment of the Investment Manager as
the AIFM of the Company under the AIFMD means
that it is responsibie for risk management and
the ongeing process of identifying, evaluating,
monitoring and managing the risks facing the
Company in accordance with the requirements
of the AIFMD. The Board keeps the Investment
Manager's performance of these responsibilities
under review as part of its overall responsibility
for the Company’s risk management and internal
controls.

The principal risks of the Company are set out in
the risk management section in the Annual Report.
The Investment Manager's risk management
system incorporates regular review of these risks
and the establishment of appropriate risk limits
and internal control processes to mitigate the risks.
The sensitivity of the Company to relevant risks is
further detailed in the risk management section in
the Annual Repott.

Civitas Social Housing PLC

Restrictions on the Use of Leverage and
Maximum Leverage (AIFMD 23(5))

As specified in the Investment objectives and policy
in the Annual Report, The Cotnpany has the ability
to put up to a maximum leverage of 40% of the
Company’s Gross Asset Value and the Investment
Manager oversees the use of leverage to ensure
that the use of borrowing is consistent with this
requirement. Leverage is calculated using gross
assets, with various adjustments, divided by net
assets.

Under AIFMD, the Company is required to calculate
leverage under the two methodologies specified
by the Directive, the ‘Gross Method’ and the
‘Commitment Method,” the difference being that
the Commitment Method allows certain exposures
1o be offset or netted. Disclasures are made on the
website of the Company.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of Civitas Social Housing PLOC

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
In our opinion:

« Civitas Social Housing PLC's Group financial statements and Company financial statements (the
“financial statements”) give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Company’s
affairs as at 31 March 2019 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended;

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union;

« the Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

« the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements (the
“Annual Report”}, which comprise: the Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position as at
31 March 2019; the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows, and the Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Equity for the year then ended; and the
notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Qur opinion is consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities
for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to
listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical
Standard were not provided to the Group or the Company.

Other than those disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements, we have provided no non-audit services to
the Group or the Company in the year from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019.

Civitas Social Housing PLC  + . - -



Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of Civitas Social Housing PLC continuced

OQur audit approach

Overview

+  Overall Greup materiality: £8.8 million (period ended 31 March 2018:
£7.7 million}, based on 1% of total assets.

« QOverall Company materiality: £8.1 million (period ended 31 March
2018: £7.2 million), based on 1% of total assets.

+  Group specific materiality: £2.2 million (period ended 31 March 2018:
£908,000), based on 10% of Company Adjusted Earnings, for financial
statement line items impacting Company Adjusted Earnings.

Materiality

Audit scope »  We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough

work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company,
the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which they
operate. The Group consists of a single reportable segment.

+  Valuation of investment property (Group).

«  We determined that there were no key audit matters applicable to the
Company to communicate in our report.

The scope of our audit
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in
the financial statements.

Capability of the qudit in detecting irregulanties, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the Group and industry, we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance
with laws and regulations related to compliance with the Real Estate Investment Trust (“REIT") status, and
we considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements.
We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial
statements such as the Companies Act 2006 and the UK tax legislation. We evaluated management’s incentives
and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of
controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to posting inappropriate journal entries to
increase revenue or reduce expenditure, and management bias in accounting estimates and judgmental areas
of the financial statements such as the valuation of investment properties. Audit procedures performed by the
engagement team included:

+ Discussions with management, inciuding consideration of known or suspected instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations and fraud, and review of the reports made by management;

» Understanding of management’s internal controls designed to prevent and detect irregularities;

«  Assessment of matters, if any, reported to the Audit Committee;

+ Reviewingrelevant meeting minutes, inciuding those of the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee;
«  Review of tax compliance with the involvement of our tax specialists in the audit;

+  Designing audit procedures to incorporate unpredictability over the nature, timming and extent of gur
testing of expenses;

»  Procedures refating to the valuation of investment properties described in the related key audit matter
below; and

+ dentifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account
combinations and words.
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There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance
with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less
likely we would become aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is
higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by,
for example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks
of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had
the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the
efforts of the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures
thereon, were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. This is not a complete list of all

risks identified by our audit.

Key audit matter

How our andit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of investment property

Refer to page 69 (Audit and Management Engagement
Committee Report), pages 105 and 106 (Summary of
significant accounting policies) and pages 114 to 117
(note 15 to the financial statements).

Investment properties are held at fair value of
£820.1 million as at 31 March 2019 (£516.2 million
as at 31 March 2018) in the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position. The valuation of the Group’s
investment property is the key component of the
net asset value and underpins the Group’s result for
the year. The result of the revaluation this year was
a gain of £10.1 million (period ended 31 March 2018:
£31.0 million), which is accounted for within ‘Change
in fair value of investment properties’ in note 15 and
is a significant compaonent of the result for the year.
The Group’s investment property portfolio consists of
specialist social housing properties located in England
and Wales which are let to Registered Providers of
social housing on long-term leases.

We focused on this area due to the existence of
significant judgement, coupled with the fact that only
small differences in individual property valuations
whenaggregated could resultin material misstatement.
There is also a risk that management may influence
the significant judgements and estimates in respect
of investment property valuations in order to achieve
performance targets and meet market expectations.

Investment property valuations were carried out by
third party valuers, Jones Lang LaSalle Limited (“JLL"
or the “Valuer”). The Valuer was engaged by the
Directors, in accordance with the RICS Valuation -
Professional Standards (“RICS™).

Experience of Valuer and relevance of its work

We read the Valuer's report and confirmed that the
approach used was consistent with the RICS guidelines
and the requirements of [FRSs as adopted by the
European Unior. We assessed the Valuer's competence
and capabilities and read their terms of engagement
with the Group, determining that there were no matters
that affected their independence and objectivity or
imposed scope limitations upon them.

Data provided to the Valuer and legal title

We wvalidated the data provided to the Valuer by
management and found that it was consistent with the
information we audited. This data included inputs such
as current rent, rent indexation (CPI or CP1+1%), and
lease term, which we have agreed on a sample basis to
executed lease agreements as part of our audit work.

We verified legal ownership of properties through
independent title deed confirmations on a sample basis.

Assumptions and estimates used by the Valuer

We attended meetings with management and the
Valuer, at which the valuation methodology and the key
assumptions were discussed.

Inour testing, which involved the use of our internat real
estatevaluation experts, we considered the assumptions
utilised by JLL within the valuation and benchmarked
to market evidence. We challenged the Valuer regarding
the impact of the regulatory environment on investor
sentiment and asset values.

We concluded that the assumptions used by the Valuer
were consistent with our expectations and comparable
benchmarking information for the asset type, and the
assumptions were applied appropriately, reflected those
available comparable market transactions and reflected
the circumstances of the market at the year end.
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to the members of Civitas Social Housing PLC continued

We determined that there were no key atudit matters applicable to the Company to communicate in our report.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion
on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Group and the Company, the
accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which they operate.

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement
in the financial statements. In particular, we looked at where the Directors made subjective judgements, for
example in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved making assumptions and considering
future events that are inherently uncertain,

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds
for materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit
and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financiat statement line items and
disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial
statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Company financial statements
Overall materiality £8.8 million (period ended 31 March £8.1 million (period ended 31 March
2018: £7.7 million). 2018: £7.2 million). .
How we determined it 1% of total assets. 1% of total assets.
Rationale for The key measure of the Group’s The Company's main activity is the
benchmark applied performance is the valuation of investrnent  holding of investineuts in subsidiaries.

properties and the balance sheet as a On this basis, we set an overall
whole. Given this, we set an overall Group Company materiality level based on

materiality level based on total assets. total assets.
Specific materiality £2.2 million (period ended 31 March Not applicable.
2018: £908,000).
How we determined it  10% of Company Adjusted Earnings. Not applicable.
Rationale for A number of key performing indicators Not applicable,
benchmark applied of the Group are driven by income

statement items and we therefore also
applied a lower specific materiality for
financial statement line items impacting
Company Adjusted Earnings.

In addition to overall Group materiality, a specific materiality was also applied to income statement line
items that impact Company Adjusted Earnings, which is based on profit before tax, adjusted to exclude fair
value gains on investment property and C Share amortisation. We set a specific overall materiality level of
£2.2 million (period ended 31 March 2018: £908,000), equating to 10% of Company Adjusted Earnings. In
arriving at this judgement, we considered the fact that Company Adjusted Earnings is a secondary financial
indicator of the Group (refer to the Strategic Report, page 51, where the term is defined in full).

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit
above £443,000 (Group audit) (period ended 31 March 2018: £385,000) and £407,000 (Company audit} (period
ended 31 March 2018; £360,000) as wel! as misstatements below those amounts that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons.
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Going concern
In accordance with ISAs (UK} we report as follows:

Reporting obligation Outcome
We are required to report if we have anything We have nothing material to add or to draw
material to add or draw attention to in respect attentiorn to.

of the Directors’ statement in the financial
statements about whether the Directors considered
it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the financial statements
and the Directors’ identification of any material
uncertainties to the Group’s and the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern over a period
of at least twelve months from the date of approval
of the financial statements.

However, because not all future events or conditions
can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee
as to the Group’s and Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. For example, the terms on
which the United Kingdom may withdraw from the
European Union are not clear, and it is difficult to
evaluate all of the potential implications on the
Group's trade, customers, suppliers and the wider
economy.

We are required to report if the Directors’ statement We have nothing to report.
relating to Going Concern in accordance with

Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is materially inconsistent

with our knowledge obtained in the audit.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon. The Directors are responsible for the other information. Qur opinion on
the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an
apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude
whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report, Report of the Directors and Corporate Governance Statement, we also
considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, the Companies
Act 2006 (CA06), ISAs (UK) and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) require us also to
report certain opinions and matters as described below (required by ISAs (UK) unless otherwise stated).
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Strategic Report and Report of the Directors

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic
Report and Report of the Directors for the vear ended 31 March 2019 is consistent with the financial statements
and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. (CA06)

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Report of
the Directors. (CA06)

Corporate Goverpance Statement

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Corporate
Governance Statement on pages 71 to 76 about internal controls and risk management systems in relation to
financial reporting processes and about share capital structures in compliance with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the
Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules sourcebook of the FCA (“DTR”) is consistent with the financia)
statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. (CA06)

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and their environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in this information. (CA06)

In ouropinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Corporate
Governance Statement on pages 71 to 76 with respect to the Company’s corporate governance code and
practices and about its administrative, management and supervisory hodies and their committees complies
with rules 7.2.2, 7.2.3 and 7.2.7 of the DTR. (CA06)

We have nothing to report arising from our responsibility to report if a corporate governance statement has
not been prepared by the Company. (CAD6)

The Directors’ assesstient of the prospecis of the Group and of the principal risks that would thireaten
the solvency or liquidity of the Group

We have nothing material to add or draw attention to regarding:

» The Directors’ confirmation on page 52 of the Annual Report that they have carried out a robust
assessment of the principal risks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business
model, future performance, solvency or liquidity.

» The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed
or mitigated.

» The Directors’ explanation on pages 56 and 57 of the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the
prospects of the Group, over what period they have done so and why they consider that period to be
appropriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the Group
will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their
assessment, including any related disclesures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or
assumptions.

We have nothing 1o report having performed a review of the Directors’ statement that they have carried out
a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group and statement in relation to the longer-term
viability of the Group. Qur review was substantially less in scope than an audit and only consisted of making
inquiries and considering the Directors’ process supporting their statements; checking that the statements are
in alignment with the relevant provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”); and considering
whether the statements are consistent with the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Company and
their environment obtained in the course of the audit. (Listing Rules)
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Other Code Provisions
We have nothing to report in respect of our responsibility to report when:

« The statement given by the Directors, on page 83, that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole
to be fair, balanced and understandable, and provides the information necessary for the members to
assess the Group’s and Company’s position and performance, business model and strategy is materially
inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group and Company obtained in the course of performing our
audit,

« The section of the Annual Report on pages 68 to 70 describing the work of the Audit and Management
Engagement Committee does not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the Audit
Committee.

= The Directors’ statement relating to the Company’s compliance with the Code does not properly
disclose a departure from a relevant provision of the Code specified, under the Listing Rules, for review
by the auditors.

Directors’ Remuneration

In our opinion, the part of the Directors” Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 2006. (CAQ6)

Responsibilities for the financijal statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' Responsibilities sel out on page 83, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Directors are also responsible for such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liguidate the Group or
the Company or ta cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by out prior consent in writing.
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Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

« certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ the Company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendation of the Audit Committee, we were appointed by the Directors on 31 March 2017
to audit the financial statements for the period ended 17 November 2016 and subsequent financial periods.
The period of total uninterrupted engagement is 3 years, covering the periods ended 17 November 2016,
31 March 2018 and vear ended 31 March 2019.

Sandra Dowling (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London

21 June 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the vear ended 31 March 2019

For the From
ear pnded 18 November 2016
37 March 2078 to 31 March 2018
£1000 £'000

Revenue
Rental income 5 35,738 18,606
Net rental income 35,738 18,606
Directors” remuneration 6 (163) (205)
Investment advisory fees 8 (6,457) 5,773}
General and adrinisirative expenses el (3,022} (2,815)
Tota! expenses (9,642) (8,893}
Change i fair value of investment properues 15 3,652 30,633
Operating profit 29,748 40,346
finance incame 10 49% 413
Firance expense — relating 1o bank borrowings " (3,975) (1,041}
Finance expense - C srharres amortisation ) " ] (6,400) ] (2,792}
Profit before tax 19,864 38,926
Taxation 12 - -
Profit being total comprehensive income for the period 19,864 36,926
Earnings per share - basic 13 4.67p 10.55p
Earnings per share - diluted 13 4.22p 8.27p

All amounts reported in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income above arise from continuing
operations.

The notes on pages 102 to 135 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Asar 31 Aarch 2019

Financial Statements’ 97 <142

31 March 201G 31 March 2018

e 000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets
Irvestmient property 15 820,094 516,222
Onher receivables 17 6,824 -
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 17 5,723 3,315
Cash and cash equivalents 18 54,347 248,608
Total assets  ese988 709145
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 (15,324) (10,176)
C shares 21 - (298,752)
Non-current liabilities
Bank and lcar borrowings 20 (205,156} {90,822
Total netassets 666,508 369395
Equity
Share capital 22 6,225 3,500
Share premium reserve 23 292,405 -
Caprtal reduction reserve 24 331,625 331,625
Retaired earnings 25 36,253 34,270
Total equity - 666508 ' 369.395
Net assets per share ~ basic 26 107.08p 105.54p
Net assets per share — diluted 26 107.08p 105 54p

These consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 135 were approved by the Board of Directors of Civitas
Social Housing PLC and authorised for issue on 21 June 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Michael Wrabel

Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director

21 June 2019
Company No: 10402528

The notes on pages 102 to 135 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the vear ended 31 March 2019

Share Capital
Share premium reduetion Retained Total
capitgl reserve FESETYE CETNGS equity
g Fo00 £'000 £000 £1000 7000
Balance at 18 November 2016 - - - 3N 31
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the period - - - 36,926 36,926
Issue of Ordinary shares
Issue of share capital 22 3,600 346,500 - - 350,000
Share 1ssue costs 23 - 17000) - - (7000)
Canceliation of share premium reserve 23 - {339,500) 339,500 - -
Dividends paid
Total intenm dividends for the pernod ended
31 3.00p) - - (7875} {2,825} {10,500}
Balance at 31 March 2018 3,500 - 331.62% 34,270 363,395
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the period - - - 19,864 19,864
Issue of Ordinary shares
Issue of share capial 22 2,725 292,461 ~ - 295,186
Share issue costs 23 - {56} - - {66}
Dividends paid
Total interm dividends for the period ended
31 March 2019 (5 00p) 14 - - (17881} (17881}
Balance at 31 March 2019 6,225 292,406 331, 36,253 666,508

The notes on pages 102 to 135 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the vearended 31 March 2019

For the From
year ended 18 November 2016
31 March 20°8 to 31 March 2018
£1000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the penod before taxation 19,864 36,926
- Change ir farr value of investment properties (3,652) 130,833}
- Rent and incentive straight line adjustmenrts {314) 1332}
Firance mncome {491) {413)
Finance expense 10,375 3,833
Increase - trade ard other receivables {2,789} (2,540}
(Decrease /lrcrease in Uade amd othe[ payab\es ) (149} 803
Cash generated from operations T 22,844 - 747#6‘44
Interest receved 481 413
Net cash flow generated from operating activiies  233% 8087
Investing activities
Purchase of investment properties (267,908} {458,564}
Acquisition costs (9,421) 119,051}
Purchase of subsidiary compary (25,470) -
Sale proceeds on sale of subsidiary company 4,336 -
Lease incenrtives pad {3,178) -
Restrlcted cash held as reter‘tlon money 1936) 16,283)
Net cash flow used in investing actmtuesr.w e _-(—3_6;&:)7-7‘_}_ “-“E483 8981-
Financing activities
Proceeds from the issue of Ordirary share capital 22 - 350,000
Share issue costs paid 23 56) {7000
Dividends paid to equity shareholders {17591) 110,073}
Proceeds from the issue of C shares 23 - 302,000
C share 1ssue costs paid 21 S 16.040)
Dividends paid to C shareholders 21 (9,966) -
Bank borrowings advanced 20 115,990 92,457
Bank horrowing issue costs paid 20 (2,374) 11,761}
Loan mterest pald 3 (2,958) [417]
Net cash flow genera‘tvéicijr fromrf;ﬁénc:|r17§”éct|\r|tv|;s N 83645 . 77‘%9 166 7
Met {decreaselincrease in cash and cash equivalents (196,197) 243,325
Unrestncted cash and cash equwalents at the start oF the penod 18 243 325 -
Unrestricted cash and cash equlvalents at the end of the period 7g—_18 T 47 iZB I 2432’.25

The notes on pages 102 to 135 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the vear ended 31 March 2019

1. Corporate information

Civitas Social Housing PLC (the “Company”) was incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act
2006 as a public company limited by shares on 29 September 2016 with company number 10402528 under the
name Civitas REIT PLC which was subsequently changed to the existing name on 3 October 2016,

The address of the registered office is Beaufort House, 51 New North Road, Exeter, EX4 4EP. The Company is
registered as an investment company under section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and is domiciled in the
United Kingdom.

The Company did not begin trading untit 18 November 2016 when the shares were admitted to trading on the
London Stock Exchange (“LSE").

The Company’s Ordinary shares are admitted to the Official List of the Financial Conduct Authority (‘"FCA™),
and traded on the LSE.

The principal activity of the Company is to act as the ultimate parent company of Civitas Sacial Housing PLC
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), whose principal activity is to provide shareholders with an attractive level
of income, together with the potential for capital growth from investing in a portfolio of social homes.

2. Basis of preparation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance
with the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules of the FCA and with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS™) and IFRS Interpretation Committee (“1FRS IC”) interpretations as issued by the IASB and
as adopted by the European Union ("EU”), and in accordance with Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and the
Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies using IFRS.

The comparative information disclosed in the consolidated financial statements relates to the period from
18 November 2016 to 31 March 2018. The period covered by the comparative information varies in length and
the level of activities and therefore is not comparable to the current period.

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified for
the Group’s investment properties at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group has chosen to adopt EPRA best practice guidelines for calculating key metrics such as net asset
value and earnings per share. These are disclosed on page 51 with supporting calculations in Appendix 1 on
pages 147 and 148,

2.1. Functional and presentation currency
The financial information is presented in Pounds Sterling which is also the functional currency of the Company,
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£ 000), except where otherwise indicated.

2.2. Gaing concern

The Group benefits from a secure income stream from long leases with the Housing Associations, which
are not overly reliant on any one tenant and present a well-diversified risk. The Group’s cash balances as at
31 March 2019 were £54.3 million, of which £47,1 milfion was readily avaifable and it had bank borrowings of
£208.4 million.

As a result, the Directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage its financing and other business risks
and that the Group will remain viable, continuing to operate and meet its liabilities as they fall due.

The Directors believe that there are currently no material uncertainties in relation to the Group's ahility to
continue for the period of at least 12 months from the date of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
The Board is, therefore, of the opinion that the going concern basis adopted in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is appropriate.

Civitas Social Housing PLC -



Finandal Statements 97 - 142

2.3, New standards, amendments and interpretations
The following new standards are now effeclive and have been adopted for the year ended 31 March 2019.

« Adoption of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The standard replaced 1AS 39 Financial Instruments
and contains two primary measurement categories for financial assets.

Management have reviewed the requirements of IFRS 9. The adoption of IFRS 9 from 1 April 2018 resulted in
no adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial statements. In accordance with the transitional
provisions, commparative figures have not been restated. The Group’s principal financial assets comprise trade
receivables, which will continue to be measured at amortised cost. The following changes have been identified.

Under IFRS 9 the Group now applies an expected credit loss model when calculating impairment losses on
its trade and other receivables and considers the probability of default occurring over the contractual life of
its trade receivables and contracts. The specific situation of each tenant has been evaluated using a provision
matrix as allowed under IFRS 9. This did not result in a material change in the loss allowance recognised under
IFRS 9 compared to the previous impairment provision held under 1A839,

« Adoption of IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts: The standard replaced IAS 11 Construction
Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue. The standard introduces a new revenue recognition model that
recognises revenue either at a point in time or over time.

As all of the Group’s revenue derives from leases which are outside the scope of IFRS 15 there is no change to
accounting policies arising from the adoption of IFRS 15.

» Adoption of Amendment to IAS 40, Investinent Property: The amendment to 1AS 40 Investment
Property clarifies when assets are transferred to, or from, investment properties.

Management have assessed the impact of the amendment to IAS 40 on the classification of existing property
at 1 April 2018 and has concluded that no reclassifications are required on adoption of the amendment.

2.4. New standards, amendments and interpretations effective for future accounting periods

The following are new standards, interpretations and amendments, which are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted in this financial information, that will or may have an effect on the Group’s future financial
statements:

+ IFRS 16 Leases: Introduction of a single, on-balance sheet accounting model (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

The Directors have assessed that the adoption of this will not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements as the Group does not hold any material operating leases as lessee.

« IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: Clarifies the application of recognition and
measurement requirements in IAS 12 Income Taxes, when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

The Directors have assessed that the adoption of this new interpretation will not have a material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

» Amendments to IFRS 5 Business Combinations: Clarifies the definition of a business. Asignificant
change in the amendment is the option for an entity to assess whether substantially all of the fair
value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single asset or group of similar assets. If such
a concentration exists, the transaction is not viewed as an acquisition of a business and no further
assessment of the business combination guidance is required. This will be relevant where the value
of the acquired entity is concentrated in one property, or a group of similar properties (effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 with earlier application permitted).

There will be no impact on transition since the amendments are effective for business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the transition date.
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2.5. Segmental information

IFRS 8§ Operating Segments requires eperating segments to be identified on the basis of internal financial
reports about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker,
which in the Group’s case is delegated to the Investment Adviser, who has formed an Executive Team, in order
to allocate resources to the segments and to assess their performance.

The internal financial reports received by the Investment Adviser’s Executive Team contain financial
information at a Group level as a who!e and there are no reconciling items between the resuits contained in
these reports and the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors consider the Group's property portfolio represents a coherent and diversified portfolio with
similar economic characteristics and as a result these individual properties have been aggregated into a
single operating segment. In the view of the Directors there is accordingly one reportable segment under the
provisions of IFRS 8.

All of the Group's properties are based in the UK. Geographical information is provided to ensure compliance
with the diversification requirements of the Company, other than this no geographical grouping is contained
in any of the internal financial reports provided to the Investment Adviser’s Executive Team and, therefore no
geographical segmental analysis is required by [FRS 8.

3. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 4, the Directors are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources, The estimates and associated assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are outlined below:

3.1. Significant estimate — Valuation of investment property

The Group uses the valuation carried out by its independent valuers as the fair value of its property portfolio.
The valuation is based upon assumptions including future rental income and the appropriate discount rate.
The valuers also make reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties. Further
information is provided in note 15.

The Group’s properties have been independently valued by Jones Lang LaSalle Ltd. (“JLL” or the “Valuer”)
according to the definitions published by the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors’ (“RICS”) Valuation -
Professional Standards, July 2017, Global and UK Editions (commonly known as the “Red Book”}. JLL is one of
the maost recognised professional firms within social housing valuation and has sufficient current local and
national knowledge of bath social housing generally and Specialist Supperted Housing ("SSH”) and has the
skills and understanding to undertake the valuations competently.

With respect to the Group’s consolidated financial statements, investment properties are valued at their fair
value at each balance sheet date in accordance with IFRS 13 which recognises a variety of fair value inputs
depending upon the nature of the investment. Specifically:

Level 1 - Unadjusted, quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active (typically quoted) markets.
Level 2 - Quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets.

Level 3 — External inputs are “unobservable”. Value is the director’s best estimate, based on advice from
relevant knowledgeable experts, use of recognised valuation techniques and a determination of which
assumptions should be applied in valuing such assets and with particular focus on the specific attributes of
the investments themselves.
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Given the bespoke nature of each of the Group’s investments, the particular requirements of due diligence
and financial contribution obtained from the vendors together with the recent emergence of SSH, all of the
Group’s investment properties are included in Level 3.

3.2. Significant judgement - Business combinations

The Group acquires subsidiaries that own investment properties. At the time of acquisition, the Group
considers whether each acquisition represents the acquisition of a business or the acquisition of an asset.
Management considers the substance of the assets and activities of the acquired entity in determining whether
the acquisition represents the acquisition of a business.

The Group accounts for an acquisition as a business combinalion where an integrated set of activities is
acquired in addition to the property. Where such acquisitions are not judged to be the acquisition of a
business, they are not treated as business combinations. Rather, the cost to acquire the corporate entity is
allocated between the identifiable assets and liabilities of the entity based upon their relative fair values at
the acquisition date. Accordingly, no goodwill or additional deferred tax arises.

With the exception of one acquisition detailed below, all other corporate acquisitions during the year have
been treated as asset purchases rather than business combinations because no integrated set of activities was
acquired.

During the year, the Group entered into a purchase of TLC Care Homes Limited which carried out operational
activities. Upon acquisition, investment properties were transferred into another Group company and the
company was sold. Further details are shown in note 15.1 to the financial statements.

3.3. Significant judgement - Operating lease contracts - the Group as lessor

The Group has acquired investment properties that are subject to commercial property leases with Registered
Providers. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
particularly the duration of the lease terms and minimum lease payments, that it retains all the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and so accounts for the leases as operating leases.

4, Summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are set
out below. The policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

4.1. Basis of consolidation
The consclidated financial statements comprise the financial information of the Group as at the period end
date.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity. All intra—group transactions,
balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. The financial information of the subsidiaries
is included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that
control ceases.

If an equity interest in a subsidiary is transferred but a controlling interest continues to be held after the
transfer then the change in ownership interest is accounted for as an equity transaction.

Accounting policies of the subsidiaries are consistent with the policies adopted by the Company.
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4.2, Investment property

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is initially measured
at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given, including expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the investment property. After initial recognition, investment property is stated at its
fair value at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive [ncome,

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits are associated
with the expenditure, Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is incurred in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions made for the valuation of investment
properties are discussed in note 3.

4.3. Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company has determined that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the properties
and accounts for the contracts as operating leases as discussed in note 3.

Properties leased out under operating leases are included in investment property in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis
aver the term of the relevant leases.

4.4. Financial Assets

Classification
From 1 April 2018, the Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

+ those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss); and

» those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or
loss or other comprehensive income,

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are amounts due in the ordinary course of business. If collection is expected in
one year or less, they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-—current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment provision. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows.
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Impairment
The Group’s financial assets are subject to the expected credit loss model.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales over a period of up to 36 months before
31 March 2019 or 1 April 2018, respectively, and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within
this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the liability of the tenants to settle the receivable. Such forward-looking
information would include: changes in economic, regulatory, technological and environmental factors, (such
as industry outlook, GDP, employment and politics); external market indicators; and tenant base.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, among others, the probability of
insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, cash held by lawyers and liquidity funds with a term of no
more than three months that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash held by lawyers is money held in escrow for expenses expected to be incurred in relation to investment
properties pending completion. These funds are available immediately on demand.

4.5. Financial liabilities
The Group recognises a financial liability when it first becomes a party to the contractual rights and obligations
in the contract.

All financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, minus (in the case of a financial liability that is
not at fair value through profit or loss) transaction costs that are directly attributable to issuing the financial
liability. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost, uniess the Group opted to measure
a liability at fair value through profit or loss.

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Trade and other pavables

Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less. If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities. Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost until settled. The fair value of a non-interest bearing
liability is its discounted repayment amount. If the due date of the liability is less than one year, discounting
is omitted.

Bank and other borrowings

All bank and other borrowings are initially recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction
costs. After initia) recognition, all bank and other borrowings are measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. Any attributable transaction costs relating to the issue of the bank borrowings are
amortised through the Group’s Statement of Comprehensive Income over the life of the debt instrument on a
straight-line basis.
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C share financial liability

C shares are convertible preference shares and under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation, meet
the definition of a financial liability. C shares are recognised on issue at fair value less directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, C shares are subsequently measured at amartised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Amortisation is credited to or charged to finance income or finance costs in
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. Transaction costs are deducted from proceeds at the
time of issue.

4.6, Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

4.7. Taxation

Taxation on the profit or loss for the period not exempt under UK REIT regulations is comprised of current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised as a direct movement in equity, in which case it is recognised as a direct
movement in equity. Current tax is expected tax payable on any non REIT taxable income for the period, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous periods.

The current tax charge is calculated on profits arising in the period and in accordance with legislation which
has been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities tor
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax that is
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and
lizbilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,

4.8. Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
congern in order to provide returns for shareholders and te maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital.

Capital assets comprise the following:

3% March 2018 31 March 2018

£7000 £'0600

Proceeds from the issue of Ordinary shares and retained earnings thereon 666,508 369,395
Proceeds from the issue of C shares and retained earmnings thereon - 298,752
Bank and loan borrowings - 205,156 90,822

Until the Group is fully invested and pending re-investment ar distribution of cash receipts, the Group will
invest in cash, cash equivalents, near cash instruments and money market instruments.

The Directors may use gearing to enhance equity returns. The level of borrowing will be on a prudent basis for
the asset class and will seek to achieve a low cost of funds, whilst maintaining the flexibility in the underlying
security requirements and the structure of the Group.
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The Group may, following a decision of the Board, raise debt from banks and/or the capital markets and the
aggregate borrowings of the Group will always be subject to an absolute maximum, calculated at the time of
drawdown, of 40% of the Gross Asset Value on a fully invested basis.

4.9. Dividends payable to shareholders

Dividends to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in the period in which the dividends are approved. In the UK, interim dividends are recognised
when paid.

4.10. Rental income
Rental income from investment property is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of ongoing leases
and is shown gross of any UK income tax. Lease incentives are spread evenly over the lease term.

4.11. Finance income
Finance income is recognised as interest accrues on cash and cash equivalent balances held by the Group.

4.12. Finance costs

Finance costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with bank and other
borrowings. Bank interest and bank charges are recognised on an accruals basis. Borrowing transaction costs
are amortised over the period of the loan.

After initial recognition, C shares are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. Amortisation is credited or charged to finance income or finance costs. Transaction costs are
amortised to the earliest conversion period.

4.13. Expenses
All expenses are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on an accruals basis.

4.14. Investment advisory fees
Investment advisory fees are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on an
accruals basis.

4.15. Share issue costs
The costs of issuing or reacquiring equity instruments (other than in a business combination) are accounted
for as a deduction from equity.

5. Rental income

For the From

vaar anred 18 November 2016

21 March 2409 10 31 March 2018

{660 £'000

Rental income from investment property 35,424 18,274
Rent straight line adjustments 459 332
Lease incertive adjustments (145) -
Total 35,738 18,606

As per the lease agreements between the Group and the Registered Providers, the Registered Providers are
responsible for the settlement of all present and future rates, taxes, costs and other impositions payable in
respect of the property. As a result, no direct property expenses were incurred.
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6. Directors’ remuneration

For the
vear ended
31 March 2013

From
18 November 2018
to 31 March 2018

£000 £'000
Directors fees 150 180
Employer’s Natioral Insurance Cantributions ‘ 13 ‘ 15
Tma' e e e ot ot o o et e ot et e s o« < e 163 20 5

The Directors are remunerated for their services at such rate as the Directors shall from time to time determine.

At IPQ, the Chairman was entitled to a fee of £35,000 per annum, and the other Directors of the Board to a
fee of £30,000 per annum (with the exception of the Chairman of the Audit and Management Engagement
Committee who was entitled to an additional fee of £2,500 per annum).

At a Board meeting on 26 July 2017, a resolution was passed authorising an increase to the fees of the Chairman
to £50,000 per annum, the Chairman of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee and the other
Directors to £36,000 per annum and £32,000 per annum respectively effective from 1 August 2017.

7. Particulars of employees
The Group had no employees during the year (31 March 2018 period: nil) other than the Directors.

8. Investment advisory fees

For the
year ended
31 March 2018

From
18 November 2016
to 31 March 2018

300 £000
Advisory fee 6,457 5773
Total 6,457 5773

Civitas Housing Advisors Limited ("*CHA”) is appointed as the Investment Adviser of the Company. Under
the current Investment Management Agreement, the Advisory Fee shall be an amount calculated in respect
of each Quarter, in each case based upon the Portfolic Net Asset Value (further explained in note 16) most
recently announced to the market at the relevant time (as adjusted for issues or repurchases of shares in the
period between the date of such announcement and the date of the relevant calcylation), on the following
basis:

a) on that part of the Portfolio Net Asset Value up to and including £250 million, an amount equal to
1% of such part of the Portfolio Net Asset Value;

by on that part of the Portfolio Net Asset Value over £250 million and up to and including £500 million,
an amount equal to 0.9% of such part of the Portfolio Net Asset Value;

¢y on that part of the Portfolio Net Asset Value over £500 million and up to and including £1,000
million, an amount egqual to 0.8% of such part of the Portfolio Net Asset Value;

) on that part of the Portfolic Net Asset Value over £1,000 million, an amount equal to 0.7% of such
part of the Portfolic Net Asset Value.

The appointment of the Investment Adviser shall continue in force unless and until terminated by either party
giving to the other not less than 12 months’ written notice, such notice not to expire earlier than 30 November
2021.

Changes to the Investment Advisory fee and changes to the appointment period effective from 26 April 2019
are detailed in note 35 on page 135.
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9. General and administrative expenses

tor the
year ended
21 Murch 2098

From
18 November 2016
to 31 March 2018

o008 £000
Legal ard professional fees 1,049 1.136
Administratior fees 717 581
Corsultancy fees 176 274
Audit fees AL 308
Abortive costs 18 168
Bad debts 421 -
Valuation fees 96 96
Depositary fees 60 a3
Grarts ard donations 28 79
Insurance 65 32
Marketing 101 71
Regulatory tees 19 29
Sundry experses 61 57
Directors’ expenses - 1

Abortive costs represent legal and professional fees incurred in relation to acquisition of investment properties

that were considered but subsequently aborted.

Services provided by the Company’s auditors and their associates

The Group has obtained the following services from the Company’s auditors and their associates:

For the
vear ended
31 March 2018

From
18 November 2016
to 31 March 2018

704045 £000

Audit of the fmancial statements 180 273

Review of the half vear financial statements 31 35

Corporate services relating to the C share conversion 10 -

Corporate services relating to the mnitial launch - 55

Corporate services relating to the C share fund raise - 200
Tota| e e e e e 221 563

1. Finance income

For the From

yvear ended 18 November 2016

31 March 2019 te 31 March 2018

£'000 £°000

Interest and dividends recewved on iquidhty funds 4386 413

Bank interest received 5 _
Tm; D R e e — . " e ﬁjﬁ
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11. Finmance expense

For the
yoar ended
31 darch 2019

From
18 November 2016
1o 31 March 2018

000 £'000
Bank charges 2 4
Interest paid and payable on bank borrowings 3,048 902
Bank borrowing commitment fees 207 9
Amertisation of loan arrangement fees 718 125
Finance expenses assocated witk bank borrowings 3975 O toa1
Amortisation of C share liability 6,400 2,792
Tmal e e e e [ 10,375 e e« 333 3 -

12. Taxation

As a UK REIT, the Group is exempt from corporation tax on the profits and gains from its property investment
business, provided it meets certain conditions as set out in the UK REIT regulations. For the current period
ended 31 March 2019, the Group did not have any non-qualifying profits and accordingly there is no tax charge
in the period. If there were any non-qualifying profits and gains, these would be subject to corporation tax.

It is assumed that the Group will continue to be a group UK REJT for the foreseeable future, such that deferred
tax has not been recognised on temporary differences relating te the property rental business. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the unutilised residual current period losses as it is notf anticipated

that sufficient residual profits will be generated in the future.

For the

year ended

31 March 2018
£'600

From

18 November 2016
10 31 March 2018
£'000

Corporation tax charge/icredit) for the period -

Total -

The tax charge for the period is less than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%. The differences

are explained below.

Foy the
vear ended
31 March 2019

From
18 November 2016
to 31 March 2018

000 £000
Group
Profitfiloss) before taxation 19,864 36,926
UK corporaton tax ate 7 1soe%  1927%
Theoretical tax at UK corporation tax rate 37714 7116
Effects of:
Change in value of exempt investment properties {694) (5,803)
Exempt REIT income (4,702) (2,352)
Amounts not deductible for tax purhoses 1,296 591
Urjqﬁ{:sﬁed_re@jgaf current penod tax fosses

Total ~

326

248
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The standard rate of corporation tax was reduced from 20% to 19% from 1 April 2017. The Government has
announced that the corporation tax standard rate is to be reduced to 17% with effective date from 1 April 2020,

REIT exempt income includes property rental income that is exempt from UK corperation tax in accordance
with Part 12 of CTA 2010.

13. IFRS Earnings per share
Earnings per share ("EPS”) amounts are calculated by dividing profit for the period attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Ordinary shares in issue during the period.

Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting earnings and the number of shares for the effects of dilutive options and
other dilutive potential Ordinary shares (i.e. the C shares).

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following:

bor the From
year ended 18 November 2018
31 March 2018 to 31 March 2018
Calculation of Basic Earnings per share

Net profit attnibutable to Ordinary shareholders (£°C00) 19,864 36,926
Weighted average number of Crdinary shares 425,393,423 350,000,000
Earmings per share — basic 4.67p 10.55p

Calculation of Diluted Earnings per share
Net profit attributable to Crdinary shareholders (£'200} 19,864 36,926
Add back finance costs associatad with the C share hability (£°000) 6.400 2,792
Weighted average number of Ordinary shares 425,393,423 350,000,000

065

Effects of dilbvion from C shares

622,74;6'! ,38(:1”" -

633,005,815
Earnings per share - diluted 4.22p 6.27p
14. Dividends
Forthe From
vaar ended 18 November 2016
31 Warch 2018 to 31 March 2018
£1000 £000
Dividend of 1.2bp for the 3 morths to 31 March 2018
{0.75p 3 montks to 31 March 2017) 4,375 2,625
Dividend of 1.25p for the 3 months to 30 June 2018
{0.75p 3 months to 30 June 2017} 4,375 2,625
Dividerd of 1.25p for the 3 months to 30 Septermber 2018
{0.75p 3 months to 30 September 2017) 4,375 2.625
Dividend of 1.25p for the 3 morths to 31 December 2018
10.750 3 months to 21 December 2017} 4,756 2.625
Total 17,881 10,500

On 10 May 2018 the Company announced a dividend of 1.25 pence per share in respect of the period 1 January
2018 to 31 March 2018. The dividend payment was made on 8 June 2018 to shareholders on the register as at
18 May 2018.
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On 3 August 2018 the Company announced a dividend of 1.25 pence per share in respect of the peried 1 Aptil
2018 to 30 June 2018. The dividend payment was made on 7 September 2018 to shareholders on the register
as at 17 August 20138.

On 1 November 2018 the Company announced a dividend of 1.25 pence per share in respect of the period
1 july 2018 to 30 September 2018. The dividend payment was made on 30 November 2018 to sharehoiders on
the register as at 8 November 2018,

On 29 November 2018 the Company announced a dividend of 1.11 pence per shate in respect of the period
1 October 2018 to 21 December 2018. The dividend payment was made on 11 January 2019 to shareholders on
the register as at 7 December 2018.

On 31 January 2019 the Company announced a dividend of 0.14 pence per share in respect of the period
22 December 2018 to 31 December 2018. The dividend payment was made on 28 February 2019 to shareholders
on the register as at 8 February 2019.

On 8 May 2019 the Company announced a dividend of 1.325 pence per share in respect of the period I January
2019 to 31 March 2019, The dividend payment was made on 7 June 2019 to shareholders on the register as at
17 May 2019. The financial statements do not reflect this dividend.

15. Investment property

For the From

vear gnded 18 November 2016

31 March 2019 1o 31 March 2018

7000 £'000

Baiance at beginming of penod 518,554 -

Property acquisitions 289,304 465,522

Acquisition costs 10,816 20,067

Change in farr value during the pernod 10,144 30,965

Value advised by the property valuers 826,918 516.554

Adiustments for lease incentive assets and rert straight line assets recognised lﬁ.824)7 ) 1332)

Total 820,094 516,222

Fay the From

yvaar ended 18 Naoveriber 2016

31 March 2419 tao 31 March 2018

Change in fair value of investment properties: £o00 £000

Change n valuation durning the period 10,144 30,965
Adjustment for lease incentives and rent straight hne

adiustments recognised in assets as:

Start of the penod 332 -

End of the pericd {6,824} {332}

3,652 30,633

In accordance with “1AS 40: Investment Property”, the investment property has been independently valued
at fair value by jLL, an accredited external valuer with recognised and relevant professional qualifications
and recent experience of the location and category of the investment property being valued, however the
valuations are the uljtimate responsibility of the Directors.
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JLL valued the Civitas Social Housing PLC property portfolio on the basis of each individual property and the
theoretical sale of the properties without the benefit of any corporate wrapper at £826,918,000 as at 31 March
2019 (31 March 2018: £516,554,000).

JLL has provided valuation services to the Company with regards to the properties during the period. In
relation to the period ended 31 March 2019, the proportion of the total fees payable by the Company to JLUs
total fee income was less than 5% and is therefore minimal. Additionally, JLL has a rotation policy in place
whereby the signatories on the valuations rotate after seven years.

All corporate acquisitions during the period have been treated as asset purchases rather than business
combinations because they are considered to be acguisitions of properties rather than businesses.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy for investment property:

Investment properties measured at fair value:
31 March 2019 820,004 - - 820,094

31 March 2018 516,222 - - 516,222

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during any of the periods, nor have there been any
transfers between Level 2 and Level 3 during any of the periods.

The valuations have been prepared in accordance with the RICS Valuation - Professional Standards
(incorporating the International Valuation Standards) by JLL, one of the leading professional firms engaged
in the social housing sector.

As noted previously all of the Group’s investments are reported as Level 3 in accordance with IFRS 13 where
external inputs are “unobservable” and value is the Directors’ best estimate, based upon advice from relevant
knowledgeahble experts.

In this instance, the determination of the fair value of investment property requires an examination of the
specific merits of each property that are in turn considered pertinent to the valuation.

These include:

i) the regulated social housing sector and demand for the facilities offered by each SSH property
owned by the Group;

iy the particular structure of the Group’s transactions where vendors, at their own expense, meet the
majority of the refurbishment costs of each property and certain purchase costs;

iil) detailed financial analysis with discount rates supporting the carrying value of each property;

iv) underlying rents for each property in compariscn to the market rent, with consideration given as
whether a property is over rented; and

v} afull repairing and insuring lease with annual indexation based on CPI or CPI+1% and effectively
25 vears outstanding in most cases with a Housing Association itself regulated by the Homes and
Communities Agency.

The following descriptions and definitions relating to valuation techniques and key unobservable inputs made
in determining fair values are as follows:
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Valuation techniques: market value method

The estimated amount for which a property should exchange between a willing buyer and a willing seller inan
arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had acied knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion. Such marketing to be structured such that the sale is undertaken in such a manner and
in a specific market with a view to maximising the value achieved.

There are two main unobservable inputs that determine the fair value of the Group’s investment property:

iy The rate of inflation as measured by CPI; it should be noted that all leases benefit from either CP1
or CPI+1 indexation.

i{} The discount rate applied to the rental flows.

Key factors in determining the discount rates applied include the reguiated social housing sector and demand
for each SSH property owned by the Group, costs of acquisition and refurbishment of each property, the
anticipated future underlying cash flows for each property, benchmarking of each underlying rent for each
property (passing rent), and the fact that all of the properties within the Group’s portfolio have the benefit of
full repairing and insuring leases entered into by a Housing Association.

As at the balance sheet date the lease lengths within the Group’s portfolio ranged from an effective 22 vears to
25 years with a weighted average unexpired lease term of 24.4 years (2018: 24.1). The greater the length then,
all other metrics being equal, the greater the value of the praperty.

Sensitivities of measurement of significant unobservable inputs

As set out within significant accounting estimates and judgements at 3.1 above, the Group’s property
investiment valuation is open to judgements and is inherently subjective by nature. As a result the following
sensitivity analysis has been prepared:

Average discount rate and range
The average discount rate used in the Group’s property Portfolio Valuation is 5,3% (2018: 6.5%).

The range of discount rates used in the Group’s property Portfolio Valuation is from 4.9% to 6.0% (2018; 5.6%
ta 9.1%).

The table below illustrates the change to the value of investment properties if the discount rate and CP1 used
for the portfolio valuation calculations are changed:

Increase/idecrease) In the IFRS fair value of investment properties at:
31 March 2619 33,203 130,788) 25,651 (24,71}
31 March 2018 20,634 (19.158) 16,062 15.412)

15.1. Subsidiary resale

For the From

vear ended 18 Novembear 2016

21 March 2018 to 31 March 2018

{006 £0G0

Balance at the beginning of the period - -
AcQuisition 25,470 -
Transfer to investment property 121,134) -
Sale proceeds {4,336} -
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The tabie above shows the transactions concerning the purchase and sale of TLC Care Homes Limited. On
7 December 2018, the Group acquired a subsidiary, TLC Care Homes Limited, for £25,470,000 consisting
of investment property and a care home business with the exclusive intent to sell the subsidiary business.
At acquisition, the fair value of the investment property was £21,134,000 and the fair value of the assets
and liabilities less selling costs of the care home business was £4,336,000. The care home business was sold
immediately following acquisition for £4,336,000.

16. Portfolio Net Asset Value

The objective of the Portfolio Net Asset Value (“Portfolio NAV”) measure is to highlight the fair value of the
net assets on an ongoing, long-term basis, which aligns with the Group’s business strategy as an cngoing
REIT with a long-term investment outlook. This Portfolio NAV is made available on a quarterly basis on the
Company's website and announced via RNS.

For the period from 14 November 2017 to 21 December 2018 the Company had 302,000,000 C shares in issue.
During that period the results, assets and liabilities attributable to the C shares were accounted for in a
separate pool to those of the Ordinary shares and thus the Company announced a quarterly Portfolio NAV for
both share classes.

Under IFRS accounting rules, the C shares are recognised in the financial statements as a liability valued at
amortised cost which represents the value of the assets and liabilities attributable to the C share pool (see
note 21). Thus, the net assets of the Company disclosed in the financial statements are equal to the net assets
attributable to the Ordinary shareholders.

On 21 December 2018 the C shares were converted to Ordinary shares as detailed in note 21.

In order to arrive at Portfolio Net Asset Value for each share class, adjustments are made to the IFRS Net Asset
Value (“IFRS NAV”) reported in the consolidated financial statements such that;

it The C share liability, equivalent to the net assets attributable to the C shareholders is added back
to net assets, because under IFRS accounting rules the C shares are recognised as a liability. (Please
refer to note 21 for more details).

i} The hypothetical sale of properties will take place on the basis of a sale of a corporate vehicle
rather than a sale of underlying property assets. This assumption reflects the basis upon which the
Company’s assets have been assembled within specific SPVs.

itiy The hypothetical sale will take place in the form of a single portfolio disposal.

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

21000 £'000

Net asset value per the consolidated financial statements 666,508 369,395

Add back C share liability - 298,752

Value of asset pools 666,508 668,147
Effects of the adoption to the assumed, hypothetical sale of properties as a

portfolio and on the basis of sale of a corporate vehicle - 74,662 33,124

Portfolio Net Asset Value 741,170 701,271
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After reflecting these amendments, the movement in net assets since inception is as follows:

For the
vear ended
31 March 2019

From
18 November 2016
1o 31 March 2018

faeloldl £'000
Opening reserves at start of period 70,27 31}
Net issue {costs)proceeds [56) 638,960
Operating profits texciuding capital appreciation) 26,096 8,713
Capital appreciation 45,190 83,767
Finance income 491 413
Finance costs (3,975} {1,047}
Dividends paid to Ordinary and C shareholders (27.847) {10,500}
Portfolio Net Assets at 31 March 2018 e T aa70 ovan

Value is represented by:

31 March 2079

31 March 2018

£000 £'000
Investment propeny using the portfolio valuation method 901,580 549 3486
Net current assets 44,746 242 747
Bank borrowings {205,156) 190,822}
Fortfohio Net Assets 741,170 FO1.271
Shares in 1ssue 522,461,380 See below
Portfolio Net Asset Value per share 113.07p See below
The table below shows the figures at 31 March 2018 split between the asset pools.
Value is represented by:
Ordirary C
share poo! share pool Total
£000 £'000 £'000
Investroent property using the portiobo valuabion rmethod 471,525 77821 548,346
Net current assets 17802 224 845 242,747
Bark borrowings 180,822} - 190,822)
Portfolio Net Assets 398,505 302,766 701.271
Shares in issue 350,000,000 302,000,000
Portfolo Net Asset Value per share 113.86p 100.25p
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17. Trade and other receivables

31 March 2078

31 Marck 2018

Amounts falling due in |less than one year L000 000
Rent receivable 2,954 175
Less provision for impairment (421} _
Accrued iIrcome 2,778 2,398
Debtor arising from rent straight line adjustments - 332
Prepayments and other receivables 412 410

Prepayments and other receivables amount above includes prepaid legal and professional fees of £343,000
(2018: £393,000) that have been incurred in connection with the acquisitions yet to be completed.

31 March 2019

31 Marck 2018

Amounts falling due after more than one year £1000 £'000
Debtor arising from straight ire adjustments 791 -
Lease incentives 6,033 -

The aged analysis of trade receivables that are past due but not impaired was as follows:

371 Marcn 2018
0

31 March 2018

£00 £'000
Current 941 -
< 30 days 353 175
30-60 days 499 -
> B0 days 1,11 -
IR 2,954 s
Less provision for impairment {421} -

The Directors consider the fair value of receivables equals their carrying amount.

The table above shows the aged analysis of trade receivables included in the tabie above which are past due.
The provision for impairment principally relates to First Priority Housing Association (“First Priority™).

Other categories within trade and other receivables do not include impaired assets.

Civitas Social Housing PLC = -
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i8. Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2019 31 March 2018

7000 £000

Cash held by soligitors 17,031 12,262

Liguidity Junds 13,394 210,969

Cash held at bank 16,703 20,0694
Unrestricted cash and cash equwvalerms a7128 243325

Restricted cash 7218 6,283
Tomf e e A 1t 1 e e A1+ 5 o e et P st 1 1+ 1 i e e 54347 ,,,,,,,,,,,, S 249508

Liquidity funds refer to money placed in money market funds. These are highly liquid funds with accessibility
within 24 hours and subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash held by lawyers is money held in escrow for expenses expected to be incurred in relation to investment
properties pending completion. These funds are available immediately on demand.

Restricted cash represents retention money held by lawyers in relation to deferred payments subject to
achievement of certain conditions, other retentions and cash segregated to fund repair, maintenance and
improvement works to bring the properties up to satisfactory standards for the Group and the tenants.
Currently that amount of cash is held in escrow.

19. Trade and other payables

31 March 28 31 March 2018

£000 £'000

Deferred incorme 14 225

Acquisition costs accrued 10,074 8,366

Lease incentives payatie 3,000 -

Firance costs 798 498

Dividends payable 717 427

Accruals 616 660

in 105 -
Tota Cis324 00%

Acguisition costs accrued includes the balance of retention monies (as represented by £7,219,000 (2018:
£6,283,000), restricted cash as per note 18) and acquisition costs capitalised.

"Represents tax liabilities incurred by subsidiary companies prior to acguisition by the Group.

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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Bank borrowings are secured by charges over individual investment properties held by certain asset-holding
subsidiaries. The banks also hold charges over the shares of certain subsidiaries and any intermediary holding
companies of those subsidiaries. Any associated fees in arranging the bank borrowings unamortised as at the
period end are offset against amounts drawn on the facilities as shown in the table below:

For ihe
yuar anded

31 March 2018

From
18 November 2016
to 31 March 2018

HG00 £'000
Balarce at start of period 92,457 _
Bank borrowings drawn 115,990 92,457
Bark borrowings drawn at end of period - 208447 92457
Balance at start of period {1.635) -
Less loan 1ssue costs incurred (2,374} {1,761}
Add: loan 1ssue costs amortised 718 126
Uramortised costs at end of period -  ma2en aess)

At end of period

31 March 2018 31 March 2018
000 £'000
Maturity of bank borrowings:
Repayable within 1 year - -
Repayahle between 1 to 2 vears 55,947 -
Repayable between 2 to 5 years 100,000 39,957
Repayable after 5 years 52,500 52,500
Total T T T 0gaay 90457

The Group is party to the following loan facility agreements:

A 10-year Sterling Term Facility Agreement dated 2 November 2017 for up to £52,500,000 with Scottish
Widows Limited. Interest is fixed at a total of 2.9936% per annum.

The borrowings include amounts secured on investment property to the value of £169,999,000 (2018:
£163,812,000).

A 3-year Sterling Revolving Facility Agreement dated 15 November 2017 for up to £40,000,000 with Lloyds
Bank ple. interest is charged at LIBOR +1.50% margin. During the vear a £20,000,000 increase of this facility
was agreed.

The borrowings include amounts secured on investment property to the value of £144,166,000 (2018:
£97,400,000).

A 3-year Revolving Credit Facility Agreement dated 28 November 2018 for up to £100,000,000 with HSBC Bank
PLC. Interest charged at LIBOR +1.70% margin.

The borrowings include amounts secured on investment property to the value of £208,953,000.

A number of covenants are in place under the three agreements. Under the 10-year facility, historical and
projected interest cover must be at least 325% and the loan to value ratio must not exceed 40%. Under the
Lloyds Bank plc 3-year revolving credit facility, historical and projected interest cover must be at least 250%
and the loan to value ratio must not exceed 55%. Under the HSBC Bank PLC 3-year facility, historical and
projected interest cover must be at least 250% and the loan to value ratio must not exceed 60%.
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21. C shares

ror the Frorn

year ended 18 Novermber 20N6

31 March 20418 to 31 March 218

000 £:000

At beginning of period 298,752 -
Praceeds from issue of C shares - 302,000
C share issue costs - 16,0401
Dwidends paid to C shareholders {9,966} -
Armortisation of C share habibity 6,400 2,792
Conversion to O y shares o - (235,}85) ) -
At end of period - 298,752

On 10 November 2017 the Company announced the issue of 302,000,000 C shares, issued at £1 per share. The
C shares are convertible preference shares. The shares were listed on the London Stock Exchange and dealing
commenced on 14 November 2017,

Holders of C shares are not entitled to receive notice of, attend, speak or vote at general meetings of the
Company.

Under [AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation, the C shares meet the definition of a financial liability
rather than equity and are presented in the financial statements as a liability of the Company carried at
amortised cost.

The funds were raised in order to finance a number of property acquisitions and C shares were issued rather
than Qrdinary shares so that the issue costs associated with the fund raise and the costs associated with the
property acquisitions did not diiute the Ordinary share NAV.

In order to calculate the net assets attributable to each share class, the results, assets and liabilities attributable
to the C shares are identified in a separate pool to the results, assets and liabilities of the Ordinary shares. A
share of fund level expenses for the period is allocated to the C shares based on the net assets of each share
class pool.

It should be noted that these financiai statements include aif resulits, assets and labilities of both share class
poals, however, as the C shares are classified as a liability, net assets are reduced by the value of the C shares
liability which is also equivalent to the net assets of the C share pool.

On 21 December 2018 the C shares were converted to Ordinary shares in the ratio 0.902190 new Ordinary
shares for every 1 C share held. The convetsion ratio was calculated with reference to the respective portfolio
net asset values of the C shares and Ordinary shares at close of business on the calculation date.

Accordingly 272,461,380 Ordinary shares were issued.

Civitas Social Housing PLC -+ -



' Finuncial Staternents 97 - 142

22. Share capital
Share capital represents the nominal value of consideration received by the Company for the issue of Ordinary
shares,

For the From
year endod 18 November 2016
31 Maren 2019 10 31 March 2018
£°G00 £'000
Share capital
At beginning of period 3,500 -
Shares 1ssued 2,725 3,500
Atend of period " sms 3500
Number of shares issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £0.01 each
At beginring of period 350,000,000 100
Shares ssued 272,461,380 349,999,800
Atend 0?5&!i0d o o o ) T 622,461,380 o 3501000,6-(:)%) )

The Company’s Ordinary shares were admitted to the premium listing segment of the Official List of the FCA
and to trading on the London Stock Exchange on 1§ November 2016, raising £350 million. As a result of the
PO, on 18 November 2016, 349,999,900 shares at £0.01 per share were issued, fully paid.

On 21 December 2018 the Company issued 272,461,380 Ordinary shares in respect of the conversion of
302,000,000 C shares. The fair value of assets representing the C share pool at that date was £295,186,000.

23. Share preniiunm reserve
The share premium reserve represents the amounts subscribed for Ordinary share capital in excess of nominal
value less associated issue costs of the subscriptions.

From
18 Novernber 2016
10 21 March 2018

£000
At beginning of period - -
Premium ansing on shares issued 292,461 348,500
Share rssue costs (56) [7000)
Transter to capital reduction reserve ‘ - (339.500)

At end of period 292,405 -

At a Board meeting on 15 November 2016, a resolution was passed authorising the cancellation of the share
premium account and it was conditional upon the three following terms:

+ admission of the Ordinary shares to listing on the UK Listing Authority’s Official List;
= trading on London Stock Exchange’s Main Market for listed securities; and
» approval of the Court for the reduction of share capital.

In order to cancel the share premium account the Company needed to obtain a court order, which was received
on 1 February 2017. An SH19 form was sent to Companies House with a copy of the court order on 1 February
2017 and the certificate of cancellation was issued by Companies House on 13 February 2017.

Upon cancellation of the share premium account, the funds were transferred to the capital reduction reserve
and these funds are classified as amounts available for distribution.
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24, Capital reduction reserve
The capital reduction reserve is a distributable reserve to which the value of the cancelled share premium has
been transferred. Dividends can be paid from this reserve.

For the From
vaar endod 18 Navember 2016
31 March 2019 to 31 March 2018
Fooo F'000
At beginning of period 331,625 -
Transfer from the share premium reserve - 339,500
Dividends paid in the penod las per note 14} o - ] - (7875)
At end of period 331,625 331,625
25. Retained earnings
This reserve represents the profits and losses of the Group.
For the From
vear endcd 18 November 2016
31 Maorch 2018 1o 31 March 2018
£'00¢ £000
At beginnirg of pened 34,270 21
Protit for the period 19,864 36,926
Dwidends paid 1r the penod {as per note 14) ) 7 (178871) 7(2,625! )
At end of period 36,253 34,270

26. Net asset value

Basic NAV per share is calculated by dividing net assets in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the number of Ordinary shares outstanding at the end
of the period.

Diluted NAV per share is caiculated by adjusting net assets for the conversion of the C shares.

Net asset values have been calculated as follows:

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Net assets (£'000} 666,508 368,385
Number of Ordirary shares in 1issue at end of panod 622,461,380 350,000,000
NAV-base u oS 1055
Net assets (£'000) 666,508 369,395
Adiust for the effect of the C shares corverting [£'000) - 298,752
Adusted retassets (0000 " 666508 668147
Number of Ordinary shares i ssue at end of pesod 622,461,380 350,000,000
Number of Ordinary shares that would be 1ssued on the conversion of C shares ) - 283,065,815
Tota l_ e L T I LT I LD T _‘ ..y o _ — T e, “—H ugA_; g __g
NAY ~ diluted 107.08p 105.54p
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27. Reconciliation of labilities to cash flows from financing

For the

C share Bark vegr enged

liability horrowings 31 March 2019

£°000 £'000 £ro0e

Balance at the beginrirg of the period 298,752 90,822 389,574
Cash flows from financing activities

Loan draw down - 115,890 115,990

Loan arrangement costs paid - {2,374 (2,374}

Dividends paid to C shareboiders in the period 18,966) - (9,966}

Non cash movements

Amortisation of loan arrangement costs - 718 718

Amortisation of C shares hiability 6,400 - 6,400

C share conversion ({295,186) 7 - (295,1886)

Summary of non cash transactions

On 21 December 2018 the C shares were converted to Ordinary shares in the ratio 0.902190 new Ordinary
shares for every 1 C share held. The conversion ratio was calculated with reference to the respective portfolio
net asset values of the C shares and Ordinary shares at close of business on the calculation date. The fair value
of assets represented by the C share pool, being the deemed consideration, was £295,186,000.

28. Ogperating leases

The Group is party to a number of operating leases on its investment properties with Registered Providers.
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases receivable by the Group are as

follows:

31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2018

7000 £000
Armounts recevable
< 1 year 45,685 28,203
1-2 years 45,720 28,801
2-5 years 137,356 86,399
> B years 882,407 554 060
Atend of period B ] B B o 1,111,168 607453

Leases are direct-let agreements with Registered Providers for a term between 15 to 25 years with indexed
linked annual rent reviews. All current leases are full repairing and insuring (“FRI") leases, the tenants are
therefore obliged to repair, maintain and renew the properties back to the original conditions.

Civitas Social Housing PLC -
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The following table gives details of percentage of annual rental income per Registered Provider:

31 March 2019 31 March 218

%o %

Westmoreland Supported Housing Limited 19.66 35.02
Falcon Housing Association CIC 20.89 14.44
First Pnonty Housing Association® - 10.66
Bespoke Supportive Terancies 1.37 -
Auckland Home Solutions 11.26 -
inchusion Housing CIC 8.34 8.70
Encircle Housing Limited 6.33 -
Tty Housing Association Limited 574 9.04
PAS Housing Association 4.09 5.04
Chrysalis Supperted Assocation Limited 3.41 4.43
New Walk Property Management CIC 2.95 4.59
Harbour Light Assisted Living CIC 2.42 3.76
My Space Howsing Solutions 1.24 -
IKE Supported Housing Limited 1.20 1.89
Hilldale Housing Association Limited 1.03 143
Blue Square Limited 0.07 -

“Leases transferred to Falcon Housing Associatian CIC in the year.

The Group is also party to a number of opcrating leases an its long leasehold properties. The ground rent
payment commitments under these operating leases are negligible so the future minimum lease paynents
under these leases have not been disclosed in these financial statements.

29. Controlling parties
As at 31 March 2019 there is no ultimate controlling party.

30. Related party disclosures

The Directors are remunerated for their services at such rate as the Directors shali from time to time determine.
The aggregate remuneration and benefits in kind of the Directors of the Company (in each case, solely in their
capacity as such) in respect of the period ended 31 March 2019 payable out of the assets of the Company is
not expected to exceed £200,000. At [PQ, the Chairman was entitled to a Director’s fee of £35,000 per annum,
and the other Directors of the Board to a fee of £30,000 per annum (with the exception of the chairman of the
Audit and Management Engagement Committee who was entitled to an additional fee of £2,500 per annum).

At the Board meeting on 26 July 2017, a resolution was passed authorising an increase to the fees of the
Chairman to £50,000 per annum, the Chairman of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee and
the other Directors to £36,000 per annum and £32,000 per annum respectively effective from 1 August 2017.

Fees of £150,000 (period 31 March 2018: £190,000) were incurred and paid to the Directors.
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As at 31 March 2019, the Directors held the following number of shares:

31 March 2018 31 Marck 20018
Orddinary Ordinary C
Director shares shares shares
Whchael Wrobe! Chairmar 100,598 30.000 45,000
Peter Baxter Director 47,065 20,000 30,000
Carolire Gulliver Audit and Maragement Engagement Commuttee Charr 58,382 25000 37500
Alastair Moss Director 11.766 5,000 7500

The Company and CHA (collectively the “Members”) entered into a limited liability partnership agreement
with Civitas Social Housing UK LLP (“LLP”) on 1 November 2016 to govern the mutual rights and duties of
the LLP and the Members of the LLP. Under the terms of the Limited Liability Partnership Agreement, the
Investment Adviser was entitled to an amount of £980,000 as Priority Profit Share from the date of the IPO to
31 March 2017, which is included in the Investment Advisory fees of £5,773,000 mentioned in note 8. There
was no consideration paid or due from the Members of the LLP. The limited liability partnership agreement
and the original Investment Advisory Agreement were terminated on 1 April 2017 and were replaced by the
current Investment Management Agreement,

Remuneration

The Investment Manager has reviewed its remuneration policies and procedures to ensure incentives are
aligned with the requirements of AIFMD. It includes measures to avoid conflicts of interest such as providing
staff with a fixed monthly salary and determining discretionary payments by the performance of the Investment
Manager as a whole and not linked to any one AIF in particular. The AIFM and its staff receive no remuneration
through profit share, carried interest, co-investment or other schemes related to the Company’'s performance.

31. Transactions with the Investment Adviser
On 1 November 2016 Civitas Housing Advisors Limited was appointed as the Investment Adviser of the
Company.

Fees of £6,457,000 (pericd to 31 March 2018: £5,773,000) were incurred and paid to CHA.
As at 31 March 2019, no amounts (31 March 2018: £nil) were due to/from CHA,
At 31 March 2019, CHA held 50,000 Ordinary shares in the Company.

32. Conselidated entities

The Company has provided a guarantee under 5479C of the Companies Act 2006 in respect of the financial
year ended 31 March 2019 for a number of its subsidiary companies (as indicated in the table on the following
pages). The guarantee is over all outstanding liabilities to which the subsidiary companies are subject at
31 March 2019 until they are satisfied in full.

The Group consists of a parent company, Civitas Social Housing PLC, incorporated in England and Wales and
a number of subsidiaries held directly by Civitas Social Housing PLC, which operate and are incorporated in
the UK and Jersey.
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The Group owns 100% equity shares of all subsidiaries listed below and has the power to appoint and remove
the majority of the board of directors of those subsidiaries. The relevant activities of the below subsidiaries
are determined by the board of directors based on the purpose of each company.

Therefore the Directors concluded that the Group has control over all these entities and all these entities have
been consolidated within the consolidated financial statements.

A list of all related undertakings included within these consolidated financial statements are noted below.
Indirectly held subsidiary companies are marked by an indentation in the table below.

Registered Frincipat Country of Cwnership
Name numhber activity incorpotation b
Cyvitas Social Housing Finance Company 1 Limited ¥ 10997707 Finance Company England &Wa\es 100 00%
Citas Sooisf Housing Jersey 1 Limited 124128 Holding Compary  Jersey  10000%
 CiesSPViLmited 5 10518729 Properly mvestment England &\ales  100.00%
o ClvnagSP\FZL\m_ned——_ ST i 10114251 o Property mvestmemkili?r:r‘;]ﬁla‘md&Wa les o TO0.00%
T CwmssSPVITLmites 5 10546M9  Properly rvestment England &Wales 100.00%
 Civitas SPV15 Limited 403777380 Properly investment England & Wales  100.00%
""""""""" Cwtes SPV250Lmited 3 10701473 Properly mvestment England &Wales  100.00%
__”—“EI\I;;é\E\I_Z.?_L]r_ﬁt_ed_”—’_’_N—!«y—_-m_w; _T-Ogé;H? F Pr:perty mvestment Er‘giand&Wa!es 'ﬁii&)EG%
_ CivtasSPva3Umited 3 10546407 Property ivestment England &Wales  10000%
Ciwtas SPV35 lelted“ o ) i 1'0588530 Property mves{meﬂt England & Wales 100 OG%
Cwites SPV38 Lintes % 10738318 Propeny rvestmert Ergland &\Wales  100.00%
 CwwasSPVESLmited % 10547333 Property mvestment Englend &Wales  100.00%
 CwtasSPYaDLmted 1 10738510 Properly investment Englend &Wales  10000%
o Ci\/i{;’;’u‘S SPV41 Limited T ¥ 10?38542 ) PFODBFTV mvestment EFQ/an & Walaes T .’.l‘){;UUm
| CwmasSPVSOLmited 3 10775419 Propertynvestment England &Wales  100.00%
C:wgasSoan Housmg Frnanceﬁ(_:‘rt;;;;amr’ryﬁzmer«zed T ; 10997698 ) Frnance;a)mpany Ergland &Wales - 100 DO%V
C!vnas Socnal Housmg Jersev 2L rnlted 7 124876 HoldmgCompahy Jetsey ) 100 00%---
""""""" Civitas SPV3 Limited T 5 1mse529 Propenty investment  Frgland & Weles 100 00%
 CwtasSPvalimtes 3 1043314 Propertynvestment England &Wales  100.00%
o CIVJ‘IBS SPV5 LJmned T T i 10479104 o Properiy investment Engand & Wales 100 OD%
) CW\'[;S éPVB Limited T i 10674493 Property investment Eng!and &Wa e:% o 100. 00%
CiwtasSPv@Limied 5 10536388 Property investment Englanc &Wales  10000%
 CwtasSPVioLimted 310535743 Property mvestment England &Wales  100.00%
T Clwias SF’\/‘]Z ijated e 1 10546753 MPrwoperrwymvejstmem Er\gJand &\Nahes o 10000%
rrrrrrrrrrrr C\thas SPV17 Limited T N iV 10479636 Propeny investment  England & Wales - 100.00%
- Cwné?SEVfS L|m1ed S 7; ‘IDB4€8§1 Property mvestmenﬁter?gﬁanid g\ﬁa;; N iEoEo%
 CuitasSPVigLmited 1105489327 Property nvesiment England &WWales  100.00%
B Civitas SPVZO meed N ) i ) i 10588735 P‘roper?ym\;estm_ent England &\Nakes o 100.00%
 CwtasSPvzzUmied 4 1073955 Property investment England &Weles 100.00%
—C\vxt‘z;sSl;VZA L\mnea T T I 10761612 Properw mvestmem Erg and &Watas o 100. QO%
"""" Citas SPV26 Lmited 410864336 Properly mvesiment England &Wales  100.00%
7_ ECMta*sSP\f"ZQLL;mIed‘ - ) o \¢ 10911_5;6;*”7 Property investment  England &\Nahes - 100 OO%
 Cwites SPV30 Limited £ 10956075 Property investment England &Wales  10000%
 CvmasSPVBILimied 1 1091889 Property mestment Erglend &Wales 100.00%
 Cwitas SPVSZLmied & 11007778 Property invesiment England &Wales  100.00%
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Registgred Prinicipal Country of Cwnersiip

Name number aotivily mearporation %
Civitas SPV34 meited + 10738381 Property investment  England & Wales ~100.00%
 Cwitas SPV36 Limited 10588732 Property mvesiment Erglard &Wales  10000%
-C\thds SPV42 L\mlteu“ i 10738556 Property investment Ergland &\Na\esw o 100 OO%M
VCrrytrfas SPV:-’l::.WEr”n;rted S T ﬁi 10534877 Property irvestrent “E-ngiaﬂd & Waies S 100 GO%V
Cwataé SPV45 Liruted o . ¢ 108?1854 7 Pro;ge'rty mves-,_t-r‘rtwg;t Ergiahd &Wales ‘|OO OD%N
”deas SPvas L\mlted" S 1 10871910 o Property myestmer‘t Eng\and & Waleswm o ‘IOO OO%m
Clvltas SPVAVTr'WLlrm\ted o N ﬂi_ 1087372%5 P;éperty lr‘vestmem England &Wales o 100. OVO‘;;

) Cuynas SPV48 le ted o 7 4 t 10873295 ﬁrép;eny :nyeétment én-giand &Wales o 100 00%
CivitesSPVET Limited % 10826693 Property mvestment Ergland &\Wales  100.00%

© CwiesSPVSZUimted 4 10827006 Property mvesimert Fngland &Wales  10000%
 Cwitas SPVG3 Limted £ 10937805 Property mvestment  England & Vieles  100.00%
 CwiesSPVE4 Lmied a + 1093841 Property investment Frgland &Wiales  100.00%

+

CMtas Socaai Housmg Fmamce Compary 3 erned
Clvnas SPVS le\ted
Cwnas SP\,’ZS leﬂed

7 --CIVITaS SPV71 lewtedﬂ-
N C:vnas SPV?Z mmrewously FPI CO 171 Lth i
N I 1ed (prewc»us\y FP\ CO 192 Ltd ¢
”C|vnas SPV75 le:ted lprewously FPI CO 193 Ltd i

Cnvitas PV?A Li

viously F co 151 Lidh +

107
10888539

Property nvestment

Property invesiment

Er Iand &Wal s

Engiand &Wales

‘100‘00%

10938022

11001 834

C\\mas SPVSO L\mlted (prewous!y FPL CO 195 Ltd} E

Crvnas SPV53 Llrmed

antas SPVSS Lfmated

CNltas SPVS? L\m:ted
Cwlras SPVGO Llrmted

Csynas SPV79 L\rmted

vanas SP\HOG L:mned
Clwtas SP\MO? Luwted N
Cmtas SP\/‘HE le\ted

CNJ‘!BS SP\/1 17 LJmJIed

CIVPT&S SPV81 L\mnted T
C\vatas SPVB2 erlted

th{as SPV61 L\mlted 7 "
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1IM908 Property mvestment Englend &Wales  10000%
10937662 M”I;roperty ;r;-y;astmemw i Englandéﬁ@\t‘a\es o 100 OO% 0%
10937898 Property mvestment England & Wales  100.00%
1166491 Property invesiment England & Waies  100.00%
11170099 Property mvestment MEngIand & Wales 100 OOK"A:
11236544 o Prcperty |nveatment England &Wa\es-m“ma A TOO OD%-
11192811 Proper‘ty mvestmem Erglard &Wa\es.m o ‘iOO OO%H
113867-"96 Property Investment E;&aﬂd &Walesm S 100 Oﬁﬂ-/c,--
1137‘1 128 m‘__l?_f_operlyu}“r:yestmem - lfﬂEngIa nd & Wales 10() 00 %“
11300M9  Property investment _Englard & Wales  100.00%
11208184 Property mvesiment England &Wales  100.00%
711463896“ Pro;;—:-rty \nvesif;éwr;‘-t Engiand & Wales 100 00%7
11500_596_ o Property wveszmer*t Englar_w-a-é_y\/ales o 100 00% .
11532177 F’roperty nvestment Eng\ar\.d & Wales - 100 OO%W
11%321797” Propertymvestmer‘t Erg\and &Wales-mm “—‘T(_D“O‘OG"/O'

11532182
11504399

11504445

124877

Property investment

Property |nvestment

Propeny lr‘vestmem

Ho\dmg Compary

England &Wa!es
EngWand & Wales

England & Wales

100100%
100 00%

‘lDG DG%

Jersey

'IOO OO%
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cgistesed Pringipat Country of Owmgishup
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{
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i

ertas SPVSB Lfrmted o i o

Cnvttas SPV94 Limited

¢
+

Civitas SPVO6 Limited %

Cvios SPVSBLimies %

Snapco Lmnted 7 B

Snapco 2 anltedm

R SPahco 3 L\mitedw - - i

 Srepcoabwmted
Snapco 5 lenedwm .

C\\;n.tas SPV99 L\mited o . ¢

Snépco 6 leﬂed‘ T
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09517692 N Property nvestment  Ergland &Waies 100‘00%
10479041 Property rvestment England &Weles  10000%
09917557 Property investment  England &Wales  100.00%
10631841 Property mvesiment Englend &Wales  100.00%
10746881 Property mvestment  England & Wales T 00 00%
10738450 Property investment  England &Wafes - 10500%
10568783 Property nvesiment _England B Wales  100.00%
11031345 Property \-nvestme-;tm_- [':_ﬁ-giand &Wales T 100 00%
11039750 Propery rvestment England & Wales  100.00%
1105%465‘ Property investment  England E;-WéMelS T ‘180 7(7]70‘;/0
111912 Properly investment  England & Wales  100.00%
10937528 Propenty investment  England &Wales  100.00%
10938467 Property mvesiment Englend & Wales 100 00%
7175957'929 o Property investment énglaﬁd &\Nares “‘&J‘O GO%
10938269 Pmperty nvestment Ergland &Wa!es o 100.00%
11142372 Preperty investment  England & Wales 100.00%‘
10939075 Property investment England & Wales  100.00%
;ESTJSS _-uugr-ope‘r;m;tm-;t Er‘gland & Wales o 1DD 0_0%_
11418432 o Property investment Engrand &Wa(eswww" » 100.00%
0883000 Proporty mwestment England 8Walss 100 00%
10938044 Property nvestment England &Weles  10000%
10939T3{ o Property mvestmeﬂt Eﬁg/arrwrdr&Waies S 10000%
10941377 Property investment Eng\and &Wa\es 100 00%
11299913 Property mwesimert England &Weles  100.00%
11643711 ‘7‘};’;;;;::;\;;;;;1 England & Wa les 100, DO%
11208105 Proper‘wmvestmem Eng!aﬂd &Wa\es 7"100 00%
112707‘86 o Pr_opert_ynnves;m‘em Ergland & Wales o 77‘100 OO% 7
11478695 Holung Compeny  England & Waies  10000%
008603V Property mvestment IsieofMan  10000%
008143V Properly investmentisleof Man  100.00%
000124y Property investment  Isle of Man  10000%
0?1&“3—0\/_ B __Pr;;;;rgfugvestmem Is[e of Man T _w-1063t}“’;c‘
02V Property investment lsleof Man  10D00%
11473707 Holding Compary B Er;g\amd &V\;ales R i 1DGOD%
GTZHZV o ;rgp;rw mvestmem fsfwezf?\ﬁralﬁi o 100 GG%
11059703 'WW‘P'régé-r};;:;é;;gﬁt Eﬁglér}d &Wa!é% 7777 100 00%'
09978282 : P(operty investment  England &Waies o 100 OD%
"1;521555 Property investment  England & Wa/es 1é0 00%
NEGI17  Property mvestment Engiand &Wales  100.00%
11532 135 Dormant - VEngfamd &Wales _106.00%
1132120 Property investment England & Wales 100 00%
11579750 Property investment  England &Wa\e_su_’—u— ?0_66%_
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Ragistered Principal Country of Ownership

Name nyming activity incorporation RS
Cl\ntas SPVHB L\mned ¥ 11580068 Property Irvestment Fr*gland &\Na\es 100 OO%
Cwnas SPVTM L\r"‘tlled o i 115;9?33 Propertylr‘vestmem Ergland &\Naies - 1G0. DO%
Cvitas SPYTIS Limited '+ 11s22178  Property mvestment  England & Wales  100.60%
Crutas SPVHS Limited ) 4 1411488 Properly investmert Ergland &Wales  100.00%
Chites SPV119 Limited 7 wsisis pomant  Engrd&Wales  100.00%
Cmtas SPVW?O L\rmted S 11801922 Dormc:m T Ergland & Wales o 100 00%
Crites SPV121 Limted $ 11099917 Property mvestmert Ergend &Wales  100.00%
Cmtas SP\/TZ‘Z erlted o o 777; 11482646 ) Property rr’vestmeﬂt Er‘g#aﬂd & Wa{es W‘_TOEHGO%
Cmtas SPV 23 L\mlted . s 08?_53452 Probé&y investment  England &Wales - 10666;’/0
Clvntas SPV126 Limited S i 11459821 Property nvestment 7 Ergland &Wa\es - WOO OO%
C:\:’l‘;e-l_e-;-_éPV‘IZ;' -Llr‘ﬂ!ted . ) 10941:1[)1 WPrope‘rtymvest;ﬂent Er-Wélarnd & Wales o 100.00%
) B 11664994 ‘ Propeﬁy mvesﬁﬁent Erg!and &Waies 100 OO%

170507 Property wvestmen: England &Wales  100.00%

- ' 1675132 Property nvestment  Englard &Wales  100.00%

o 114 57 Pr;%péz_rty V:nve“sgeint E_n;\and &V@es -‘——— WOOOO%

C\vnas SPV'I35 anHEd
C\vnas SPV143 lened
Clwtas SF’V 144 LJmlred

C\\mas SPVME lened

Clwtas SPVMB Li mned

F|e|dbav lened

Clvnas SF'V‘|47 L\mned

Clv tas SPV148 lelted 7
"~.C|V|tas SPVMQ Lamned

C|vttas SPV] 50 L\mned

Cwnas SPV151 anited

FP\ CO 324 Ltd

Clvnas Soma\ Housmg Fmamce Company 4 Llrmted

11 579880

11546696
11842306
s os2r9012
| 18e1500
1861974
1632633 F
t onae2691 T
4 11462555

1163301 9
11906660

11913037

11546808

Property mvestmenl
Dormam

Do;mant

Property mvestmem

Property Investment

Proper‘cy nve Stmem

Property investmem

Property mvestmem

Dormant

EF‘QI&Hd & Wales

Emg1and &\Nales

Eng\aﬂd &Wa\es

Eng\amd &\Na\es
Er*gland &Wales
Eng\amd &\Nmes
Ergland &\Nales o
Er‘glar‘d &Wdles o

Ergland &Wales

100 00 /o
100 OO%

100 00%

1OO OO%

100 OO%

100 DO%

OO 00%
?OO OO%
100 00%

* These entities are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of
Section 4734 of that Act. These are all entities that have a year end prior to 31 March 2020.

The registered addresses for the subsidiaries are consistent based on their country of incorporation and are

as follows:

« England & Wales entities: Beaufort House, 51 New North Road, Exeter, United Kingdom, EX4 4EP

» Jersey entities: 12 Castle Street, 5t Helier, Jersey, JE2 3RT

« Iste of Man entities: Knox House, 16—-18 Finch Road, Douglas IM1 2PT
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33. Financial risk management

33.1. Financial instruments

The Group's principal financial assets and liabilities are those that arise directly from its operations: trade and
other receivables, trade and other payables and cash and cash equivalents. The Group’s other principal financial
liabilities are bank borrowings, the main purpose of which is to finance the acquisition and development of
the Group’s investment property portfolio. The C share financial liability is also considered to be a financial
instrument, the main purposes of which is to finance new acquisitions.

Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables and all financial liabilities are measured at amortised
cost. All financial instruments were designated in their current categories upon initial recognition.

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments that are carried in the financial statements:

Book value Fair value Book value Fair value
31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 208 31 March 218
£'000 Fo00 £'000 £'000
Financial assets

Trade and other receivables’ 5,353 5,353 2573 2,573
Cash aAnd‘ca‘srf eguln_va‘!eqtsi“ ) 54,347 54,347 249 808 R _24}),60@

Financial liabifities
Trade and other payables” 15,205 15,205 9,961 9,851
Bank borrowings 205,156 205,806 90,822 §2.350
C share hahility - - 298,762 294,148

' Excludes prepayments and debtors arising on rent smoothing.
?Excludes deferred income and tax liabilities.

The Group has three bank loans. One is a 10-~year fixed rate loan of £52.5 million, provided by Scottish Widows
Limited and there is also a 3-year revolving credit facility variable rate loan of £60 million provided by Lioyds
Bank plc and a 3-year revolving credit facility variable rate loan of £100 million provided by HSBC Bank PLC.
The fair value of the fixed rate loan is determined by comparing the discounted future cash flows.

The C share liability fair value comparative is based on the guoted bid-market price at 31 March 2018 multiplied
by the number of € shares in issue.

Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to market risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk in the current and future
periods. The Board of Directors oversees the management of these risks. The Board of Directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks that are summarised below.

33.2. Market risk
The Group’s activities will expose it primarily to the market risks associated with changes in property vaiues
and changes in interest rates.

Risk relating to investment in property
Investment in property is subject ta varying degrees of risk. Some factors that affect the value of the investment
in property include:

= changes in the general economic climate;

= competition for available properties;
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+ ohsolescence; and
+ Government regulations, including planning, environmental and tax laws.

Variations in the above factors can affect the valuation of assets held by the Group and as a result can influence
the financial performance of the Group.

Risk relating to Hquidity funds classified as cash and cash equivalents

The Group holds positions in two AAA rated liquidity funds that invest in a diversified range of government
and non-government money market securities, which are subject to varying degrees of risk. Some factors that
affect the value of the liquidity funds include:

+ the performance of the underlying government and non-government money market securities; and
* interest rates.

Variations in the above factors can affect the valuation of assets held by the Group and as a result can influence
the financial performance of the Group.

33.3. Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest rate risk principally arises from long-term borrowings. To manage this, the Group has
entered into a fixed rate bank loan and two variable rate bank loans. At 31 March 2019, 25% (2018: 57%) of the
Group’s borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest.

The exposure of the Group to variable rates of interest is considered upon drawing of any new loan facilities,
to ensure that the Group’s exposure to interest rate fluctuations is within acceptable levels.

The Investment Adviser monitors the Group’s exposure to any changes in interest rate on an ongoing basis,
with the Board updated on a quarterly basis of the current exposure of the Group’s loan facilities.

As at 31 March 2019, if interest rates had been 200 basis points higher/(lower) with all other variables held
constant the impact on profits after taxation for the period would be as follows:

37 Mareh 2019 31 March 2018
£Go0 £000

{Decreaselincrease in profits due to interest rates
200 basis points higher (2,032} (3,429)
200 basis points lower 1,271 7

The average effective interest rates of financial instruments at 31 March 2019 were as follows:

31 March 2018 31 March 2018

5 %

Bank borrowings — fixed rate 2.99360 2 98360
Bark borrowings — vanable rate 2.50180 2.02125
Cash and cash eguivalents 0.16795 0.38205

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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33.4. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or custormer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risks from both its leasing activities and
financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions.

Debtors and accrued income represent rent due or accrued, these amounts due are diversified between a
nurber of different Housing Associations of differing financial strength, see note 28 for details of the different
counterparties. None of the Housing Associations have listed debt and as such do not have a credit rating,
hawever, the diversified nature of this asset supports the credit quality.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that rental contracts are enitered into only with lessees with an
appropriate credit and operational history, and limits exposure to any one tenant. The credit risk is considered
to be further reduced as the source of the rents received by the Group is ultimately provided by the government,
by way of housing henefit and care provision, via a diverse range of Local Authorities.

For details of provisions for impairment please refer to note 17.

Credit risk related to financial instruments and cash depaosits

One of the principal credit risks of the Group will arise with the banks and financial institutions. The Board
of Directors believes that the credit risk on short-term deposits and current account cash balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks considered to be of good credit guality. In the case of cash deposits held
with lawyers, the credit risk is imited because the cash is held by the lawyers within client accounts at banks
with high credit quality.

33.5. Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity and funding risks by considering cash flow forecasts and ensuring sufficient
cash balanes are held within the Group to meet future needs. Prudent liguidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of {inancing through appropriate and
adequate credit lines, and the ability of customers to settle gbligations within normal terms of credit. The Group
ensures, through forecasting of capital requirements, that adequate cash is available.

The following table details the Group’s maturity profile in respect of its financial instrument liabilities based
on contractual undiscounted payments:

O demand <1 yedr 1% yeary S5 ygars Totat
£7000 foon £1000 £7000 £7000
31 March 2019
Trade and other payables 15,205 - - - 15,205
Bank borrowings ~ 5473 168,877 56,573 230,923
31 March 2018
Trade and other payables 9,951 - - - 9,951
Bank borrowings - 2,371 49483 58,145 109,999

9,951 2,371 42,483 58,‘-145 119,950

The profile above assumes that the revolving credit facility loan will be rolled over and held to term. Included
within the contracted payments is £22,476,000 (31 March 2018: £17,971,000) of loan interest payable up to
the point of maturity.

The C share liability and any interest accruing to the C shareholders at 31 March 2018 was settled by the issue
of Ordinary shares.
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34. Capital commitments

At 31 March 2019, the Company had funds committed totalling £12,000,000 (2018: £4,902,000) concerning
two properties (currently under development) for which the Company has entered into a conditional sale and
purchase agreement conditional on the completion of development.

35. Post balance sheet events

Acquisitions
On 23 April 2019 two properties in Lancashire were acquired for a £1.7 million and £0.34 million respectively.

Dividends

On 8 May 2019 the Board declared a quarterly dividend in respect of the Ordinary shares for the three months to
31 March 2019 of 1.325 pence per Ordinary share. The dividend was paid on 7 June 2019 to holders of Ordinary
shares on the register as at 17 May 2019. The dividend was paid as a REIT property income distribution (“PID").

Other announcements
On 29 April 2019, the Company announced a change to the calculation of Investment Advisory fees paid so
that they are based on IFRS NAV instead of Portfolio NAV, 10 take effect from 26 April 2019.

The Board also agreed with the Investment Adviser to extend the initial notice period term within the
Investment Management Agreement from 30 November 2021 to 30 May 2024,

Civitas Social Housing PLC



Company Statement of Financial Position
Ag at 51 March 2019

37 March 2018

31 March 2018

£pos £'000
Assets
Non-current assets
Invesiment n subsidrics (R SR .. A .\
Current assets
Trade and other recevables 3n 2,380
Cash and cash equivalents o 45,905 241,924
) o ~ ae278 244304
e p—— T

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 10

C shares fina

(131,277}

7(1‘3:17 277i o

Total liabilities (131,277} {302,834}
Totalnetassets - 682916 420604
Equity

Share capital 11 6,225 3,500
Share prermium reserve 292,405 -
Caprtal reduction reserve 331,625 331,625
Retained earnings o _?2 ) o 52,661 85,478
Tomle qmty T et e i i e o e ot 1 ot e i 2 oot s ot et e e 77352;15 . 420 504

The Company has taken advantage of the provisions of Companies Act 2006 5408 and does not disclose the
Company’s individuai profit and loss account. Losses for the year were £14,937,600 (period 31 March 2018:
profit £88,135,000).

The Company financial statements on pages 136 to 141 were approved by the Board of Directors of Civitas
Social Housing PLC and authorised for issue on 21 June 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Michael Wrobel
Chairman and Independent Non-Executive Director
21 June 2019

Company No: 10402528

The notes on pages 138 to 141 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the vear ended 31 March 2019

Sharn Copital

Share ore Ty Total

capital reserve rosene equity

{7006 060 1000 £004G
Balance at 18 November 2016 - - - 13N 31
Profit and total comprehensive income
for the pericd - - - 88,135 88,135
Issue of Ordinary shares
Issue of share capitat 3,500 345,500 - - 350,000
Share 1ssue costs - (7000 ~ - {7000}
Cancellation of share premium resarve - {339,500} 339,500 - -
Dividends paid
Total intenm dividends for the penod ended
31 March 2018 (3.00p) - - {7875} {2,625} {10,500
Balance at 31 March 2018 3,500 - 331,625 85,479 420,604
Loss and total comprehensive expense
for the period - - ~ {14,937} (14,937}
Issue of Ordinary shares
Issue of share capital 2,725 292,461 - - 295,186
Share 1ssue cosis - (56} ~ - (56}
Dividends paid
Total interm cividerds for the year ended
31 March 2013 (5.00p) - - - (17.881) (17881}
Balance at 31 March 2019 6,225 282,405 331,625 52,661 682,916

Distributable reserves total £384,286,000 (31 March 2018: £417,104,000)

The notes on pages 138 to 141 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
For the vear ended 31 March 2019

I. Corporate information

Civitas Social Housing PLC (“the Company™) was incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act
2006 as a public company limited by shares on 29 September 2016 with company number 10402528 under the
name Civitas REIT PLC which was subsequently changed to the existing name on 3 Qctober 2016,

The address of the registered office is Beaufort House, 51 New North Road, Exeter, EX4 4EP. The Company is
registered as an investment company under section 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and is domiciled in the
United Kingdom.

The Company did not begin trading unti! 18 November 2016 when the shares were admitted to trading on the
London Stock Exchange (“LSE”).

The Company’s Ordinary shares have been admitted to the Official List of the Financial Conduct Authority
("FCA”), and are traded on the LSE.

The principal activity of the Company is to act as the ultimate parent company of Civitas Social Housing PLC
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”™), whose principal activity is to provide shareholders with an attractive level
of income, together with the potential for capital growth from investing in a portfolio of social homes.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis and in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard 100 Application of Financial Reporting Requirements (“FRS 100”), Financial Reporting
Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (“FRS 1017 and the Companies Act 2006 as appiicable to
companies using FRS 101.

In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“Adopted IFRSs™), but
makes amendments where necessary in order Lu vomply with the Companies Act 2006 and has set out below
where advantage of the FRS 101 disclasure exemptions has been taken.

In preparing these financial statements the Company has taken advantage of all disclosure exemptions
conferred by FRS 101.

Therefore these financial statements do not include:
» certain comparative information as otherwise required by EU endorsed IFRS;
« certain disclosures regarding the Company’s capital;
« astatement of cash flows;
+ the effect of future accounting standards not yet adopted;
+ the disclosure of the remuneration of key management personnel; and

« disclosure of related party transactions with other wholly owned members of Civitas Social Housing
PLC.

Civitas Socia) Housing PLC -
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In addition, and in accordance with FRS 101 further disclosure exempticns have been adopted because
equivalent disciosures are included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements do not include certain disclosures in respect of:

» share based pavments;
« financial instruments; and

+» fair value measurement other than certain disclosures required as a result of recording financial
instruments at fair value.

The comparative information disclosed in the financial statements relates to the period from 18 November
2016 to 31 March 2018. The period covered by the comparative information varies in length and the level of
activities and therefore is not entirely comparable to the current period.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present
its own income statement or statement of comprehensive income.

Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going cancern basis.

Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

The key source of estimation uncertainty relates to the Company’'s investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures. In estimating the requirement for impairment of these investments, management make assumptions
and judgements on the value of these investments using inherently subjective underlying asset valuations,
supported by independent valuers.

3.  Accounting policies
The financial statements of the Company follow the accounting policies laid out in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements along with the following accounting policies which have been consistently applied:

Investments in subsidiaries
The investments in subsidiary companies are included in the Company’s Statement of Financial Position at
cost less provision for impairment.

Loans to subsidiaries
Loans made to subsidiary companies are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently are measured at
amortised cost.

4. Dividends
Details of dividends paid and proposed are included in note 14 of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

5. ECEmployee information
Details of Directors’ remuneration are included in note 6 of the consolidated financial statements. The
Company had no employees during the period (31 March 2018 pericd: nil) other than the Directors.

6.  Audit fees
Audit fees in relation to the Company’s financial statements total £180,000 (31 March 2018 period: £273,000).
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7. Investments in subsidiaries

For the From

Shares in fLoans to yvear ended 18 November 2016

subsidiarios  subsidiaries 31 Mareh 20018 ta 31 March 2018

£'060 £'000 £000 £000

At the beginmng of the penod 446,954 32,180 479,134 -
Increase in investments 31,576 257,207 288,783 479,134
Loans transterred 198,245 (198,245} - -
Additions due 1o internal group restructure 186,294 - 186,294 296,115
Disposais due to internal group restructure {181,440} (4,854) {186,294} (296,115]
At the end of the period 681,629 86,288 767917 479134

Internal group restructures have taken place in the vear in order to facilitate borrowings. As pari of the
restructures, a number of subsidiary companies where the assets are used as security for bank loans, are now

directly held by other Group companies.

8. ‘Trade and other receivables

31 Mareh 2013

31 March 2018

0060 £'000
Prepayments and other recervables 371 383
Amounts due fram subsidiary companies - 1,887
Total | TTTTTTTTTTTTI T e a0

Prepayments and other receivables amount above includes prepaid legal and professional fees of £343,000
(2018: £366,000) that have heen jncurred in connection with the acquisitions vet to be completed.

9.  Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2019

31 March 2618

£000 £000
Cash held by solicitors 17031 12,262
Liquidity funds 13,354 210,869
Cash heid at bank 10,931 12,410
Cash and cash equwaterss a6 235641
Restricted cash 4,549 6,283
Tora!caSh he;da t bank et it 1+ 2 o s s e e - 45’905 241924

10. Trade and other payables

37 Mareh 2019

37 March 2018

£000 £:000
ACGUISIIION Costs actrued 303 309
Retentions 4,483 2,806
Accruals 536 540
Diwvidends pavable 717 427
Armourts due to subsidiary companies 125,232 -
Total. T L L T e S _,__;_3 1_2 77_, o e 4082
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1. Share capital
Share capital represents the nominal value of consideration received by the Company for the issue of Ordinary
shares.

For the From
vaar endaad 18 November 2016
31 March 2018 to 31 March 2018
Fonn £000
Share capital

At beginning of pencd 3,500 -
Shares 1ssued 2,725 3,500
At end of period 6,225 3,500

Number of shares issued and fully paid
Fur the From
vear ended 18 November 2016
31 March 2078 to 31 March 2018
QOrdinary shares of £0.01 each Number Number
At beginning of penod 350,000,000 100
Shares issued 272,461,380 349,999,900
At end of period 622,461,380 350,000,000

The Company’s Ordinary shares were admitted to the premium listing segment of the Official List of the FCA
and to trading on the London Stock Exchange on 18 November 2016, raising £350 million. As a resuit of the
IPO, on 18 November 2016, 349,999,900 shares at £0.01 per share were issued, fully paid.

On 21 December 2018, the Company issued 272,461,380 Ordinary shares in respect of the conversion of
302,000,000 C shares. The fair value of assets representing the C share pool at the date of conversion was
£295,186,000.

12. Retained earnings
This reserve represents the profits and losses of the Company.

For the From

year ended 18 November 2016

31 March 218 10 31 March 2018

£000 '600

At beginning of pericd 85,479 (31)
{Loss)/profit for the period (14,937) 88,135
Dividends paid in the penod {17.881) (2,625)
At end of periad 52,661 25479

13. Controlling parties
As at 31 March 2019 there is no ultimate controlling party.

14. Related party transactions
For all related party transactions and transactions with the Investment Adviser please make reference to
notes 30-32 of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Civitas Socia! Housing PLC .
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Glossary

Average Net Yield means the average yield on an
investment or a portfolio that results from adding
all interest, dividends or other income generated
from the investment, divided by the average of the
investments for the period.

CAGR means Compound Annual Growth Rate.

Care Provider means a provider of care services
to the occupants of Specialist Supported Housing,
registered with the Care Quality Commission.

CHA means Civitas Housing Advisors Limited, the
Investment Adviser to the Company.

Company means Civitas Social Housing PLC, a
company incorporated in England and Wales with
company number 10402528.

Company Adjusted Earnings means EPRA
earnings adjusted to add back the finance cost
associated with the C share financial liability.

CMA Order means the Statutory Audit Services
Order 2014, issued by the Competition and Markets
Authority.

EPRA means European Public Real Estate
Association.

EPRA EPS is the EPRA earnings divided by the
weighted average number of shares in issue in the
period.

EPRA net asset value (EPRA NAV) is the IFRS net
assets excluding the mark-to-market on derivatives
and related debt adjustments, the mark-to-market
on the convertible bonds as well as deferred
taxation on property and derivative valuations. A
reconciliation between IFRS net assets and EPRA
NAV {s inciuded in Appendix 1.

EPRA NNNAV is the EPRA NAV adjusted to reflect
the fair vajue of debt and derivatives and to include
deferred taxation on revaluations.

Gross Asset Value means total assets plus the
portfolio premium derived from the portfolio
valuation.

Group means the Company and its subsidiaries.

Civitas Social Housing PLC

Housing Association or HA means an independent
society, body of trustees or company established
for the purpose of providing low-cost social
housing for people in housing need generally on a
non-profit-making basis. Any trading surplus is
typically used to maintain existing homes and to
help finance new ones. Housing Associations are
regulated by the Homes and Communities Agency.

IFRS Net Asset Vahie or IFRS NAV means the
net asset value of the Group on the relevant date,
prepared in accordance with [FRS accounting
principles.

IFRS Net Initial Yield means the ratio of net rental
income and gross purchase price of a property.

IFRS Valuation means an independent valuation
of the Portfolio by Jones Lang LaSalle or such other
property adviser as the Directors may select from
time to time, prepared in accordance with RICS
“Red Book” guidelines and based upon a valuation
of each underlying investment property rather
than the value ascribed to the portfolio and on the
assumption of a theoretical sale of each property
rather than the corporate entities in which all of the
Company’s investment properties are held.,

investinent Adviser means Civitas Housing
Advisors Limited, a company incorporated
in England and Wales with company number
10278444, in its capacity as investrment adviser to
the Company.

IPQ means Initial Public Offering.
IRR means internal rate of return.

Levered IRR means the internal rate of return
including the impact of debt.

Local Authority or LA means the administrative
bodies for the local government in England
comprising of 326 authorities (including 32 London
boroughs).

Portfolio Net Asset Value or Portfolic NAV
means the net asset value of the Company, as at
the relevant date, caiculated on the basis of an
independent Portfolio Valuation. See note 16 for a
reconciliation to IFRS NAV.



Portfolio Valuation means an independent
valuation of the Portfolio by Jones Lang LaSalle or
such other property adviser as the Directors may
select from time to time, based upon the Portfolio
being held, directly or indirectly, within a corporate
vehicle or equivalent entity which is a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and otherwise prepared
in accordance with RICS “Red Book” guidelines.

REITmeans a qualifyingreal estate investment trust
in accordance with the UK REIT Regime introduced
by the UK Finance Act 2006 and subsequently
re-written into Part 12 of the Corporation Tax Act
2010.

Registered Providers or RP means Housing
Associations, Local Authorities and arm’s length
management organisations, a not-for-profit
company that provides housing services on behalf
of a Local Authority.

RICS means Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors.

RNS means the London Stock Exchange Regulatory
News Service.

RSH means the Regulator of Social Housing.

Social homes or social housing means homes
which are social rented, affordable rented, other
homes managed by Registered Providers or Low
Cost Home Ownership homes,

Specialist Supported Housing or $5H means
social housing which incorperates some form of
care or other ancillary service on the premises.

SPV means special purpose vehicle, a corporate
vehicle in which the Group’s properties are held,

WAULY means weighted average unexpired Iease
term.
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Appendix 1 (unaudited)

Notes to the calcuintion of EPRA ana other alternative performance measuies

1.  EPRA Earnings

Forthe From
vear ended 18 November 2016
31 Maorch 2018 to 31 March 2018
Earnings from operational activities
Profit after taxation (£'000) 19,864 36,926
Charges n va|ue of mvestmem properties lE OOO) (3 652) 130,633)
EPRA Earnmgs (E OOOJ S T 16,212 R 76ﬁ293
Finance costs associated with the C share financial habihity (£°0 6,400 2,732
Diuted EPRA earnings (€0000 . 2812 9085
Weighted average rnumber of shares in 1ssue 425,393,423 350,000,000
Dlit.nve eiements 197067857 055 815
Ad}usted We@hl&d ave(age r\umber of share«s N Issue R T ) 622,461580 o 631 065 815_-
EPRA Earnings per share (EPS) — basic 3.81p 1.80p
EPRA Earnings per share (EPS) - diluted 3.63p 1.44p
2. EPRA NAV

Net Asset Value adjusted to include properties and other investment interest at fair value and to exclude
certain items not expected to crystallise in a long-term investment property business model.

21 March 2019 31 March 2018
Net assets (£000) 666,508 369,395
Elfecl o{ 1he exefcme of C srares EE OOO) - 298 752
D\Iuted net assets (£’ ODO) - S 666_50_8 668 147
Other ad]ustmems (E DOO} - -
EPAA Netassets €000 77 eea508 688147
Number of Orcinary shares in 1ssue 622,461,380 350,000,000
Number of Ordma.fy shares Ibar womd be }Ssued on the conversion of C s}“ares - 283,065:815
Adjusted number of shares 1o Calcuiated d\luted NAV o _622,461_3_80 - 633065815
EPRA Net Assets per share 107.08p 105.54p

3. EPRA NNNAV
EPRA NAV adjusted to include the fair values of (i} financial instruments, (ii) debt and (iii) deferred taxes.

31 March 2019 31 March 2018
EPRA Net Assets (per above) (£°000) 666,508 868,147
Ad]uslmer't 1o va\ue bank borrowmgs at favr va\ue (E OOO) e (650)7”” i (712}
EPRA NNNAV (£'000) B 665,858 667435
Number of Ordinary shares ir1ssue 622,461,380 350,000,000
Number of Ordinary shares that would be 1s5sued
on. the conversion of C shares S - 2830658157
Adjusted numper of shares to calculated diluted NAY " 622,461,380 633,065.815
EPRA NNNAV per share 106.97p 105.43p

Civitas Social Housing PLC
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Nptes 1o the raleulation of EPRA and other alternalive performance measures

4. EPRA Vacancy Rate

Estimated Market Rental Value (“ERV”} of vacancy space divided by ERV of the whole portfolic.

31 March 2072 31 March 2018

7000 £:000

Estimated Market Rental Value (ERVY) of vacant spaces - -

Estimated Market Rental Value (ERY) of whole portfclho 45,685 28,543

EPRA Vacancy Rate 0% 0%

5.  EPRA Costs Ratio

Administrative and operating costs divided by gross rental income,

For the From

yaar ended
31 March 2418

18 November 2016
to 31 March 2018

Total administrative and operating costs 9,642 8,893
Gross rental income 35,738 18,606
EPRA cost ratio 26.98% 4780%

6. Portfclioc NAV

IFRS NAV adjusted to reflect investment property valued on a portfolio basis rather than individual asset basis.

31 March 2019

31 March 2018

Net assets (£°000) 666,508 369,395
Adjustment for change to property valuation (£'000) 74,662 29:11(}
Portfotio net assets (0001 7 qa130 398508
Number of Ordinary shares in issue 622,461,380 350,000,000
Portfolio Net Assets per share 119.07p 113.860

7. Company Adjusted Farnings

Company specific earnings measure which adds back finance costs associated with the C share financial

liability.

For the
vear ended
31 March 2018

From
18 November 2016
1o 31 March 2018

Frotit after taxation {£'000) 19,864 36,926
Changes in value of investment properties [£'000) {3.652) (30,633)
EPR;EEm;ﬂgS(E 4{)0017 B ittt it SO _._w__w_,_mq_s_mgzm_ [ ;3 293
Finance costs associated with the C share financial hability (£°000) ) 6,400 2,792“
Compsry Adusted Earmings (€000 T etz ~ a08s
Weightled average number of shares in issue 622,461,380 350,000,000
Company Adjusted Earnings per share {EPS) — basic 3.63p 2.50p

Ciwvitas Sogial Housing PLC -



8. IRR

Additionat Information 143 - 148

The Internal Rate of Return (“IRR”) for the period from launch to 31 March 2019 based on [FRS NAV and

portfolio NAV is calculated using dividend cash flows data as follows:

1FRS NAV hasis
pence per share

Portfolio NAY basis
pence per share

18 Novernber 2016 Investment {net of Issue costs) 2800 98.00
31 May 2017 tnterim dividend 0.75 075
31 August 20V7 Interim divicderd 0.75 075
30 November 2017 Interim dividend 0.75 0.75
9 March 2078 Interim dividend 0.75 0.75
8 June 2018 Intenm dividlend 125 125
7 September 2018 intenm dividend 1.25 1.25
30 Novermber 2018 Interirm dividend 125 125
11 January 2019 intenm dividend 1.11 .11
28 February 2019 Intenm dividend 0.14 0.14
31 March 2019 NAY 10708 119.07
RR 723% 11.93%
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